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As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thenefthe Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Tiia, Inc., unless the context

indicates otherwise.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forw#mdking statements within the meaning of the fellseaurities laws, which stateme
involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Fodaaoking statements generally relate to futurenéver our future financial or operating
performance. In some cases, you can identify faivi@oking statements because they contain words as¢may,” “will,” “should,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could,” “intersJ” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believgs'estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or
“continue” or the negative of these words or otiarilar terms or expressions that concern our egpieas, strategy, plans or intentions.
Forward-looking statements contained in this AniR@port on Form 10-K include, but are not limiteddtatements about:

» our future financial performance, including oureaue, cost of revenue, gross profit or gross maaggiarating expenses, ability to
generate positive cash flow, and ability to achiamd maintain profitability

» the sufficiency of our cash and cash equivalentaget our liquidity need:

* our ability to increase the number of consumersgisur website and mobile applicatio

« our ability to attract and retain real estate pssienals that subscribe to our products, and tionige the pricing for such product
« our ability to attract and retain advertisers fhatchase display advertising on our webs

» the continued availability of home listing and ath@ormation relevant to the real estate indus

« the growth in the usage of our mobile applicatiand our ability to successfully monetize this us:

e our ability to innovate and provide a superior esgrerience

e our ability to capitalize on strategic and adjac@pportunities

» the effects of the market for real estate and gém@onomic conditions on our business;

» the attraction and retention of qualified employaed key personne

We caution you that the foregoing list may not eim@ll of the forward-looking statements madehiis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statemeagpredictions of future events. We have basetbtiaard-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K priilyaon our current expectations and projectionsuditfioture events and trends that we
believe may affect our business, financial conditiesults of operations, and prospects. The owtanithe events described in these forward-
looking statements is subject to risks, uncertamtand other factors described in the secti@ttitRisk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Moreover, we operate in a \campetitive and rapidly changing environment. Nesks and uncertainties emerge from
time to time, and it is not possible for us to peedll risks and uncertainties that could havemapact on the forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Waraat assure you that the results, events, andrstances reflected in the forwaabking
statements will be achieved or occur, and actiglltg events, or circumstances could differ maligrirom those described in the forward-
looking statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this AnrRegbort on Form 10-K relate only to events as ofdée on which the statements are
made. We undertake no obligation to update anydaiviooking statements made in this Annual Reporform 10-K to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of this Annual Repoiftorm 10-K or to reflect new information or thecarrence of unanticipated events, excep
as required by law. We may not actually achievepthes, intentions, or expectations disclosed infowward-looking statements and you
should not place undue reliance on our forward-loglstatements. Our forward-looking statements atareflect the potential impact of any
future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joiehtures, or investments we may make.
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PART |

Item 1. Business
Overview

Trulia is redefining the home search experiencefmsumers and changing the way that real estafegsionals build their businesses.
Our marketplace, delivered through the web and leatgplications, gives consumers powerful toolesearch homes and neighborhoods an
enables real estate professionals to efficientlyketaheir listings and attract new clients. Weidet we deliver the best home search
experience by combining our superior user interfaitle our comprehensive database of real estafgepties, local insights, and usgenerate:
content. We offer free and subscription producss firovide real estate professionals with accesutsaction-ready consumers and help ther
enhance their online presence. In the year endedriger 31, 2012, we had 23.1 million monthly unigis&ors. As of December 31, 2012,
had more than 390,000 active real estate profesisiamour marketplace, 24,443 of whom were pagugscribers.

We empower consumers to make more informed howgoggions by delivering the “inside scoop” on hommesghborhoods, and real
estate professionals through an intuitive and eimngagser experience. Our large, continually refegstand searchable database contains mor
than 112 million properties, including 4.1 millimmes for sale and rent. We supplement listings @iéh local information on schools, crime,
and neighborhood amenities to provide unique irtsigito each community. In addition, we harness,rigsightful useigenerated content frc
our active community of contributors, which inclsd®nsumers, local enthusiasts, and real estatesgronals. With more than 7 million
unique user contributions, we believe we havedgeist collection of user-generated content on Bom&ighborhoods, and real estate
professionals.

We enable real estate professionals to better pethemselves and their listings and connect withsaction-ready consumers through
our online and mobile marketing products. Our fpeeducts allow real estate professionals to biliédrtpersonal brand by creating an online
profile, contributing content to our marketplaadraging social media for endorsements, and éstaig their presence through mobile
features such as “check-in€ur subscription products enable real estate psiwfeals to increase their visibility, promote thietings in searc
results, target mobile users, and generate mordyhigialified leads from our large audience of saction-ready consumers. We believe that
our audience is highly motivated and ready to pasethomes, as supported by our surveys condudwddreJanuary 2012 and December
2012 in which 76% of over 543,000 respondents atintz real estate professionals through our mat&egpindicated that they are planning to
move in the next six months, and almost half ofr 382,000 respondents stated that they are prevepgifor a mortgage. We believe that the
combination of our compelling solution with ourrisaction-ready audience results in a high returimesstment for real estate professionals
who purchase our subscription products.

We benefit from powerful network effects and a sittruser community. Consumers contribute contenqgdsying questions, reviewing
neighborhoods, and writing agent recommendatioral Bstate professionals, seeking to connect witltonsumers, engage in our commu
by sharing local knowledge, answering consumersstians, and contributing content to our markegldte breadth and quality of user-
generated content contributed to our marketplasehiéped to build our brand, deepen the engageofienir existing users, and attract more
users.

We are a leading mobile platform for the home dearocess and mobile devices are increasinglycatito consumers and real estate
professionals. We have introduced iPhone, iPadydidd’hone, Android Tablet, Kindle, and Windowspplcations that provide tailored
mobile experiences, which has led to rapid growtmobile use of our solution. In the year endeddbdwer 31, 2012, we had over 5 million
mobile monthly unique visitors, an increase of 14éér 2011. In addition, our mobile users are niikedy than our web users to contact real
estate professionals through our marketplace.
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Our online marketplace is experiencing rapid growdbnthly unique visitors to our marketplace in@e@to 23.1 million in the year
ended December 31, 2012 from 7.9 million in therysmaled December 31, 2010, or a 192% increasepamslibscribers increased to 24,44
of December 31, 2012 from 10,070 as of DecembeP@10, or a 143% increase. We generate revenuaplyrfrom sales of subscription
products to real estate professionals. We alsorgeeevenue from display advertising sold to legdeal estate and consumer brand
advertisers seeking to reach our attractive audiehar the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012Gik®] we generated revenue of $68.1
million, $38.5 million and $19.8 million, respeatily. During the same period, we had net lossed6f%million, $6.2 million and $3.8 milliol
respectively.

Industry and Challenges

The residential real estate industry, which wenesté accounts for more than a trillion dollarsimaal spending in the United States, is
undergoing a profound transformation. Technologshianging the way that consumers search for hom#¢he way in which real estate
professionals attract clients and build their besges. In addition, as the U.S. housing market/szsdrom its recent unprecedented downturn
real estate professionals are seeking more efteatays to market themselves and achieve a grestenron their marketing investment. Th
trends present significant opportunities to cagiéabn shifts in behavior.

Historically, consumers lacked readily availableess to detailed and comprehensive informatiomnéisséo making housing decisions,
relying instead on disparate sources of informasioch as real estate professionals, local newspaged word of mouth. Over time, more
information has become available online and, a&salt, the Internet has become a primary sourcesafarch for housing decisions. According
to a November 2012 survey by the National Assamiatif Realtors, a trade organization for real egpabfessionals, 90% of home buyers use
the Internet to research homes. Additionally, tee af mobile devices for home searches has becane prevalent. According to a 2012
survey by The Real Estate Book, a real estate veetist% of respondents reported using a mobilecéeta look for homes, with 85% of non-
users stating that they would consider using a laagvice for their next search.

As consumers increasingly research homes onliaéestate professionals are shifting their markegirpenditures online to reach
prospective clients. While initially these realagstprofessionals focused their spending on esealich, and creating websites with listings,
now these professionals are increasingly usinqientkeal estate marketplaces to generate leads.

With technology driving the home search procesmenktonsumers, real estate professionals, andtamhrs face distinct challenges.
Consumers are challenged to effectively compile ss®lfragmented information, gain local insights] abtain information on the go. Real
estate professionals are challenged to reach tedanine consumers, target the right leads, mattegebusinesses while on the go, and
optimize their marketing spend. Advertisers ardlehged to efficiently reach the right consumerslezmaximizing the effectiveness of their
advertising.

Market Opportunity

We believe that there are significant opportunitteaddress the challenges faced by consumersstsde professionals, and advertisers
Borrell Associates, Inc., an advertising researwh@nsulting firm, estimated in an August 2012ustdy paper that $23.7 billion would be
spent in 2012 on real estate-related marketingeariinited States. According to a November 2012e3uby the National Association of
Realtors, 90% of home buyers used the Internettearch homes. However, according to the Borredbgiates report, only 55% of the real
estate marketing dollars in the United States \peogected to be spent online in 2012. We belieat tihere is a disconnect between where
marketing dollars are spent and where consumeeairels homes. Therefore, we expect that real estltteed marketing spend will continue to
migrate online from traditional channels.
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The Trulia Marketplace

Our marketplace provides the following key bendfitsconsumers, real estate professionals, andraskes:

Key benefits for consumers

Large, continually refreshed, searchable databadgomes for sale and rerWe provide consumers with access to a large,
continually refreshed, and searchable databasmpgpies. We enable consumers to customize thanches with propertgpecific
filters to obtain u-to-date listings that are rich with property factscerand sale dat

Trusted insights, social recommendations, and petary analytics that provide local conteMte provide consumers with local
insights, critical to a successful home searcharatlable elsewhere on an easy to use and compwkeasis. These insights
include information about schools, crime, neighlomdhamenities, and real estate professiol

Anytime and anywhere acce. Our marketplace is accessible anytime and anyauerthe web and on major mobile platforms.
Since the introduction of our first mobile applicaitin 2008, mobile use of our marketplace has groapidly.

Key benefits for real estate professionals

Broad reach to transacti-ready consumerdVe provide real estate professionals the abilitydienect with our large audience of
transaction-ready consumers at scale on the wekhamalgh our mobile applications. We believe thitrge portion of consumers
using Trulia do not use other real estate websited that this enables real estate professionalsulia to effectively identify and
market themselves to consumers that they canrbifiywhere else

Products that boost presence and deliver -quality leads. Our free products enable real estate professidoaireate and manage
an online profile, promote their personal branchveibnsumers by contributing content to our marlketp) and leverage social me
for endorsements. Our subscription products enalaleestate professionals to boost their visihifitgomote their listings in search
results, and generate more -quality leads from potential home buye

Anytime and anywhere access to critical informatoil tools. We offer mobile applications designed specificédlr real estate
professionals to take their business on the gmdJsur mobile applications, real estate profesdsooan access critical information
that they need to conduct their business, inclutistimgs details, contacts, driving directionsdaocal information about
neighborhoods

Significant return on investmenWe believe that our subscription products delavdigh return on investment to real estate
professionals

Key benefits for advertisers

Attractive audienc. We believe our audience is highly attractivedosumer brand advertisers. A substantial portioouof
audience is either college educated, has a houbséetmme above $75,000, or is in the 25 to 54 agam U.S. consumers with
these characteristics tend to spend more of tineiwa income on home maintenance, insurance, holgsirnishings, apparel and
services, and entertainment than the average carsaccording to the Bureau of Labor Statistics12@bnsumer Expenditure
Survey, which makes our audience attractive fosaarer brand advertisel

Display advertising products that efficiently reaelnget consumer. We enable our advertisers to reach segmentsraualience
that are attractive to them. Advertisers benefibfimproved reach, impact, relevancy, and measureofeheir marketing
campaigns in our marketplac
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Our Strengths

We believe that our competitive advantage refldwtsfollowing strengths:

We deliver the “inside scoopWe are one of the leading online real estate mpldets and provide consumers with powerful tool:
and unigue content that together deliver valuaiséghts into homes, neighborhoods, and real egtafessionals. For example, our
crime heat maps provide consumers with a view meighborhood safety and our Facebook integratieasggconsumers
recommendations on real estate professionals fewplp in their social network. Through otnulia Voicesforum, we also provide
consumers with local content from our communitgaeffitributors, including consumers, local enthusisatd real estate
professionals

Superior products and user experiend®'e believe we have the best products in the ingdfisr consumers and real estate
professionals. We invest significant resources fattinology development and product design to eraauperior user interface t
provides compelling features and rich functionalayour users

Large, differentiated, transacti-ready audience Our website and mobile applications have attch2®&1 million monthly unique
visitors in the year ended December 31, 2012 aaskdbon data from comScore, Inc., a marketing relsemmpany, a significant
portion of our visitors do not visit our primaryropetitors’ websites. For instance, according to oare, during each month in
2012 and 2011, more than 54% and 64%, respectiwbtyyr audience did not visit Zillow.com. We be&kethat our audience is
highly motivated and ready to purchase homes, gsosted by our surveys conducted between Janud® 20d December 2012 in
which 76% of over 543,000 respondents contactiabestate professionals through our marketplacelareing to move in the
next six months, and almost half of over 382,08poadents stated that they are-approved for a mortgag

Strong mobile monetizatianVe believe that we are one of the few compatiasis monetizing its mobile products at a higlaer
than web products. Since we launched our subsoniptioduct for mobile devices in May 2012, we hawolel this product at prices
that yield a higher average monthly revenue pesaiiier than our subscription products that arfomised on mobile devices. In
addition, our users are more likely to contact esahte professionals through our mobile applicatihan our websit

High ROI for real estate profession:. We believe our subscription products provide celipg value and a better return on
investment than other marketing channels. On aegedging the year ended December 31, 2012 paybsgcsibers received more
than thirteen times the number of monthly leadsmanmd to real estate professionals who only useérea products

Powerful network effects driven by unique con. We benefit from a self-reinforcing network efféicat helps build our brand,
drives user engagement in our marketplace, anacttmore users to our website and mobile appieatiConsumers post
questions in our marketplace, attracting real egiadfessionals who add more content by answehieget questions, which in turn
attracts more consumers to our marketpl

Big data and analytics platfor.. We employ proprietary advanced analytics andisges capabilities to aggregate, filter, and
analyze large amounts of data from disparate seuhze we have cultivated over the years. Our éiggein handling large amounts
of externally-sourced data and combining it witlkerusctivity data collected from our marketplacewal us to improve the user
experience by developing innovative new tools aed functionality.

Our Strategy
Our goal is to build the leading online real estatrketplace. We intend to focus on the followimy strategies in pursuit of our goal:

Expand our audience and increase user engage. We intend to grow our large, transacti@ady audience by continuing to of
superior products for consumers. We plan to cootisly enhance ar
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refresh our database of homes, partner with thartigs to add new and relevant local content, aod@rage our users to contribute
useful content. We also plan to develop new feataral tools that deepen our users’ engagemenowitivebsite and mobile
applications, and to promote and foster interadtioour vibrant user communit

* Grow the number of real estate professionals inroarketplace We intend to further penetrate the large basaea than
2.8 million real estate professionals in the Unidtes by communicating the value propositionusfforee and subscription
products, growing our audience of transac-ready consumers, and creating additional prod

» Increase revenu. We plan to increase our revenue by selling mobseription and advertising products and by optingour
pricing.

* Increase brand awarene. We have built a leading real estate and constomaerd with limited marketing spend to date. We ptan
continue to grow our brand by providing our useith\wuperior and innovative produc

» Pursue strategic opportunitic. We plan to pursue acquisitions of complementasifesses and strategic partnerships to help us
execute on and accelerate our growth pl

» Pursue adjacent opportunitic. We plan to pursue opportunities in a number fdadjacent markets, such as rentals, mortgages
home improvement, and agent tools, and to expanbtumsiness internationall

Data

Management of data is a critical component of @lution. We manage over one terabyte of data osilg Hasis. We organize data as
listings data, local information, and user-genetatentent:

Comprehensive
database

Listings data

We refresh and supplement our listings databaseef112 million properties and for sale and fartiestings with data we receive from
thousands of feeds on a daily basis. We receiwdsfeevering millions of new and existing for satel dor rent listings every day from MLSs,
real estate brokerages, real estate agents, tat# éstings aggregators, and other third pariiés.also obtain detailed ownership and property
data from vendors who collect and digitize inforimatfrom public county records
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We process this wealth of data through our progamneslgorithms and heuristic data validation engmeort, augment, and select the n
up-to-date and accurate data to displAg a next step, we apply our search logic to tha,dmd overlay additional local information on
schools, crime, neighborhood amenities, home vahras other community information. The final protlisca complete profile of a property or
listing with property facts, price data, local infmation, and agent contact information, which wblish in our marketplace in an intuitive and
engaging user experience.

Local information

We inform consumers on what it is like to live im@ighborhood by delivering insights on schoolaner neighborhood amenities, home
values, and other community information.

. SchoolsWe provide information on schools by district, typarent reviews, and ratings, which is based ¢a et we receive
from third parties We overlay this information onto our maps and calme the data points with a sliding color scale to
differentiate between schools with low, mediumhigh ratings

. Crime.We receive raw data from third parties about trmuaence, type, location, and description of naslent and violent crime
We conduct proprietary analysis on the data andeagde our findings into a tabular format or into proprietary crime heat map
Our crime heat map provides an overview, visualtbedugh a sliding color scale of the incidenceriine in the area and
highlights in callout text boxes the number of eial crimes in the are.

. Neighborhood amenitie. We provide the location, names, and ratings aflmgrestaurants, grocery stores, banks, and gasrst
on our maps based on data that we receive from.’

. Home valuesBased on our analysis of the sales records anépyoimformation in our database, we have developatket- and
local-level views of the trends in price, numbesafes, and number of listings by property type lacdtion, which we publish on
our listings pages and on tLocal Infosection of our website in interactive chart formeatsl in our proprietary heat map forrr

. Other community informatioWe analyze data from the U.S. Census Bureau tdgeaisers with information on how the median
household and family income, age of homes, and asetimes of a neighborhood compare to those o€itlge

Additionally, we have an agreement with Googlede iis basic maps, over which we integrate ournetgy insights.

User-generated content

The user-generated data in our marketplace is mg@dninder thédvicesection of our website by type of content, questiand answer
blogs, real estate guides, and along topics retéwasur audience such as local information, tipdhhome buying and selling, and observed
market trends We also allow real estate professionals to pulthsir own profile and receive recommendations ftheir clients under the
Find a Prosection of our website.

The content in our marketplace is generated byitwant community of userdUsers can vote on the quality of content using our
“thumbs up” or “thumbs down” icons and can followetvoting results Additionally, users can “flag” inappropriate contem our site, which
is escalated to our Trulia community team whosem®eiment actions follow the terms and conditionsuser-submitted content as published
on our website.

Our Products for Consumers

Our products for consumers focus on helping thewh fine right home. Our consumer products are affésefree and provide a robust
of tools for evaluating where to live.
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Searchable database
Search

We maintain one of the largest searchable datalmdisesmes for sale and rent in the United States.database includes more than
112 million properties with 4.1 million listings dfomes for sale and rent. We provide users wittatilty to search our database along a
variety of parameters as described below:

All Properties Sale properties onl Rentals only Sold properties onl
City Open houses Pets Time since sale date
Bedrooms Year built Amenities
Bathrooms Lot size
Price range Foreclosure type
Square footage MLS ID
Property type Keyword sear: Price per square for

Our users can customize their search along as femaay features as they prefer and by keyword keafrspecific property attributes.
From our search results, users have access tethided data on each home in our database, phbtbe bome, and the for sale or for rent
listing information.

Additionally, we enhance our users’ experience iwing them the choice to display their search rssial listings or map formats. The
map format provides the added functionality of golyal search, which enables users to delineaterduise area of their searches. We offer
products that further enhance our users’ experiaiittevisually impactful maps, graphics, and phatbsomes and neighborhood
characteristics.

Trulia Estimate

Trulia Estimatés our estimate of an off-market property’s valasdd on our proprietary analysis of relevant hoata duch as recent
sales of similar homes and property facts. Thisckefunction allows users to conduct a precisectehy street address to find our estimate of
the value of that home. Additionally, home ownewsyrolaim their home in our database and edit th@ine’s specific facts and details so that
our proprietary system can revise its estimatedezal

Rich insights and content

We provide users with rich insights and content #re critical to a successful home search andcdratiot be discovered through home
listings data alone. We deliver these insightsublothe following products:

. Local Info. We aggregate local data from a variety of souatesmake it more useful to our consumers througbge® Maps
overlays using our proprietary data visualizatiool$. These types of local insights include crireathmaps, school boundary and
performance statistics, local amenity location edews through our integration with Yelp, and coateninformation

. Advice. We provide our users with the “inside scoop” amies, neighborhoods, and real estate professibaaéd on the advice
generated by our active community of contributbisers of our marketplace can post questions ardveanswers in thérulia
Voicesportion of our website and also scour the collectibadvice columns and blogs that other users péish over 7 million
unique user contributions and over 830,000 topissussed offrulia Voices, we believe we have amassed the largest online
collection of user-generated content in the U.Sidential real estate market. This gives our uaecgss to the insights of
consumers, local enthusiasts, and real estategsiofeals who are knowledgeable about the neighledihim which our users are
searching

. Find a Pro. We provide consumers with a directory of over,8@D real estate professionals that is searchabiechtion, name,
and type of professional. Our platform integratéth Wacebook to leverage the power of social neta/dor clients to recommend
real estate professionals and for 1
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estate professionals to take advantage of onlireedwf mouth” referrals. For example, a consumardgng for a real estate agent
in our marketplace can quickly find whether someionideir social network has recommended an ageatgdarticular area in whic
they are looking

Value information Each property detail page features informaticeh @malytics on the property value, including prioenparisons
of similar properties based on median home sake loaheighborhood, zip code and city, price histomgl trends, and property ta
based on assessed property values. We believiafhimation helps users better assess the valtheegiroperty beyond what can
gleaned from price data alor

Mortgage. Given the significant cost of a home purchasepmwide our users with guides on how to finanarthurchase,
information on mortgage rate trends, and calcutatoidetermine their estimated mortgage paymergcbas the rates and terms
quoted.

Mobile

Our products are accessible anytime and anywhéirgecand on mobile devices. We provide the follogvitifferentiated Trulia mobile
applications for consumers on several major mgiid&orms and devices:

m.trulia.com, a mobi-optimized website accessible on mobile device beog

Real Estate Ap: Our full-featured Trulia real estate mobile apgtion, available. on iPhone, iPad, Android Ph@wedroid Tablet,
Kindle Fire and Windows 8 table

Rental Apf: Our mobile application optimized for users loakio rent a home, available on iPhone, Android Rhémdroid Table
and Kindle Fire

Agents App: Our mobile application optimized for real estptefessionals, available on iPhone and Android Bh
Mortgage Apf: Our mobile application optimized for users loakiior mortgage information, available on iPhone &#atl.

Our Products for Real Estate Professionals

We offer real estate professionals a set of sytseni and free products to promote themselves lagid listings online and to connect
with consumers searching for homes. We generalllpsesubscription products on a one, three, sixwelve-month basis, and therefore, our
subscribers’ commitment periods may be shent in nature. We also offer our subscription picid at different price points. In addition to
pricing options, our subscribers can choose amdffereht features and packages with each of ous&tition products, as described below.

Our subscription products include:

Trulia Pro. Real estate agents can purchase one of thregeatiffy pricedlrulia Pro packages to enhance their online presence,
feature their listings in search results, and adewith potential clients more effectively. Bengfinclude enhanced lead generation,
greater local lead rotation, featured listings,usttproperty pages, detailed contact informatioseiarch results, instant leads via
mobile, and integrated recommendations with Fadebéte provide similar products to real estate brekander the nanféremium
Listings.

Trulia Local Ads. Real estate professionals can purchase locattiging on Trulia's website by zip code or city doyglshare of a
given market. This functionality enables them tbamce their presence in their chosen market anergenmore lead

-0-



Table of Contents

Trulia Mobile AdsReal estate professionals can purchase local @lagron our mobile applications and mobile webbitezip
code and by share of a given market. This functignanables them to feature their profile and emninformation on search rest
and listings, thereby enhancing their visibilitythvtransactio-ready consumer:

Subscribers ofrulia Pro, Trulia Local AdsandTrulia Mobile Adsalso have access to:

Trulia Insights. Real estate professionals receive more in-defithrhation about their leads to help them priogitand respond to
their best lead:

Trulia Instant Leads We enable real estate professionals to respoledtls faster by connecting them with the consuminer sent
the lead via phone or by notifying them via textssege

Our free products include:

Property listingsWe offer real estate professionals the abilityetach a large, transaction-ready audience and teatsd to
acquire leads by listing their properties in ourke#place for free

Mobile application We have developed agent Apgfor the iPhone and Android Phone that enablesastake professionals to
manage their businesses anytime and anyw

Agent profile Agents can create their own profile in our markatpl by posting contact information, photos, andificetions, and
can manage their brand by linking their profilgheir activity on our forums and to Facebook. Agemfiles are posted on tiend
a Prosection of our websit¢

Trulia Voices.Through ourTrulia Voicesforum, we enable real estate professionals to pteitiheir presence by allowing them to
connect meaningfully with consumers, network withew professionals, follow topics of interest teithaudience, receive updates
on neighborhoods, and broadcast their thoughtaioblogging platform

RecommendationWe have built social search functionality into &imd a Prodatabase of agent profiles where users can somt
profiles by number of recommendatiansdditionally, real estate professionals can publigir recommendations on their
Facebook Wall through integration with Facebook 1@t.

Check-insOur real estate professionals can “check-in” onTthdia mobile agent application to establish theEsence at a
property.

Agent training and advice blogWe publish two blogsTrulia Pro andTrulia Corporate, written by real estate industry experts \
whom we partner to provide tips, advice, and edandbr buyers, sellers, and rente

Tools and widgetd/Ne offer real estate professionals a number oftant widgets that they can incorporate into theisonal
websites to display local real estate informatiochsas a slideshow widget to play photos of pragedr a widget to broadcast th
contributions orTrulia Voiceson their blog or website

Our Products for Advertisers

We sell display media advertising on a cost-perrgapion and cost-per-click basis to national atkent seeking to reach the large and
attractive audience for our online properties drabé of our publisher partners. We display theiweatisements on our home page and on
individual web pages through graphical displays txd links, and help these customers optimizer thewvertisements’ effectiveness through
our robust targeting capabilities. We also offepthy media advertising on our mobile website thaiptimized for mobile device web

browsers.
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Seasonality

From time to time, we experience seasonality irsstiption revenue and display advertising dueuottiations in traffic to our website
and mobile applications. During the fourth quadeeach year, traffic to our marketplace has hisédly declined and our revenue has
historically grown more slowly than in other quaster has declined sequentially. Conversely, weally experience higher growth in traffic
and revenue during the spring and summer monthsnwbnsumers are more likely to buy new homes. Xjdect that seasonality will contin
to affect traffic in our marketplace, as well as mvenue from subscriptions and advertising.

Technology and Engineering

Product development and innovation are core piliéuisur engineering culture that aims to delight osers and customers with our
products. We provide our web and mobile producisgua combination of in-house and third-party teslbgy and products.

Big data and proprietary algorithm¥Ve have developed our technology platform to hadédta at large scale. On a daily basis, we
process several million home listings from thousaoiddata feeds through our proprietary algorittamg heuristic data validation engine to
sort, augment, and select the most up-to-date ecutae data to display.

Infrastructure.We currently manage our platform from two locatioflse primary location where we host our producgarironment, is
within a shared data center environment in Sand@aCCalifornia. We use a second hosted facilityated in Oakland, California, for
production service backup and for our developmarirenment. We are building out a third hosted Ifgcin Denver, Colorado, for
redundancy, backup and load balancing purposesw®bsite and mobile applications are designed e hégh availability, from the Internet
connectivity providers we choose, to the serveatalthses, and networking hardware that we depleyd&gign our systems such that the
failure of any individual component is not expectedffect the overall availability of our platforie also leverage content delivery networks
and use other third-party cloud computing servigeguding map-related and ad serving servicesngure fast and local access to content. W
employ a host of encryption, antivirus, firewallpnitoring, and patch-management technology to pt@ed maintain our systems.

Innovation.In addition to our new product development effonts,encourage technological advances by directipgrion of our
engineering team’s time towards organized innovadiays. Each quarter, our product managers and@sg share ideas and experiments an
recruit their peers to join their projects to brimgew concept to life. As progress is shared thighlarger group, these new ideas receive
additional input and product planning and are fegdly the basis of new products and features wer off

Agile methodology and quality focuBur software development methodology is agile awtnptes teamwork, collaboration, and proces:
adaptability throughout the life cycle of a devetagnt project. We believe this methodology yieldsust, high quality, efficient, and nimble
software development. We also invest heavily ingbhality of our technology with robust testing atk stage in our development process.

In June 2012, we entered into a Platform Servicgedment with Move Sales, Inc., or ListHub, whicbyides us with a substantial
portion of the unique listings in our marketpla€his agreement supersedes our prior agreementigiHub for the provision by ListHub of
listings to us. Under the terms of this agreemieistHub grants to us a nonexclusive license toldisfistings on our platform and use these
listings for the purpose of providing real estatefgssionals with information relating to lead gexion management and advertising products
This agreement contains a 48-month term and reaetwsnatically for additional one year terms unlessceled upon the provision of 90 days
prior notice by either party. This agreement iscaricelable by ListHub except in the case of matericured breach by us or our filing for
bankruptcy, insolvency or assignment for the bemdfcreditors, or if a receiver is appointed om bahalf.

We maintain our technology infrastructure at alfgcin Santa Clara, California maintained by Equi®@perating Company, Inc., or
Equinix. Equinix provides data center space tongeuthe terms of a master
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service agreement. This agreement terminates ogatfier of the date that it is terminated by eitharty or the last order made under the
agreement terminates or expires. This agreemeruitisancelable by Equinix except in the case oenmdtuncured breach by us, the susper
by Equinix three or more times during any 12 mauethiod of its services pursuant to the terms of #reement, our liquidation, cessation to
do business or insolvency, or the condemnatioh@physical space subject to this agreement.

Marketing

Our principal marketing strategy has been to dgvalsuperior user experience that will drive auckegrowth and brand recognition. \
have not historically spent significantly on markgtprograms, but have focused on organic and gi@lvth driven by our user base. As our
consumer audience has grown, real estate profedsibave followed consumers to Trulia. We have gtswn our brand among real estate

professionals and the real estate industry thratagleshow participation, social engagement, andioggeducation via webinars, newsletters,
and word of mouth.

In addition, our media outreach programs have lpe&jor drivers in growing our brand. We publish aeseof blogs and actively use
social media to share and spread content on atyafi¢opics to elevate our brand, including:

» Trends in the real estate markéie analyze publicly available data in combinatidthwhe rich data and content in our marketp
to create unique and proprietary insights on retdte trends, which we publish on duulia Trendsblog. Our regularly published
blogs and reports includ

. Trulia Price MonitorandTrulia Rent Monitot. Our view on asking home sale and rent pricesishatiblished monthly

. Housing Baromete. Our view of the state of the housing market thgtublished monthly

. Rent vs. Bu. Our analysis comparing the economics of rentiexgws buying that is published quarte

. Metro Movers. Our observations of search trends for homes witie United States that is published quarte

. Foreign Buyers. Our report on search trends for homes by peagisde the United States that is published -annually.

. Consumer Survey8ur survey of consumers covering topics such asAheerican Dream” of homeownership, attitudes
about housing, and public policy that is publiskhedrterly.

These reports are used by, and our Chief Econadsnigtoted regularly in, major news outlets, inchgdlThe Wall Street Journal,
Bloomberg, The New York Times, Time Magazine, an8.WINews & World Report.

» Advice for real estate professioneOur blogs for real estate professiondlsjlia Pro andTrulia Corporate, written by wellknown
real estate industry experts with whom we partelewate Trulia’s brand awareness amongst the contynafireal estate
professionals

e Celebrity and luxury homes. Luxe Liviisgour blog dedicated to the latest developmentsedgbrity and luxury homesThis blog
and its content have been featured on ExtraTV, &Vv$y US Weekly, The Los Angeles Times, and m

We also cultivate our brand awareness through ksgdia channels, such as Facebook and Twitter.

Customers
Real estate professionals that pay for our sultsmniproducts include:
» Agents, who collaborate with consumers, seek lemtt$ manage transactiol
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» Brokers, which recruit, train, and provide corel estate services to agents; ¢
* National real estate franchisors, which provide estate services to franchisees to enable thetgrofitheir brand
The majority of our real estate professional subscs are agents. As of December 31, 2012, we lad than 390,000 active real estate
professionals in our marketplace, 24,443 of whomevipaying subscribers. A key focus of our salesraatketing activities has been to further

penetrate the large base of more than 2.8 milkah estate professionals in the United Stateselére unable to increase the number of total
subscribers in our marketplace, our revenue magrmv and our operating results could suffer.

Our advertising solutions are purchased by a déversss-section of brand advertisers that operakénvthe real estate ecosystem, and
those that seek to reach our highly educated ghebaf audience. In each of the years ended DeceB1he012, 2011 and 2010, the ten lar
advertising partners for the respective period anted for more than 63%, 50% and 50%, respectiedlgur media revenue.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more oftotal revenues in any of the years ended Deceib@012, 2011, or 2010.

Sales and Customer Support

We have dedicated sales teams that support ouretptake business and our display advertising besine

For our marketplace business, the majority of alesare made by our inside sales team that sellsutbscription products to real estate
professionals. Our inside sales team is locatediirSan Francisco and Denver offices and attramtssubscribers through a combination of

outbound calling and inbound customer requestsrgtakfrom our website and marketing activities. &&® have a field sales team that sells
our marketplace products at larger deal sizesabestate brokers, franchisors, and builders.

For our display advertising business, we maintdield sales team based in New York, to specifictdiget large advertising customers
in the real estate and related content categaigs, as insurance companies, mortgage providedy@me improvement companies, as well a
other brand advertisers that seek to reach oueaadi Our field sales team develops direct relaligns with these advertisers and the agencie
that serve them.

We place a high value on providing quality supporbur users, marketplace subscribers, and adeesti®ur customer support team,
based in San Francisco and Denver, responds to eottahand technical questions from our users averisers.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly comipetiénd fragmented. Consumers research homes thiugriety of sources.
Similarly, real estate professionals use a vaiétyarketing channels to promote themselves amidiients. Consequently, we face
competition from a variety of direct and indireblaoinels, and we believe we compete favorably.

Competition for consumers

We compete to attract consumers to our websitaratule applications primarily on the basis of thedulth and quality of listings; user
experience; the breadth, depth, and relevancesdfiights on homes, neighborhoods, and real gstatessionals; brand and reputation; and
the quality of mobile products.

Our principal competitors for consumers include:
*  Print media, including local newspapers, magaziaed,home/apartment guide publicatic
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Online real estate marketplaces such as HomesM&N, Real Estate, Realtor.com, Yahoo! Real Estaté, zllow.com;
Online brokerage service providers such as RedifihZpRealty;

MLSs across the United Stat:

Full-service real estate brokerage service provideis asi€Century 21 and Coldwell Bank

Online rental listing providers such as Apartmenti@i.com and Rent.cor

General online classifieds such as Craigslist;

Websites of real estate brokerages and individyahts.

Competition for real estate professionals

We compete for a share of real estate professiomatsall marketing spend with traditional, offlimeedia, and other online marketing
channels. We compete primarily on the basis obthe and attractiveness of the consumer audienedifyyjand measurability of leads;
perceived return on investment; effectiveness aketang and workflow tools; and quality of mobileogucts.

Our principal competitors for real estate profesals include:

Print media, including local newspapers, magaziaed,home/apartment guide publicatic
Other traditional media, including television amadlio;

Other online real estate marketplac

Social networking services such as Facebook anttdm

Search engines such as Bing, Google, and Yal

Websites offering display advertising; a

Email marketing software and too

Competition for advertisers

We face competition to attract advertisers to miaitkeir products on our website. The basis of cditipe includes size, demographics,
and overall attractiveness of an audience; pricamgt the ability to target desired audience segsent

Intellectual Property

We protect our intellectual property through a camabon of trademarks, domain names, copyrighésldrsecrets, and patents, as well a:

contractual provisions and restrictions on accessit proprietary technology.

We registered “Trulia” as a trademark in the UniBtdtes and several other jurisdictions. We alse fited other trademark applications

in the United States and certain other jurisdictiaand will pursue additional trademark registratito the extent we believe it would be
beneficial and cost effective.

We have two patent applications pending in the ééhBtates, which seek to cover proprietary teclesigalevant to our products. We
intend to pursue additional patent protection dktent we believe it would be beneficial and edfctive.

We are the registered holder of a variety of domoestd international domain names that include Ii@fiand similar variations.
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In addition to the protection provided by our itgetual property rights, we enter into confiderityghnd proprietary rights agreements
with our employees, consultants, contractors, arginess partners. Our employees and contractoesrasubject to invention assignment
agreements. We further control the use of our petgny technology and intellectual property throymbvisions in both our general and
product-specific terms of use on our website.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had 519 full-time emeés, with 112 in technology, 348 in sales, mankgtand customer support, and 49
in general and administrative functions. We had 282ime employees in our San Francisco headgusr206 in our Denver location, 24 in
our New York office, and 7 of our employees workngely. None of our employees is represented faparlunion with respect to his or her
employment with us.

Additional Information

Trulia, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in JuB82 Our principal executive offices are located# New Montgomery Street,
Suite 300, San Francisco, California 94105, and@ephone number is (415) 648-4358. Our websitless isvww.trulia.com. In addition,
we maintain a Facebook pagenatw.facebook.com/truliand aTtwitter feed atww.twitter.com/trulia Information contained on, or that can
be accessed through, our website, Facebook pabwitter feed does not constitute part of this AnriReport on Form 10-K.

Copies of annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterpores on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K| amendments to these reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofSkeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended @elfange Act”) are available, free of
charge, on our website as soon as reasonably gablgtiafter we file such material electronicallyhwar furnish it to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The SEC also maintaingbsite that contains our SEC filings. The asklad the site isww.sec.gov
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS
Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the rigksl uncertainties described below,
together with all of the other information in tlAeinual Report on Form 10-K, before making a deaisminvest in our common stock. If any of

the risks actually occur, our business, financiahdition, operating results, and prospects couldrizerially and adversely affected. In that
event, the trading price of our common stock calgdline, and you could lose part or all of youreéstment.

We have a limited operating history in an evolvimgdustry, which makes it difficult to evaluate oduture prospects and may increase the
risk that we will not be successful.

We have a limited operating history in an evolvindustry that may not develop as expected. Assgsginbusiness and future prospects
is challenging in light of the risks and difficidd we may encounter. These risks and difficultiefude our ability to:

e increase the number of consumers using our wedsdanobile application:

» continue to obtain home listing information, as lvesl information on schools, crime, and neighbochamenities
» increase the number of real estate professionakcsbing to our product:

* increase the revenue from real estate professisoélscribing to our product

» increase the revenue from advertisers on our wel

» successfully develop and deploy new features andyuts;

» encourage and foster the growth of -generated conter

» successfully compete with other companies thatanently in, or may in the future enter, the besim of providing residential real
estate information online and on mobile applicaticas well as with companies that provide thisrimfation offline;

» successfully compete with existing and future pdevs of other forms of offline, online, and mokaldvertising;
» successfully navigate fluctuations in the realtestaarket

» effectively manage the growth of our busine

» successfully expand our business into adjacentetsrkuch as rentals, mortgages, and home imprantg

e successfully integrate companies we may acquire

» successfully expand international

If the demand for residential real estate infororatnline does not develop as we expect, or ifailed address the needs of consumers,
real estate professionals, or advertisers, ounkasiwill be harmed. We may not be able to sucassiddress these risks and difficulties,
which could harm our business and cause our opgregsults to suffer.

We have a history of losses and we may not ach@vmaintain profitability in the future.

We have not been profitable on a quarterly or ahbassis since we were founded, and as of Decenthe2(® 2, we had an accumulated
deficit of $47.1 million. We expect to make sigoént future investments in the
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development and expansion of our business whichmoayesult in increased revenue or growth. In taoldi as a public company, we have
incurred and expect that we will continue to insignificant legal, accounting, and other expenkaswe did not incur as a private company.
As a result of these increased expenditures, we gauinerate and sustain increased revenue to achielmaintain future profitability. While
our revenue has grown in recent periods, this grandy not be sustainable and we may not achievieisut revenue to achieve or maintain
profitability. We may incur significant losses imetfuture for a number of reasons, including slgndemand for our products, increasing
competition, weakness in the residential real estarket, as well as other risks described inAisual Report on Form 10-K, and we may
encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties, caraptins and delays, and other unknown factors. Atiegly, we may not be able to achieve
or maintain profitability and we may continue taum significant losses in the future, and this dozduse the price of our common stock to
decline.

If real estate professionals do not continue to sghbe to our products, or we are unable to attraxew subscribers, our business a
operating results would be harmed.

We rely on subscriptions purchased by real estategsionals to generate a substantial portioruof@venue. Subscriptions accounted
for 67%, 58%, and 47% of our revenue in 2012 , 2&1d 2010, respectively. We generally offer sulpsioms for periods between one month
to 12 months, with most real estate professionafeping to subscribe for periods shorter thamithths.

Our ability to attract and retain real estate pgsi@nals as subscribers, and to generate subeariigivenue, depends on a number of
factors, including:

» our ability to attract transacti-ready consumers to our website and mobile appticat
» the number of consumers using our website and malpiblications

» the quality of the leads that we provide to ourssuibers;

» the number of leads that we provide to our subscsil

» the strength of the real estate mar

» the competition for real estate professio’ marketing dollars; an

» the strength of our bran

A key focus of our sales and marketing activitias been to further penetrate the large base of thare2.8 million real estate
professionals in the United States. As of Decerdfie2012, we had more than 390,000 active realeeptafessionals in our marketplace and
24,443 total subscribers. We spend a consideraitep of our operating expenses on sales and rtiagkactivities. Our sales and marketing
expenses were our largest operating expenses yetre ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. Salanankéting expenses reflect many of
costs that we incur in acquiring new subscribersrataining existing subscribers, and we expedtdales and marketing expenses will
continue to increase in absolute dollars as we gegkow the number of subscribers in our markegl#f we are unable to increase the nur
of total subscribers in our marketplace, our reeemay not grow and our operating results couldesuff

Real estate professionals may not continue to sibleswith us if we do not deliver a strong retumtbeir investment in subscriptions,
and we may not be able to replace them with newailiers. In addition, real estate professionatsetomes do not renew their subscriptions
with us because of dissatisfaction with our servides may occur for a number of reasons, includiagause we have made changes to our
products or services, which we do periodicallysubscribers do not renew their subscriptions wéthwith the same or higher subscription fees
or at all, or if we are unable to attract new suibgcs, our business and operating results woulkdaomed.

Further, although a majority of our revenue inykars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was gethém@ie subscriptions purchased
by real estate professionals, we cannot be cattairsubscribers will renew their subscriptionswis and that we will be able to achieve the
same or higher amounts of subscription revenukdrfuture.
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Our ability to increase the number of subscribersur services also depends, to some degree, amevhge can increase the inventon
marketing products and services available for usetbin different geographic markets. If we ar@lie to create additional inventory by
offering new services or reconfiguring our existsegvices, we may not be able to grow the numbsub$cribers to our services quickly or at
all.

In addition, if we need to reduce our subscripfees due to competition, our business, operatisglt® financial condition, and
prospects would suffer if we are unable to offsst ductions in our fees by increasing our nundfe@onsumers and advertisers, reducing ou
costs, or successfully developing and deploying features on a timely basis.

If we are not able to optimize our pricing and inease our average revenue per subscriber, we maybeable to grow our revenue
over time.

Our ability to grow revenue depends, in part, onahility to optimize pricing and increase averaganthly revenue per subscriber over
time. Since launching our first subscription pradnc2007, we have continued to expand our prodaictsoptimize pricing of our products. In
the year ended December 31, 2012, our average paatienue per subscriber was $156 compared to Biltt® year ended December 31,
2011. As we continue to optimize our pricing, restiate professionals may not accept these newspritéch may harm our business and
growth prospects.

If advertisers reduce or end their advertising splmg with us, or if we are unable to attract new\agttisers, our business and operatil
results would be harmed.

Display advertising accounted for 33%, 42%, and 58%ur revenue in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respdgti@ur advertisers can generally
terminate their contracts with us at any time owery short notice. Our ability to attract and netadvertisers, and to generate advertising
revenue, depends on a number of factors, including:

e the number of consumers using our website and malpiblications
« our ability to continue to attract an audience tmatertisers find attractiv:

« our ability to compete effectively for advertisiagending with other real estate marketplacesnefftiompanies, and online
companies

» how advertisers value our advertising network, Whionsists of our online properties and those ofpablishing partners
« the amount of spending on online advertising gdlyemnd
e our ability to deliver an attractive return on istt@ent to advertiser

We may not succeed in capturing more spending &dwertisers if we are unable to demonstrate toréidees the effectiveness of
advertising in our marketplace as compared torateres, including traditional offline advertisingedia such as newspapers and magazines.

If advertisers reduce or terminate their adverjspending with us and we are unable to attractashwertisers, our revenue, business,
operating results, and financial condition wouldhaemed. For example, although we experienced s¢igligncreases in media revenue during
each of the eight quarters ended December 31, 20ddia revenue growth slowed during the years efsg@mber 31, 2011 and 2012. In our
display advertising business, we also have a loataility to replace the loss of revenue resulfiogn the loss of a customer during a partici
quarter because of the significant time requireskiture an alternative advertiser for such adwegtisventory, run the alternative advertising
campaign on our marketplace, and satisfy our rexeacognition criteria from such campaign. As aiteghe loss of a customer during a
quarter could result in our inability to replace fbst revenue from such customer within that equaahd, therefore, we will sometimes
encounter variances in our media revenue.
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If we cannot obtain comprehensive and accurate reatate listing information, our business will Si.

Our offerings are based on receiving current acdrate real estate listing data. We depend oneapdct to continue to depend on,
relationships with various third parties to provities data to us, including real estate listingraggtors, multiple listing services, real estate
brokerages, apartment management companies, aadtbitd parties. Many of our agreements with @stirlg sources are short-term
agreements that may be terminated with limitedaonatice. If our relationship with one or more lbése parties is disrupted, the quality of the
experience we provide to users would suffer.

We currently depend on a listing aggregator to jpl®ws with a substantial portion of the uniquérigs in our database. While these
listings are available from their original sourciésyould take substantial time and effort for asaggregate these listings from all of the orig
sources. Therefore, if the agreement with our Eirlisting aggregator is terminated, we may noable to fully replace the listings in a timely
manner or on terms favorable to us, or at all, Whwould adversely affect our business and operatiaglts. In addition, as real estate brokers
typically control the distribution and use of thistings, our business could suffer if real estatekers withheld their listings from us. From
time to time in the past, real estate brokers maftesed to syndicate their listings to us, and aenot assure you this will not happen in the
future. If real estate brokers refuse to synditiatengs to us, the quality of our products wouldfer due to the decline of timely and accurate
information, which could adversely affect our besisa and operating results.

If use of our mobile products does not continuegmw or we are not able to successfully monetizerthas we expect, our operating rest
could be harmed and our growth could be negativaffected.

Our future success depends in part on the contigumaith in the use of our mobile products by owerasand our ability to monetize
them. During the year ended December 31, 2012malnile products accounted for 22% of our totalftcafompared to 14% of our total traff
for the year ended December 31, 2011. We currembigetize our mobile offerings through otnulia Mobile Adssubscription product for real
estate professionals and through our mobile webmiteulia.com. We monetize our mobile applications principallyaugh ourTrulia Mobile
Adssubscription product through which real estategssibnals can purchase local advertising on ouilenapplications and our mobile
website by zip code and by share of a given maetmonetize our mobile website through the saldisglay advertisements and we also
provide our subscribers rotational placement incall lead form that appears on certain pages ofnmlnile website. The use of mobile
technology may not continue to grow at historiedés, and consumers may not continue to use nelsitemology for real estate research.
Further, mobile technology may not be acceptedwaslde long-term platform for a number of reasdnsluding actual or perceived lack of
security of information and possible disruptionsefvice or connectivity. In addition, traffic oaramobile applications may not continue to
grow if we do not continue to innovate and introglenhanced products on mobile platforms, or ifsibefieve that our competitors offer
superior mobile products. The growth of trafficaur mobile products may also slow or decline if maobile applications are no longer
compatible with operating systems such as iOS, diddiVindows 8, or the devices they support. Addilly, real estate professionals and
advertisers may choose to devote less of theirdpgro target mobile users for a number of reasimctuding a perceived lack of
effectiveness of display advertising on mobile desi Although we have seen strong results in odnilmproduct monetization efforts with the
launch ofTrulia Mobile Adsn May 2012, we cannot assure you that we will targ to monetize our mobile products as effectivelthe
future. If use of our mobile products does not targ to grow, or if real estate professionals orestisers decrease their spending on our
mobile products, our business and operating resalikd be harmed.

If we do not continue to innovate and provide uskfiroducts, we may not remain competitive, and duusiness and financial performanc

could suffer.

Our success depends in part on our ability to oomtiio innovate. This is particularly true withpest to mobile applications, which are
increasingly being used by our audience. Our coitapetregularly enhance their
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offerings and create new offerings for consumexal estate professionals, and others involveddmrekidential real estate industry. If we are
unable to continue to offer innovative productsamkeep pace with our competitors’ offerings, ousibess and operating results will suffer.

We rely on Internet search engines to drive traffic our website, and if we fail to appear high upthe search results, our traffic would
decline and our business would be adversely affdcte

We depend in part on Internet search engines, asi€doogle, Bing, and Yahoo!, to drive traffic ta etebsite. For example, when a user
types a physical address into a search engineghw®n a high organic search ranking of our webpagé¢hese search results to refer the us
our website. However, our ability to maintain higiganic search result rankings is not within ourtom. Our competitors’ search engine
optimization, or SEO, efforts may result in theehgites receiving a higher search result page mgrtkian ours, or Internet search engines
could revise their methodologies in a way that wiadversely affect our search result rankingstérnet search engines modify their search
algorithms in ways that are detrimental to usfour competitors’ SEO efforts are more succed$fah ours, overall growth in our user base
could slow. Search engine providers could provistings and other real estate information direttlgearch results or choose to align with our
competitors. Our website has experienced fluctnatio search result rankings in the past, and vieipate similar fluctuations in the future.
Any reduction in the number of users directed towebsite through search engines could harm ouinbess and operating results.

Our recent revenue growth rates may not be indigatof our future growth, and we may not continue goow at our recent pace, or at all.

From 2008 to 2012, our revenue grew from $8.1 amllio $68.1 million, which represents a compouraegtual growth rate of
approximately 70%. In the future, our revenue matygrow as rapidly as it has over the past seyeals. We believe that our future revenue
growth will depend, among other factors, on outitgttio:

* acquire additional subscribers and sell additigmatiucts to existing subscribe

» sell advertising to third partie

e attract a growing number of users to our websitkranbile applications

* increase our brand awarene

» successfully develop and deploy new products feréisidential real estate indust

e maximize our sales person’s productivity;

» respond effectively to competitive three

» successfully expand our business into adjacentetsrkuch as rentals, mortgages, and home impragare
» successfully expand international

We may not be successful in our efforts to do drth@ foregoing, and any failure to be successfuhese matters could materially and
adversely affect our revenue growth. You shouldawoisider our past revenue growth to be indicativeur future growth.
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Our revenue and operating results could vary sigo#ntly from period to period, which could causeeimarket price of our common stock
decline.

We generate revenue through sales of subscriptiioresal estate professionals and sales of displagréising to advertisers. Our
subscription and advertising sales can be diffimuftredict and may result in fluctuations in cewenue from period to period. Our revenue
operating results have fluctuated in the past,raag continue to fluctuate in the future, as a tesiuh variety of factors, many of which are
outside of our control. As a result, comparing mwenue and operating results on a period-to-pdrasis may not be meaningful, and you
should not rely on past results as an indicatiofutfre performance.

Our revenue, operating results, or both, may becedfl by a number of factors, including:
e our subscription and advertising sales, particulrge advertising campaigr
» fluctuations in user activity on our website andbif@applications, including as a result of seatwadations;
» competition and the impact of offerings and pricprdicies of our competitor:
» the effects of changes in search engine placenmehprminence of our websit

» the amount and timing of operating expenses rekatéite maintenance and expansion of our busiogssations, and
infrastructure

» our ability to control costs, particularly thosetbird-party data provider:

» our ability to reduce costs in a given period tmpensate for unexpected shortfalls in revel
» the timing of costs related to the developmentogussition of technologies or business

e our inability to complete or integrate efficientipny acquisitions that we may underta

e our ability to collect amounts owed to us from atigers;

e changes in our tax rates or exposure to additi@xaliabilities;

« claims of intellectual property infringement agains and any resulting temporary or permanent gtjan prohibiting us from
selling our products or requirements to pay damagexpenses associated with any of those cle

» our ability to successfully expand in existing metekand enter new marke
e our ability to keep pace with changes in technojt
» changes in government regulation affecting ourress;
» the effectiveness of our internal contrc
» conditions in the real estate market;
* general economic conditior
For example, individuals hired to join our salesntetypically do not reach their maximum productivintil they have been employed for

several months or more. Our fixed expenses retatéite addition of personnel may not result inraareéase in revenue in a given period or at
all.

As a result of the foregoing factors and othersudised in this “Risk Factors” section, our operatiesults in one or more future periods
may fail to meet or exceed our projections or tkgeetations of securities analysts or investorshét event, the trading price of our common
stock would likely decline.
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Seasonality may cause fluctuations in our traffigvenue, and operating result

From time to time, we experience seasonality irsstiption revenue and display advertising dueuottiations in traffic to our website
and mobile applications. During the fourth quadeeach year, traffic to our marketplace has hisédly declined and our revenue has
historically grown more slowly than in other quaster has declined sequentially. Conversely, weally experience higher growth in traffic
and revenue during the spring and summer monthsnwbnsumers are more likely to buy new homes. Xjdect that seasonality will contin
to affect traffic in our marketplace, as well as mvenue from subscriptions and advertising.

Declines in, or changes to, the real estate indystould adversely affect our business and finangudrformance.

Our business and financial performance are affduyettie health of, and changes to, the resider@lestate industry. Although we have
built and grown our business during a worldwideresnic downturn, home-buying patterns are sensitiveconomic conditions and tend to
decline or grow more slowly during these periodsiekrease in home purchases could lead to redadtamser traffic, reductions in
subscriptions by real estate professionals, arethn# in marketing spend. Furthermore, online diliag products may be viewed by some
existing and potential advertisers on our websitkmobile applications as a lower priority, whidutd cause advertisers to reduce the
amounts they spend on advertising, terminate tisgrof our products, or default on their paymeitigabions to us. In addition, we may
become subject to rules and regulations in theestalte industry that may restrict or complicateahility to deliver our products. These
changes would harm our business and operatingsesul

Most recently, beginning in 2008, domestic and gl@zonomic conditions deteriorated rapidly, résglin a dramatic slowdown in the
housing market, which slowed advertising spendmtieé real estate industry. In addition, changeheéaegulation of the real estate industry
and related areas, including mortgage lending hediéductibility of home mortgage interest, mayategly affect the prevalence of home
purchases. Real estate markets also may be ndgatgacted by a significant natural disaster, sastearthquake, fire, flood, or other
disruption. Declines or disruptions in the reahtsimarket or increases in mortgage interest catelsl reduce demand for our products and
could harm our business and operating results.

We participate in a highly competitive market, apdessure from existing and new companies may adelrsaffect our business and
operating results.

The market to provide home listings and marketienyises for the residential real estate industtyighly competitive and fragmented.
Homes are not typically marketed exclusively thivagy single channel. Consumers can access haingdisind related data through more
than one source. Accordingly, current and potectahpetitors could aggregate a set of listingslaind ours. We compete with online real
estate marketplaces, such as Zillow.com, and Rezdtn, other real estate websites, and traditioffihe media. We compete to attract
consumers primarily on the basis of the numberaaradity of listings; user experience; the breadtpth, and relevance of insights and other
content on homes, neighborhoods, and professidm@eg and reputation; and the quality of mobiledaicts. We compete to attract real estate
professionals primarily on the basis of the quadityhe website and mobile products, the size d@mdciiveness of the consumer audience, the
quality and measurability of the leads we genetateperceived return on investment we deliver, theceffectiveness of marketing and
workflow tools. We also compete for advertisersiasfaother media, including print media, televisamd radio, social networks, search
engines, other websites, and email marketing. Wigpete primarily on the basis of the size and aitracess of the audience; pricing; and the
ability to target desired audiences.

Many of our existing and potential competitors haubstantial competitive advantages, such as:
e greater scale
» stronger brands and greater name recogni
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» longer operating historie

» more financial, research and development, salesremkleting, and other resourc

* more extensive relationships with participantdia tesidential real estate industry, such as bsolagients, and advertise
e strong relationships with thi-party data providers, such as multiple listing 8@ and listing aggregato!

* access to larger user bases;

» larger intellectual property portfolio

The success of our competitors could result in favgers visiting our website and mobile applicatiche loss of subscribers and
advertisers, price reductions for our subscriptiand display advertising, weaker operating resatts, loss of market share. Our competitors
also may be able to provide users with productsatadifferent from or superior to those we caovjate, or to provide users with a broader
range of products and prices.

We expect increased competition if our market cargs to expand. In addition, current or potentmhpetitors may be acquired by third
parties with greater resources than ours, whichldviwrther strengthen these current or potentiatgetitors and enable them to compete mor
vigorously or broadly with us. If we are not alibecompete effectively, our business and operatisglts will be materially and adversely
affected.

If our users do not continue to contribute conteat their contributions are not valuable to other ass, our marketplace would be less
attractive, which could negatively affect our uniguisitor traffic and revenue.

Our success depends on our ability to provide aoess with the information they seek, which in tdepends in part on the content
contributed by our users. We believe that one ofpoiimary competitive advantages is the quality gadntity of the user-generated content in
our marketplace, and that information is one ofrttaén reasons consumers use our platform. If weiaable to provide consumers with the
information they seek because our users do notibate content, or because the content that thayribaite is not helpful and reliable, the
number of consumers visiting our website and usimgmobile applications may decline. If we expetiera decline in consumers visiting our
website and using our mobile applications, reategprofessionals and advertisers may not viewrarketplace as attractive for their
marketing expenditures, and may reduce their spgnalith us. Any decline in visits to our websitadarsage of our mobile applications by
consumers and any decline in spending by realesptafessionals and advertisers with us would haurrbusiness and operating results.

In addition, we monitor new contributions to usengrated content because we believe this metai&kéy indicator of our user
engagement and the strength of our community.dretrent that the number of new contributions ta-gemerated content declines, this metric
may provide a leading indicator of the health of business. However, if the quantity of new conttibns to user-generated content continues
to increase but the quality of user-generated cdmteclines, this metric would not capture any esponding declines in user engagement or
the strength of our community as evidenced bydkest quality of user-generated content, and suthauld be of limited use in those
circumstances.

Our growth depends in part on our relationship withird parties to provide us with local information

Third parties provide us with information that w&euo provide users with insights that go beyostihlys, such as information about
schools, crime, and neighborhood amenities. Prpplerdcriptions and sale transactions obtainedhiid-party data providers also inform the
valuations provided by odrrulia Estimatedeature. If these third-party data providers temgntheir relationships with us, the informatioatth
we provide to users may be limited or the qualitthe information may suffer. If we are unable émew our agreements with these data
providers on favorable terms to us or to secuerrative sources for this information, our costy imarease and our business may be harmec
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If we do not display accurate and complete inforritat on a timely basis, our user traffic may declineur reputation would suffer, and ou
business and operating results would be harmed.

We receive listing and other information providadlisting aggregators and other third parties thatnclude on our website and mobile
applications. Our reputation with consumers depemdhe accuracy and completeness of the informaltiat we provide, although the
accuracy and completeness of this data is oftesidmibf our control. We cannot independently vettify accuracy or completeness of all of the
information provided to us by third parties. Ifrthparties provide us with inaccurate or incompiefermation that we then display on our
website and mobile applications, consumers mayrhedatissatisfied with our products, our traffic mi®crease, and our reputation may suffer
Real estate professionals also expect listingsatadeother information to be accurate and compéetd,to the extent our information is
incorrect or incomplete, our reputation and bussiretationships may suffer.

In addition, we update the listing information tkaa provide on our website and mobile applications daily basis. To the extent that
we are no longer able to update information inroarketplace on a timely basis, or if consumersrbagiexpect updates in a more timely
manner, we may be forced to make investments wdilolw us to update information with higher frequgnthere can be no assurance that we
will be able to provide information at a pace nesegg to satisfy consumers in a cost-effective maroveat all.

Growth of our business will depend on a strong brhrand any failure to maintain, protect, and enhamour brand would hurt our ability to
retain or expand our base of users, or our abilityincrease their level of engagement.

We believe that a strong brand is necessary taraento attract and retain consumers and, in thenreal estate professionals and other:
who choose to advertise on our websites and mapjiiications. We need to maintain, protect, anciaoé the “Trulia” brand in order to
expand our base of users and increase their engagevith our website and mobile applications. Wil depend largely on our ability to
continue to provide high-value, differentiated prots, and we may not be able to do so effectivdijile we may choose to engage in a
broader marketing campaign to further promote oand, this effort may not be successful. Furtheenoegative publicity about our compa
including our content, technology, sales practipessonnel, or customer service could diminish iciemice in and the use of our products,
which could harm our operating results. If we amahle to maintain or enhance user and advertisarea&ss of our brand cost effectively, our
business, operating results, and financial conditiould be harmed. In addition, our website seagea forum for expression by our users, and
if some of our users contribute inappropriate congad offend other users, our reputation coultdrened.

We rely on a small number of advertising partneis fa substantial portion of our media revenue, ang are subject to risks as a result of
this advertiser concentration.

In the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and #84.€en largest advertising partners accountethfire than 63%, 50% and 50% of
our media revenue, respectively. One of our gratithitegies is to increase the amount large adeestspend in our marketplace, and we
expect this revenue concentration to continuen#f or more of these large advertisers were to dserer discontinue advertising with us, our
business and operating results will be adversdgctdd.

Our operating results may be adversely affectedatfgilure to collect amounts owed to us by advestis

We often run display advertisements in our marlkegplprior to receiving payment from an advertigdrich makes us subject to credit
risks. In the past, certain advertisers have baaile to pay us due to bankruptcy or other reasorswe cannot assure you that we will not
experience collection issues in the future. If vagéndifficulty collecting amounts owed to us by adisers, or fail to collect these amounts at
all, our results of operations and financial coiditvould be adversely affected.
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We depend on our talented personnel to grow andrapeour business, and if we are unable to hiretaim, manage, and motivate our
personnel, or if our new personnel do not perforrs we anticipate, we may not be able to grow effesi.

Our future success will depend upon our continuglityto identify, hire, develop, motivate, andain talented personnel. We may not
be able to retain the services of any of our emg#syor other members of senior management in theefulVe do not have employment
agreements other than offer letters with any kepleyee, and we do not maintain key person life iasoe for any employee. In addition, fri
time to time, there may be changes in our senigragpement team that may be disruptive to our businksur senior management team fails
to work together effectively and to execute ounpland strategies, our business could be harmed.

Our growth strategy also depends on our abilitgxjpand our organization by hiring high-quality memsel. Identifying, recruiting,
training, integrating, managing, and motivatingetakd individuals will require significant time,gense, and attention. Competition for tale
intense, particularly in the San Francisco Bay Avaaere our headquarters is located. If we areaht# to effectively recruit and retain our
talent, our business and our ability to achievesttategic objectives would be harmed.

Growth may place significant demands on our managathand our infrastructure.

We have experienced substantial growth in our lassithat has placed, and may continue to plaagfisant demands on our
management and our operational and financial itrfragire. As our operations grow in size, scopé, @mplexity, we will need to improve
and upgrade our systems and infrastructure. Tharestpn of our systems and infrastructure will regjuis to commit substantial financial,
operational, and technical resources in advanem daficrease in the volume of business, with norasse that the volume of business will
increase. Continued growth could also strain oilityo maintain reliable service levels for ousars and advertisers, develop and improve
operational, financial, and management controlsaane our reporting systems and procedures, angitrérain, and retain highly skilled
personnel.

Our products are accessed by a large number of,usften at the same time. If the use of our matkee continues to expand, we may
not be able to scale our technology to accommddateased capacity requirements, which may resutfiterruptions or delays in service. The
failure of our systems and operations to meet apacity requirements could result in interruptionslelays in service or impede our ability to
scale our operations.

Managing our growth will require significant expéndes and allocation of valuable management ressuidf we fail to achieve the
necessary level of efficiency in our organizatisritagrows, our business, operating results, amaghitial condition would be harmed.

Future acquisitions and investments could disrupirdbusiness, cause dilution to our stockholders,canarm our financial condition and
operating results.

Our success will depend, in part, on our abilitgxpand our products and markets, and grow ounbssiin response to changing
technologies, user, and advertiser demands, angatiive pressures. In some circumstances, we raggrmine to do so through the
acquisition of complementary businesses and teolgies rather than through internal developmentuiting, for example, our acquisition of
Movity, Inc., a geographic data company. The idaatiion of suitable acquisition candidates cardlficult, time-consuming, and costly, and
we may not be able to successfully complete idiedtidcquisitions. The risks we face in connectidth &cquisitions include:

» diversion of management time and focus from opegadiur business to addressing acquisition integmathallenges
» coordination of research and development and salésnarketing function:
» transition of the acquired compé's users to our website and mobile applicatir
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» retention of employees from the acquired comp.

» cultural challenges associated with integrating lege®es from the acquired company into our orgaitna

» failure to successfully continue the developmerdagfuired technologie

e integration of the acquired comp¢ s accounting, management information, human ressuend other administrative syste!

» the need to implement or improve controls, procesiuand policies at a business that prior to tiqeiaition may have lacked
effective controls, procedures, and polici

» liability for activities of the acquired companyfbee the acquisition, including patent and trademafringement claims, violations
of laws, commercial disputes, tax liabilities, atHer known and unknown liabilitie

» litigation or other claims in connection with theqaired company, including claims from terminatetpéoyees, users, former
stockholders, or other third partie

» substantial impairments to goodwill or intangibssets in the event that an acquisition proves tedmvaluable than the price we
paid for it; anc

» the possibility that any acquisition may be viewegjatively by our customers or investors or tharfimal markets

Our failure to address these risks or other problentountered in connection with our past or fuwguisitions and investments could
cause us to fail to realize the anticipated bemefithese acquisitions or investments, cause itw unanticipated liabilities, and harm our
business generally. Also, the anticipated benefiny acquisitions may not materialize.

Competition within our industry for acquisitions lfisinesses, technologies, assets and productiaiselseen, and is likely to continue to
be, intense. As such, even if we are able to ifleati acquisition that we would like to consummate, may not be able to complete the
acquisition on commercially reasonable terms oahsee the target chooses to be acquired by anaihgrany. Furthermore, in the event that
we are able to identify and consummate any futaggigitions, we may, in each of those acquisitions:

e issue equity securities which would dilute currsgtoickholder percentage ownershi
» incur substantial debt to finance the acquisitioassume substantial debt in the acquisit
e incur significant acquisitic-related expense
» assume substantial liabilities, contingent or othige; or
» expend significant cas
These financing activities or expenditures couldrhaur operating results, cash flows and finanowaddition or the price of our common

stock. Alternatively, due to difficulties in themital or credit markets, we may be unable to secapstal on reasonable terms, or at all,
necessary to complete an acquisition.

A significant disruption in service on our websita of our mobile applications could damage our rejation and result in a loss of users
our products and of advertisers, which could harmrdusiness, operating results, and financial cotidin.

Our brand, reputation, and ability to attract usard advertisers depend on the reliable performahoar network infrastructure and
content delivery. We may experience significanginiptions with our systems in the future. Intetios in these systems, whether due to
system failures, computer viruses, or physicall@cteonic break-ins, could affect the security waitability of our products on our website and
mobile applications, and prevent or inhibit theliabdf users to access our products. Problems thighreliability or security of our systems
could harm our reputation, result in a loss of ssdrour products and of advertisers, and resuwddigitional costs.
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Substantially all of the communications, netwonkgd @omputer hardware used to operate our websiteratile applications is located
a single colocation facility in Santa Clara, Catifia.. While we have made investments to back ugsgstem in the event of a disruption
involving this facility, our systems are not fullgdundant. In addition, we do not own or contr@ tiperation of this facility. Our systems and
operations are vulnerable to damage or interrugtiom fire, flood, power loss, telecommunicatioagure, terrorist attacks, acts of war,
electronic and physical break-ins, computer virusasthquakes, and similar events. The occurrehaayoof these events could result in
damage to our systems and hardware or could chesetp fail.

Problems faced by our third-party web hosting pilev$ could adversely affect the experience of seras Our third-party web hosting
providers could close their facilities without adatg notice. Any financial difficulties, up to aimtluding bankruptcy, faced by our third-party
web hosting providers or any of the service prossdeith whom they contract may have negative effect our business, the nature and exten
of which are difficult to predict. If our third-pgrweb hosting providers are unable to keep up withgrowing capacity needs, our business
could be harmed.

Any errors, defects, disruptions, or other perfanoeaor reliability problems with our network opéoat could cause interruptions in
access to our products as well as delays and additexpense in arranging new facilities and ses/&nd could harm our reputation, business
operating results, and financial condition.

Our failure to protect confidential information obur users against security breaches could damage reputation and brand and harm our
business and operating results.

We maintain sensitive information provided by usard advertisers. We rely on encryption and auib&titn technology licensed from
third parties to effect secure transmission of iarftial information, including personally idengble information and credit card numbers. We
may need to expend significant resources to pretgainst security breaches or to address problamsed by breaches. If we are unable to
maintain the security of confidential informatidrat is provided to us by our users, our reputadiot brand could be harmed and we may be
exposed to a risk of loss or litigation and possitbility, any of which could harm our businesgl@perating results.

Failure to adequately protect our intellectual prepty could harm our business and operating results.

Our business depends on our intellectual prop#réyprotection of which is crucial to the succefssuwr business. We rely on a
combination of patent, trademark, trade secret,capyright law and contractual restrictions to podtour intellectual property. In addition, we
attempt to protect our intellectual property, temlogy, and confidential information by requiringremployees and consultants to enter into
confidentiality and assignment of inventions agrerta and third parties to enter into nondisclosigreements. These agreements may not
effectively prevent unauthorized use or disclosafreur confidential information, intellectual prapg or technology and may not provide an
adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized udesclosure of our confidential information, intttual property, or technology. Despite our
efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthed parties may attempt to copy aspects of ousitelfeatures, software, and functionality or
obtain and use information that we consider praane

We have registered “Trulia” as a trademark in tmitédl States, the European Union and Canada. Cdorgahay adopt service names
similar to ours, thereby harming our ability to ldubrand identity and possibly leading to user asitn. In addition, there could be potential
trade name or trademark infringement claims brobghawners of other registered trademarks or traaksthat incorporate variations of the
term “Trulia.”

We currently hold the “Trulia.com” Internet domaiame and various other related domain names. Tutatéon of domain names in the
United States is subject to change. Regulatorydsocthuld establish additional top-level domaingoat additional domain name registrars, ol
modify the requirements for holding domain namesa&esult, we may not be able to acquire or maigtihdomain names that use the name
Trulia.
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Litigation or proceedings before the U.S. Pateist Brademark Office or other governmental authasidad administrative bodies in the
United States and abroad may be necessary intinefio enforce our intellectual property rightsptotect our patent rights, trade secrets, an
domain names and to determine the validity andesobphe proprietary rights of others. Our effddsnforce or protect our proprietary rights
may be ineffective and could result in substarttists and diversion of resources, which could haunbusiness and operating results.

Intellectual property infringement assertions byitd parties could result in significant costs andalhm our business and operating resul

Other parties have asserted, and may in the fatsert, that we have infringed their intellectualperty rights. Such litigation may
involve patent holding companies or other adveeternt owners who have no relevant product revesmetherefore our own issued and
pending patents may provide little or no deterreiw¢e could also be required to pay damages in apegified amount. For example, in
September 2011, we entered into a settlement agrgamith CIVIX-DDI LLC, or CIVIX, relating to a clan by CIVIX that we infringed two
CIVIX patents relating to searching and locatingl estate. Under the settlement agreement, we dpgeay CIVIX to settle the litigation.

In addition, on September 12, 2012, Zillow, Ing.Zdlow, filed a lawsuit against us in the Unit&dates District Court for the Western
District of Washington, alleging that we infringa one U.S. patent held by it. The lawsuit alledpag bne component of otirulia Estimates
feature infringes upon Zillow’s patent insofarfasilia Estimatesllows homeowners to claim their homes and prouididitional information
about the properties, which enables us to updatedhuation estimates for such properties. Weeslastfering oufTrulia Estimatedeature in
2011. Zillow is seeking a permanent injunction agathe alleged infringement, compensatory damagesattorneys’ fees. We filed a motion
to dismiss Zillow's complaint on December 19, 20IRe court deferred ruling on our motion to disnfissause the Federal Circuit Court of
Appeals is expected to soon provide guidance ontlestion raised in our motion.

On January 10, 2013, Mortgage Grader, Inc., or ygme Grader, filed a lawsuit against us in the é¢hBtates District Court for the
Central District of California, alleging that wefiimge on two U.S. patents held by it. The lawsliiges that our mortgage center infringes its
patents insofar as we provide a method of assisiimgwers in obtaining mortgage loans. Mortgagader is seeking an injunction against the
alleged infringement, compensatory damages, anthalfs’ fees.

The foregoing litigation matters could cause umbur significant expenses and costs. In additioa,outcome of any litigation is
inherently unpredictable, and as a result of thiggation matters, we may be required to pay da@sagn injunction may be entered against u:
that requires us to change certain features imuketplace, or a license or other right to corgitnudeliver an unmodified version of such
features may not be made available to us at atlay require us to pay ongoing royalties and comtli unfavorable terms. Any of these
outcomes could harm our business. Even if we wepdvail, these litigation matters could be coathg time-consuming, could divert the
attention of our management and key personnel donbusiness operations, and may discourage comsureal estate professionals, and
advertisers from using our marketplace.

From time to time, we also have other claims broagfainst us by third parties alleging infringemefitheir intellectual property. We
cannot predict whether other assertions of thindypatellectual property rights or claims arisifgm such assertions will substantially harm
our business and operating results. The defengesé claims and any future infringement claimsgtiver they are with or without merit or ¢
determined in our favor, may result in costly btitgpn and diversion of technical and managemergqguerel. Furthermore, an adverse outcome
of a dispute may require us to pay damages, patbniicluding treble damages and attorneys’ féfese are found to have willfully infringed
a party’s patent or copyright rights; cease makiiegnsing or using products that are alleged ¢otiporate the intellectual property of others;
expend additional development resources to redesigproducts; and enter into potentially unfavéeabyalty or license agreements in order
to obtain the right to use necessary technolo@iegalty or licensing agreements, if required, maybavailable on terms acceptable to us, or
at all. In any event, we may need to license ietdllal property which
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would require us to pay royalties or make one-tpagments. Even if these matters do not resultigalion or are resolved in our favor or
without significant cash settlements, the time ermburces necessary to resolve them could harrhusimess, operating results, financial
condition, and reputation.

Valuation and other proprietary data may be subj¢otdisputes.

We provide data that is relevant to the decisiopuxehase a home and some of this data is subjeevision, interpretation, or dispute.
For example, oufrulia Estimate ool provides users with home valuations and igtam algorithms we have developed to analyze-third
party data. We revise our algorithms regularly,akhinay cause valuations to differ from those pnesiyp provided. Consumers and real estate
professionals sometimes disagree with our estimAmgsuch variation in or disagreements abouktténates that we present could result in
negative user feedback, harm our reputation, o tedegal disputes.

We are subject to payments-related risks.

We accept payments using a variety of methodsydhat) credit and debit cards. For certain paymesthiods, including credit and debit
cards, we pay bank interchange and other feeshwhay increase over time and raise our operatists@nd lower profitability. We rely on
third parties to provide payment processing sesyiteluding the processing of credit and debitlsaand our business would be disrupted if
these companies become unwilling or unable to pithese services to us. We are also subject tograycard association operating rules,
certification requirements, and rules governing®tmic funds transfers, which could change ordieterpreted to make it difficult or
impossible for us to comply. If we fail to complyitivthese rules or requirements, we may be subjefines and higher transaction fees and
lose our ability to accept credit and debit cargnpants from consumers or facilitate other typesrdine payments, and our business and
operating results could be adversely affected.

Our business is subject to a variety of state aaddral laws, many of which are unsettled and stilveloping and which could subject us to
claims or otherwise harm our business.

We are subject to a variety of federal and states lancluding laws regarding data retention, priyand consumer protection, that are
continuously evolving and developing. The scopeiatetpretation of the laws that are or may be igpple to us are often uncertain and may
be conflicting. For example, laws relating to ttadbility of providers of online services for actigis of their users and other third parties are
currently being tested by a number of claims, iditig actions based on invasion of privacy and otbets, unfair competition, copyright and
trademark infringement, and other theories basetth@mature and content of the materials sear¢hedids posted, or the content provided by
users. In addition, regulatory authorities are @ering a number of legislative and regulatory megds concerning data protection and other
matters that may be applicable to our businessn@sato existing laws or regulations or the adeptibnew laws or regulations could
negatively affect our business. It is difficultpoedict how existing laws will be applied to oursiness and the new laws to which we may
become subject.

If we are unable to implement and maintain effeatiinternal control over financial reporting in théuture, the accuracy, and timeliness
our financial reporting may be adversely affected.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the SarbanesyOktt, requires, among other things, that we aseseffectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting annually and tHiieetiveness of our disclosure controls and procesliguarterly. If we are not able to comply
with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act firmely manner, the market price of our stock daidcline and we could be subject to
sanctions or investigations by the New York Stogkli&ange, the SEC or other regulatory authoritiggckvwould require additional financial
and management resources. In connection with ttie aour financial statements for 2009, 2010, a0d1, we identified a material weakness
in the design and operating effectiveness of otarival control over financial reporting that wase tlesult of a lack of a sufficient number of
qualified personnel within
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our accounting department that possessed an ajgimfavel of expertise to perform certain accaupfunctions. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, tbagates a reasonable possibility that a materisstaiement of a company’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detgon a timely basis.

Although we have remediated this material weakngss;annot assure you that there will not be maltereaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting in the future.

We have not performed an evaluation of our intecaaltrol over financial reporting, such as requipgdSection 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, nor have we engaged our independensteid public accounting firm to perform an audlibar internal control over financial
reporting as of any balance sheet date or for @nyp@ reported in our financial statements. Hadoeormed such an evaluation or had our
independent registered public accounting firm panted an audit of our internal control over finahegporting, control deficiencies, including
material weaknesses and significant deficienciexltiition to those discussed above, may have lgeerified. In addition, we are an
“emerging growth company” as defined in the Jummp&arr Business Startups Act, and as such we mexyt & avail ourselves of the
exemption from the requirement that our independegistered public accounting firm audit our inedraontrol over financial reporting under
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act until we edase an “emerging growth company.” See “—Weaaréemerging growth company,”
and any decision on our part to comply only withi@i@ reduced reporting and disclosure requiremapgdicable to emerging growth
companies could make our common stock less atteatdiinvestors,” for additional risks relatingdor “emerging growth company” status.

If we are unable to maintain effective internal tohover financial reporting to meet the demankd&@d upon us as a public company,
including the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxletly e may be unable to accurately report our firgmesults, or report them within the
timeframes required by law or exchange regulations.

Complying with the laws and regulations affectingiplic companies has increased and may continuertoréase our costs and the demands
on management and could harm our operating results.

As a public company, we have incurred and expecotdinue to incur significant legal, accountingdather expenses. In addition, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules subsequently implesdeoy the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange impasious requirements on public
companies, including requiring changes in corpogateernance practices. Our management and otheopeel have devoted and will need to
continue to devote a substantial amount of timthése compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rales regulations have increased and will
continue to increase our legal, accounting, anahfiial compliance costs and have made and willirmoato make some activities more time-
consuming and costly. These rules and regulationki@also make it more difficult for us to attractd retain qualified persons to serve on our
board of directors or our board committees or &zetve officers.

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, amathgr things, that we assess the effectivenessrahternal control over financial
reporting annually and the effectiveness of oucldsure controls and procedures quarterly. In paldr, beginning with the year ending
December 31, 2013, we will need to perform systath@ocess evaluation and testing of our interoatrol over financial reporting to allow
management to report on, and our independent eegipublic accounting firm potentially to attestthe effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting, as required by Sectiod 40the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or Section 404. A%merging growth companyie may elec
to avail ourselves of the exemption from the regmient that our independent registered public adamyfirm attest to the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting under gat 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. However, we mayonger avail ourselves of this
exemption when we cease to be an “emerging groattpany” and, when our independent registered pealglhounting firm is required to
undertake an assessment of our internal contralfinencial reporting, the cost of our compliancéwSection 404 will correspondingly
increase. Our compliance with applicable provisiohs
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Section 404 will require that we incur substargietounting expense and expend significant manageineon compliance-related issues as
we implement additional corporate governance prastand comply with reporting requirements. Morepifave are not able to comply with
the requirements of Section 404 applicable to wstimely manner, or if we or our independent regesd public accounting firm identifies
deficiencies in our internal control over finanaigporting that are deemed to be material weakse#tse market price of our stock could
decline and we could be subject to sanctions astigations by the SEC or other regulatory auttesitwhich would require additional
financial and management resources.

Furthermore, investor perceptions of our company sudfer if deficiencies are found, and this cociédise a decline in the market price
of our stock. Irrespective of compliance with Seet#04, any failure of our internal control overdncial reporting could have a material
adverse effect on our stated operating resultshantt our reputation. If we are unable to implentease changes effectively or efficiently, it
could harm our operations, financial reportingfinancial results and could result in an adverseiop on internal control from our
independent registered public accounting firm.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and any deoision our part to comply only with certain reducedporting and disclosure
requirements applicable to emerging growth companeuld make our common stock less attractive teeistors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetthénJumpstart Our Business Startups Act enactégiih 2012, and, for as long as
we continue to be an “emerging growth company,’ may choose to take advantage of exemptions frolowsreporting requirements
applicable to other public companies but not to éeging growth companies,” including, but not lindit®, not being required to have our
independent registered public accounting firm aaditinternal control over financial reporting un@®ction 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
reduced disclosure obligations regarding executorapensation in our periodic reports and proxyest&nts, and exemptions from the
requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vamieexecutive compensation and stockholder appafvahy golden parachute payments not
previously approved. We could be an “emerging ghoedmpany” until December 31, 2017; however, ifvawe more than $1.0 billion in
annual revenue, if the market value of our commonksthat is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700ioni as of June 30 of any year, or we
issue more than $1.0 billion of non-convertible tdeer a three-year period before the end of tivatyear period, we would cease to be an
“emerging growth company” as of the following Ded®mn 31. We cannot predict if investors will findraommon stock less attractive if we
choose to rely on these exemptions. If some investad our common stock less attractive as a tefudny choices to reduce future disclos
there may be a less active trading market for outrnon stock and our stock price may be more velatil

Under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, ginggrowth companies can delay adopting new dseglvaccounting standards until
such time as those standards apply to private coiepaWVe have irrevocably elected not to avail elwes of this exemption from new or
revised accounting standards, and, therefore, \Wd&subject to the same new or revised accourstiagdards as other public companies that
are not emerging growth companies.

We have pledged substantially all of our assets¢gure indebtedness.

On September 15, 2011, we entered into a loan ety agreement with Hercules Technology Growdpi@l, Inc., or Hercules,
providing for a secured term loan facility, or #redit facility, in an aggregate principal amouhtp to $20.0 million to be used for general
business purposes. Indebtedness we incur undeaghéement is secured by substantially all of sgets. This agreement contains customary
affirmative and negative covenants, including carea that limit or restrict our ability to, amonther things, incur additional indebtedness,
grant liens, make investments, repurchase stogkdpaends, transfer assets, merge or consolidaite make acquisitions. In May 2012, we
failed to comply with the covenant that requiretiviey of audited financial statements for the yeaded December 31, 2011 within the time
period set forth in the credit facility. Herculesagted a waiver arising from our failure to compligh this reporting covenant. If we default on
our obligations under this agreement, Hercules fomclose on our assets to repay our outstanding
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obligations to Hercules, which would materially adlersely impact our business. As of Decembe2312, we had drawn $10.0 million in
term loans under the credit facility, and the drawd period for the remaining $10.0 million expiréidwe default on payments due pursuant tc
the credit facility and are forced to sell assetsdtisfy these obligations, our business woulthbeerially and adversely affected.

Our operating results may be harmed if we are remul to collect sales taxes for our products.

There is general uncertainty in the industry altbatobligation of Internelhased businesses to collect and remit sales taxyagsdictions
where their commerce is solely virtual. In the euntrclimate, it is possible that one or more statesountries could seek to impose sales or
other tax collection obligations on us or our sultmrs with regards to our products, which taxey & applicable to past sales. A successful
assertion that we should be collecting additioads or other taxes on our products could reswdubstantial tax liabilities for past sales,
discourage subscribers from purchasing our prodoctstherwise harm our business and operatindtsesu

If we fail to expand effectively into adjacent magts, our growth prospects could be harm

We intend to expand our operations into adjacemkets, such as rentals, mortgages, and home imprevie and into international
geographies. We may incur losses or otherwisadahter these markets successfully. Our exparistorthese markets will place us in
competitive environments with which we are unfaamitand involves various risks, including the nemthtest significant resources and the
possibility that returns on such investments wilt he achieved for several years, or at all. lemafiting to establish a presence in new market:
we expect to incur significant expenses and facewa other challenges, such as expanding our @les and management personnel to cove
these markets. For example, in September 2012ntna@diiced a mortgage product through which we gi®veal-time mortgage quotes to our
users. We currently obtain mortgage quotes fromglesthird party partner. While the third partyripeer is obligated under our agreement to
continue to provide real-time mortgage quotes amnglipport us until August 2013, we cannot guaratitaewe will be able to continue to
obtain mortgage quotes from this third party partreyond August 2013. If we are unable to add auldit realtime mortgage quote provide
find replacement real-time mortgage quote providersimilar or better terms or we are unable tegrate with other providers, our expansion
into the mortgage market will be hindered and awsifiess and operating results may suffer.

We may require additional capital to support busssegrowth, and this capital might not be availalda acceptable terms, if at all.

We intend to continue to make investments to supparbusiness growth and may require additionadifuto respond to business
challenges, including the need to develop new featand products or enhance our existing prodigsove our operating infrastructure, or
acquire complementary businesses and technolo@iesrdingly, we may need to engage in equity ortdielancings to secure additional
funds. If we raise additional funds through futigguances of equity or convertible debt securites,existing stockholders could suffer
significant ownership dilution, and any new equigcurities we issue could have rights, prefererares privileges superior to those of holders
of our common stock. Any debt financing we secarthi future could involve restrictive covenantatiag to our capital raising activities and
other financial and operational matters, which mmake it more difficult for us to obtain additiorepital and to pursue business opportunitie:
including potential acquisitions. We may not beeall obtain additional financing on terms favorabless, if at all. If we are unable to obtain
adequate financing or financing on terms satisfadim us when we require it, our ability to contntd support our business growth and to
respond to business challenges could be impairetpar business may be harmed.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our actual operating results may differ significalytfrom our guidance.

From time to time, we have released, and may coetia release guidance in our quarterly earningfecence call, quarterly earnings
releases, or otherwise, regarding our future pevémrce that represents our
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management’s estimates as of the date of reledgegliidance, which includes forward-looking stagats, has been and will be based on
projections prepared by our management. Thesegi@js are not prepared with a view toward compiawith published guidelines of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountarasd neither our registered public accountantsangrother independent expert or outside
party compiles or examines the projections. Acaaglyi, no such person expresses any opinion or #rer orm of assurance with respect to
the projections.

Projections are based upon a number of assumgimhgstimates that, while presented with numesigatificity, are inherently subject
to significant business, economic and competitiveattainties and contingencies, many of which aswhd our control and are based upon
specific assumptions with respect to future businesisions, some of which will change. We intemdtate possible outcomes as high and loy
ranges which are intended to provide a sensitaitglysis as variables are changed but are notdateto imply that actual results could not
outside of the suggested ranges. The principabretist we release guidance is to provide a basigur management to discuss our business
outlook with analysts and investors. We do not ptaay responsibility for any projections or reggrublished by any such third parties.

Guidance is necessarily speculative in nature jiaceh be expected that some or all of the assumgtinderlying the guidance furnished
by us will not materialize or will vary significagtfrom actual results. Accordingly, our guidanseinly an estimate of what management
believes is realizable as of the date of releastua\ results may vary from our guidance and thi@atians may be material. In light of the
foregoing, investors are urged not to rely uponguidance in making an investment decision reggrdismr common stock.

Any failure to successfully implement our operatstgategy or the occurrence of any of the eventdronmstances set forth in this “Risk
Factors” section in this Annual Report on Form 1@d€ld result in the actual operating results beiliffgrent from our guidance, and the
differences may be adverse and material.

Concentration of ownership among our existing exeiue officers, directors, and their affiliates mayrevent new investors from influencing
significant corporate decisions

As of December 31, 2012, our executive officersectbrs, and holders of 5% or more of our outstagqdommon stock beneficially own,
in the aggregate, a majority of our outstandingeshiaf common stock. Some of these persons ofeantitay have interests that are different
from yours. For example, these stockholders mapauproposals and actions with which you may disagr which are not in your interests.
These stockholders will be able to exercise a Baamit level of control over all matters requiriagpckholder approval, including the electior
directors, amendment of our certificate of incogimm, and approval of significant corporate tratisas. This control could have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control of campany or changes in management and will makeghegal of certain transactions
difficult or impossible without the support of tleestockholders, which in turn could reduce thegpdtour common stock.

The price of our common stock may be volatile, aral could lose all or part of your investment.

The trading price of our common stock has fluctdated may continue to fluctuate substantially. 8isicares of our common stock were
sold in our initial public offering, or the IPO, Beptember 2012 at a price of $17.00 per shareeti@ted high and low sales prices of our
common stock have ranged from $14.69 to $38.221gird-ebruary 28, 2013. The trading price of our mam stock depends on a number of
factors, including those described in this “Riskteas” section, many of which are beyond our cdrarml may not be related to our operating
performance. These fluctuations could cause ydosiall or part of your investment in our comméack since you might be unable to sell
your shares at or above the price you paid. Fatitatscould cause fluctuations in the trading pateur common stock include the followir

e price and volume fluctuations in the overall stochrket from time to time
» volatility in the market prices and trading volunasigh technology stock:

e changes in operating performance and stock magkeations of other technology companies generalyhose in our industry in
particular;
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» sales of shares of our common stock by us or makkblders

» failure of securities analysts to maintain coverafjes, changes in financial estimates by any séesianalysts who follow our
company, or our failure to meet these estimatéseexpectations of investol

» the financial projections we may provide to the lfjlany changes in those projections, or our failio meet those projectior

e announcements by us or our competitors of new mtsg

» the publi’s reaction to our press releases, other publiclarmements, and filings with the SE

e rumors and market speculation involving us or ottanpanies in our industr

e actual or anticipated changes in our operatinglt®sufluctuations in our operating resu

e actual or anticipated developments in our busimasscompetitor businesses, or the competitive landscape gene

» litigation involving us, our industry or both, aniestigations by regulators into our operationthose of our competitor

» developments or disputes concerning our intellégit@perty or other proprietary right

» announced or completed acquisitions of businessesxbnologies by us or our competitc

* new laws or regulations or new interpretationsxaténg laws or regulations applicable to our besit

» changes in accounting standards, policies, guidglimterpretations, or principle

* any significant change in our managem

» conditions in the real estate industry or changesadrtgage interest rates; a

» general economic conditions and slow or negatiesvtyt of our markets

In addition, the stock market in general, and tlzek®t for technology companies in particular, hexperienced extreme price and

volume fluctuations that have often been unrelatedisproportionate to the operating performancthose companies. Broad market and
industry factors may seriously affect the markétgof our common stock, regardless of our actpakating performance. In addition, in the
past, following periods of volatility in the overaharket and the market prices of a particular canigs’ securities, securities class action

litigations have often been instituted againstéhemmpanies. Litigation of this type, if institutadainst us, could result in substantial costs an
a diversion of our management’s attention and nessu

A substantial majority of our total outstanding shes are restricted from immediate resale, but mayswld on a stock exchange in the ne
future. The large number of shares eligible for plitsale or subject to rights requiring us to regés them for public sale could depress t
market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could decdisea result of sales of a large number of sharesrofommon stock in the market,
and the perception that these sales could occuratsaydepress the market price of our common stdslaf December 31, 2012, we had
27,552,818 shares of common stock outstandingaiDenblders of shares of outstanding common staeie lagreed with the underwriters of
our initial public offering, subject to certain eetions, not to dispose of or hedge any of theinrmon stock before March 19, 2013, except
with the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Sé&@s LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. HowewarFebruary 21, 2013, the early
release feature of the agreement with the undesgritad been triggered, an on February 22, 2028,&%ach holder’s shares of our common
stock subject to the agreement with the underveribecame available for sale in the public markéhénUnited States, subject to prior
registration in the
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United States, if required, or reliance upon amgteon from United States registration, includinghe case of shares held by affiliates or
control persons, compliance with the volume restnis of Rule 144. This early release was triggdrechuse the closing price of our common
stock on the New York Stock Exchange was equat gr@ater than $23.80 for 20 out of 30 trading dayding on or after December 18, 2012.
Beginning on March 19, 2013, the balance of thbésees may be sold in the public market in the Wh8&ates, subject to prior registration in
the United States, if required, or reliance upo@emption from United States registration, inahggiin the case of shares held by affiliates ol
control persons, compliance with the volume restnis of Rule 144.

An aggregate of 15,694,006 shares are entitlecerurmhtracts providing for registration rightsréguire us to register shares of our
common stock owned by them for public sale in timitédl States. In addition, we filed a registratsdatement to register the approximately
6,112,904 shares reserved for future issuance unaerquity compensation plans. Subject to thefsatiion of applicable exercise periods ¢
in certain cases, lock-up agreements with the sgmtatives of the underwriters referred to abdwe shares of common stock issued upon
exercise of outstanding options will be availaldeimmediate resale in the United States in thenaparket.

Sales of our common stock as restrictions end myaunt to registration rights may make it moreidift for us to sell equity securities in
the future at a time and at a price that we degmnogpiate. These sales also could cause our stooé fo fall and make it more difficult for y«
to sell shares of our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions contained in our certificaté imcorporation and bylaws, as well as provisionS@elaware law, could impair a
takeover attempt.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws, and Detaey law contain provisions which could have the@fbf rendering more difficult,
delaying, or preventing an acquisition deemed unalgle by our board of directors. Our corporateggoance documents include provisions:

» providing for a classified board of directors whosembers serve staggered tl-year terms

» authorizing “blank check” preferred stock, whichultbbe issued by our board of directors withoutktmlder approval and may
contain voting, liquidation, dividend, and otheghis superior to our common sto

» limiting the liability of, and providing indemnifation to, our directors and officel
» limiting the ability of our stockholders to call ébring business before special meetir

» requiring advance notice of stockholder proposad$fisiness to be conducted at meetings of oukistdders and for nominations
of candidates for election to our board of direst

» controlling the procedures for the conduct and datieg of board of directors and stockholder megsijranc
« providing our board of directors with the expressvpr to postpone previously scheduled annual mgetind to cancel previously
scheduled special meetiny
These provisions, alone or together, could delgyrevent hostile takeovers and changes in controhanges in our management.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subjectdwigions of Delaware law, including Section 203té Delaware General Corporation
law, which prevents some stockholders holding ntloa@ 15% of our outstanding common stock from emmgpip certain business
combinations without approval of the holders ofsgahtially all of our outstanding common stock.

Any provision of our certificate of incorporatiomylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delgyr deterring a change in control
could limit the opportunity for our stockholdersraxeive a premium for their shares of our commonks and could also affect the price that
some investors are willing to pay for our commarckt
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If securities or industry analysts do not publish oease publishing research or reports about usr business or our market, or if the
change their recommendations regarding our stockvadsely, our stock price and trading volume couleatine.

The trading market for our common stock has beenaaly continue to be influenced by the researchreparts that industry or
securities analysts may publish about us, our legsinour market, or our competitors. If any ofdahalysts who covers us change their
recommendation regarding our stock adversely, avige more favorable relative recommendations abautompetitors, our stock price
would likely decline. If any analyst who coverswere to cease coverage of our company or faildalegly publish reports on us, we could
lose visibility in the financial markets, whichtarn could cause our stock price or trading volumeecline.

We do not expect to declare any dividends in theeéeeable future.

We do not anticipate declaring any cash dividendsolders of our common stock in the foreseealileréu In addition, the terms of our
credit facility currently prohibit us from payin@sh dividends on our capital stock. Consequemilygstors may need to rely on sales of their
common stock after price appreciation, which mayen@ccur, as the only way to realize any futuragan their investment. Investors seel
cash dividends should not purchase our common stock

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

In May 2010, we entered into a lease effectiveugtoMay 2014 for approximately 32,000 square féefffice space that houses our
principal offices in San Francisco. In March 2042, entered into a sublease effective through Ma648 for approximately 9,500 square feet
of additional office space in San Francisco. Inddet 2012, we entered into a lease to extend aupaacy of this additional space in
San Francisco and to add, effective April 2013additional 9,500 square feet of office space. Hasé for this combined 19,000 square feet
office space runs through September 30, 2015. \A&=ladditional office space in Denver and New YW@/k. believe our facilities are sufficie
for our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, we are subject to legal procegsliand claims in the ordinary course of busin@&shave received, and may in the
future continue to receive, claims from third pastasserting, among other things, infringemenheif intellectual property rights.

On September 12, 2012, Zillow filed a lawsuit agaims in the United States District Court for thedtérn District of Washington,
alleging that we infringe on one U.S. patent heldtbThe lawsuit alleges that one component of utia Estimategeature infringes Zillow's
patent insofar a$rulia Estimatesllows homeowners to claim their homes and prosuditional information about the properties, which
enables us to update the valuation estimates fibr groperties. We started offering our Trulia Esties feature in 2011. Zillow is seeking a
permanent injunction against the alleged infringetneompensatory damages, and attorneys’ fees.alievb we have meritorious defenses to
Zillow’s claims. We filed a motion to dismiss Zillés complaint on December 19, 2012. The court deteruling on our motion to dismiss
because the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals isetql to soon provide guidance on the questiordarsour motion. We intend to continue
to vigorously defend the lawsuit.

On January 10, 2013, Mortgage Grader, Inc., or ysaé Grader, filed a lawsuit against us in the é¢hBtates District Court for the
Central District of California, alleging that wefiimge on two U.S. patents held by it. The lawsliiges that our mortgage center infringes its
patents insofar as we provide a method of assisting
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borrowers in obtaining mortgage loans. Mortgaged@ras seeking an injunction against the allegéthigement, compensatory damages, and
attorneys’ fees. Mortgage Grader is seeking amutjan against the alleged infringement, compemgatamages, and attorneys’ fees.

The foregoing litigation matters could cause umtar significant expenses and costs. In additioa,outcome of any litigation is
inherently unpredictable, and as a result of thi§gation matters, we may be required to pay da@sagn injunction may be entered against u:
that requires us to change our certain featuresiirmarketplace; or a license or other right toticwre to deliver an unmodified version of th
features may not be made available to us at ailay require us to pay ongoing royalties and comtli unfavorable terms. Any of these
outcomes could harm our business. Even if we weprdvail, these litigation matters could be coatiyg time-consuming, could divert the
attention of our management and key personnel donbusiness operations, and may discourage comsureal estate professionals, and
advertisers from using our marketplace.

Current and future litigation may be necessaryei@idd ourselves, our partners and our customedgeteymining the scope,
enforceability, and validity of third-party proptéey rights or to establish our proprietary righfthe results of any current or future litigation
cannot be predicted with certainty, and regardbésbe outcome, litigation can have an adverse ohpa us because of defense and settlemel
costs, diversion of management resources, and fattiers.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit
Market Information and Holders of Record

Our common stock has been listed on the New YooklSExchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “TRLA” Septeer 20, 2012. Prior to
that date, there was no public trading market farammmon stock. The following table sets forthtfoe periods indicated the high and low
sales price per share of our common stock as mgbori the NYSE for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31, 201: High Low
Third Quarter (from September 20, 2012) $26.57 $20.4¢
Fourth Quarte $23.8¢ $14.6¢

As of February 26, 2013, we had 179 holders ofnod our common stock. The actual number of stotdkrs is greater than this number of
record holders and includes stockholders who amefial owners but whose shares are held in siraete by brokers and other nominees.
This number of holders of record also does nouitkelstockholders whose shares may be held inkiyusther entities.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid a cash dividencduocapital stock. We currently intend to retain &umyre earnings and do not expec
pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Anyreideterminations to pay cash dividends will lmimat the discretion of our board of
directors, subject to applicable laws, and will elegh on a number of factors, including our financ@hdition, results of operations, capital
requirements, contractual restrictions, generainass conditions, and any other factors that oardof directors may deem relevant. In
addition, the terms of our credit facility currgnrohibit us from paying cash dividends on ourizdstock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities and UseRioceeds from Registered Securities
a) Sales of Unregistered Securities

From January 1, 2012 until December 31, 2012, vaatgd stock options under our 2005 Plan to purcB28¢528 shares of our common
stock to certain of our employees and directoexatcise prices ranging from $6.81 to $16.53 pareshin addition, from January 1, 2012 until
December 31, 2012, we granted stock options unate2@12 Plan to purchase 231,444 shares of our ammstock to certain of our employees
and directors at exercise prices ranging from $.553522.44 per share. During such period we issmealygregate of 541,445 shares of
common stock that were not registered under tharies Act to our directors and employees purstaniie exercise of stock options for cash
consideration with aggregate exercise proceedpmaimately $1.7 million. These issuances wereeatatken in reliance upon the exemption
from registration requirements available under Ril# of the Securities Act.

From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012, weds386880 shares of common stock pursuant to tHdessnet exercise of a warrant
to purchase our common stock without registratindean the Securities Act. The shares of common sgstled pursuant to the cashless net
exercise of the warrant were not registered urtteSecurities Act in reliance upon an exemptiomfregistration available under Section 4(2)
of the Securities Act.
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(b) Use of Proceeds

On September 25, 2012, we closed our initial putiffiering (“IPO”) pursuant to which we sold 5,9000shares of our common stock,
which includes 900,000 shares sold pursuant texiecise by the underwriters of an over-allotmepitom, at a public offering price of $17.00
per share, resulting in net proceeds to us of $88llibn, after deducting underwriting discountsdarommissions and offering expenses
payable by us. In addition, another 1,000,000 sharre sold by certain selling stockholders. Werditlreceive any proceeds from sales by
selling stockholders. J.P. Morgan Securities LLEuBche Bank Securities Inc., RBC Capital Marketts;, Needham & Company, LLC, and
William Blair & Company, L.L.C acted as underwrgeiNo payments were made by us to directors, affioe persons owning ten percent or
more of our common stock or to their associate$p our affiliates. We maintain the funds receiuedash and cash equivalents. There has
been no material change in the planned use of pdscom our initial public offering as describ@dour final prospectus filed pursuant to R
424(b) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioSeptember 19, 2012. From the effective dathefegistration statement through
December 31, 2012, we have used the net proceels offering for working capital purposes and otfyeneral corporate purposes.

c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial and Other Dat

The following selected historical financial datddve should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Maement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiormayt financial statements, and the related notesapg in Item 8, Financial Statements ai
Supplementary Data”, of this Annual Report on FAi0rK to fully understand factors that may affea tomparability of the information
presented below.

The statements of operations data for the yearsceBécember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and the bastueet data as of December 31,
2012 and 2011 are derived from our audited findrste&ements appearing in Item 8, “Financial St&tets and Supplementary Data”, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The statements of ajpsna for the years ended December 31, 2009 an8él 200 the balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are derived fraiiteal financial statements not included in thisimAal Report on Form 10-K. Our
historical results are not necessarily indicatif’¢he results to be expected in the future.

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Statement of Operations Data
Revenue $ 68,08 $ 38,51¢ $ 19,78 $ 10,33¢ $  8,06¢
Cost and operating expens®

Co(%t of revenue (exclusive of amortization)

9,99¢ 5,79¢ 3,651 2,85t 2,68(
Technology and developme 20,19¢ 14,65( 8,80: 7,05¢ 5,20z
Sales and marketir 33,747 17,71° 8,63¢ 5,563: 5,19¢
General and administrati 13,65¢ 6,12: 2,501 1,917 3,14:
Total cost and operating expen: 77,60« 44,28¢ 23,59¢ 17,35t 16,21¢
Loss from operation (9,519 (5,767 (3,819 (7,017 (8,159
Interest incom 50 17 15 55 29¢
Interest expens (1,01€) (389) (39 (22) (12)
Change in fair value of warrant liabili (369 (16) — — —
Loss before provision for income tax (10,859 (6,155 (3,83¢) (6,989 (7,86€)
Provision for income taxe (67) — — — —
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (10,92) $ (6,159 $ (3,839 $ (6,989 $ (7,866
Net loss per share attributable to comr
stockholders, basic and dilut® $ (0.87) $ (0,99 $ (069 $  (1.2) $ (140
Weighted average shares used in computing ne
loss per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and dilut® 12,538,76 6,657,04! 6,016,55! 5,752,47 5,606,33
Other Financial Information:
Adjusted EBITDA® $ (3,369 $ (1,78)) $ (2,499 $ (5,85) $ (6,890

@ Stock-based compensation was allocated as foll

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Cost of revenu $ 32 $ 11 $ 8 $10 $ 22
Technology and developme 93C 482 17¢€ 177 16€
Sales and marketir 39¢ 18¢ 97 10k 11¢
General and administrati 1,21( 80¢ 73 13 44¢€
Total stocl-based compensatic $2,57C $1,48¢ $354 $305  $75S
@  Amortization of product development costs wereudeld in technology and development
as follows: $1,10¢ $ 70E $36€ $17¢  $321
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@ See Note 11 to our audited financial statementarficexplanation of the method used to calculatee lzeml diluted net loss per share

attributable to common stockholders and the weijatesrage number of shares used in the computaftitre per share amoun

See “—Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for more infotina and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to ness, the most directly
comparable financial measure calculated and predéntaccordance with generally accepted accouptimgiples in the United States,
or GAAP.

@)

As of December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents and sterm investment $100,01° $11,34: $ 4,39¢ $ 7,58 $14,01:
Working capital (deficit 82,63: 4,16t (132 6,881 14,137
Property and equipment, r 7,06¢ 5,54¢ 3,46¢ 847 1,131
Total asset 118,96 24,19¢ 15,71( 11,16: 16,84
Deferred revenu 13,29¢ 4,827 1,81( 54¢€ 21z
Total indebtednes 9,75¢ 9,59 1,95¢ 517 64C
Preferred stock warrant liabili — 297 — — —

Total stockholder equity (deficit) 86,53 3,03¢ 7,14z 8,26: 14,91:

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA is a financial measure that is aalculated in accordance with generally acceptedwtting principles in the United
States, or GAAP. We define Adjusted EBITDA as mstladjusted to exclude interest income, intergetrese, taxes, depreciation and
amortization, change in the fair value of our watigbility, and stock-based compensation. Belaw,have provided a reconciliation of
Adjusted EBITDA to our net loss, the most direamparable financial measure calculated and predentaccordance with GAAP. Adjusted
EBITDA should not be considered as an alternativieet loss or any other measure of financial perérce calculated and presented in
accordance with GAAP. Our Adjusted EBITDA may netdomparable to similarly titted measures of othrganizations because other
organizations may not calculate Adjusted EBITDAlR same manner as we calculate the measure.

We include Adjusted EBITDA in this Annual Report Borm 10-K because it is an important measure wygtoh our management
assesses our operating performance. We use AdjEBIEDA as a key performance measure because vievbet facilitates operating
performance comparisons from period to period kghueking potential differences primarily caused layiations in capital structures, tax
positions, the impact of depreciation and amoriimaéxpense on our fixed assets, changes relatbe fair value remeasurements of our
preferred stock warrant, and the impact of stbaked compensation expense. Because Adjusted EBfa@lfates internal comparisons of «
historical operating performance on a more considiasis, we also use Adjusted EBITDA for busirgasning purposes, to incentivize and
compensate our management personnel, and in engl@atguisition opportunities. In addition, we leek Adjusted EBITDA and similar
measures are widely used by investors, securitialysts, ratings agencies, and other parties iluatiag companies in our industry as a
measure of financial performance and debt-senapalilities.

Our use of Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as aalgtical tool, and you should not consider it inlation or as a substitute for analysis
of our results as reported under GAAP. Some ofettiesitations are:

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expen@sufor capital equipment or other contractual caments;

« Although depreciation and amortization are non-adsrges, the assets being depreciated and andgoniiag have to be replaced in
the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not refleqtital expenditure requirements for such replacesy

» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, othcasjuirements for, our working capital nee
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» Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the interest exgeear the cash requirements necessary to sert@eshor principal payments

on our indebtedness; a

» Other companies, including companies in our inguistray calculate Adjusted EBITDA measures diffelgnwhich reduces their

usefulness as a comparative meas

In evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, you should be awtrat in the future we will incur expenses similathe adjustments in this
presentation. Our presentation of Adjusted EBITAEd not be construed as an inference that ourduesults will be unaffected by these
expenses or any unusual or non-recurring items.riélraluating our performance, you should considfjusted EBITDA alongside other

financial performance measures, including our og$ nd other GAAP results.

The following table presents a reconciliation ofjidgled EBITDA to our net loss, the most compar&WeAP measure, for each of the

periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $(10,92)  $(6,155)  $(3,83¢)  $(6,98Y)  $(7,86¢)
Non-GAAP adjustments
Interest incom (50) ()] (15) (55) (29¢)
Interest expens 1,01¢ 38¢ 39 21 11
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,58¢ 2,49¢ 963 85& 51C
Change in fair value of warrant liabili 36¢ 16 — — —
Stoclk-based compensatic 2,57( 1,48¢ 354 30& 753
Provision for income taxe 67 — — — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ (3,369 $(1,787) $(2,497) $(5,857) $(6,890)
Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our firiahcondition and results of operations should kad in conjunction with our financial
statements and related notes appearing elsewhetgasinnual Report on Form 10-K. In addition tatrical financial information, the
following discussion contains forwelooking statements that reflect our plans, esteésand beliefs. Statements containing words such as

” w

“may,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,

project,” “projections,” “business outlook,” “estimate,” or similar expressions

constitute forward-looking statements. Our actwedults could differ materially from those containedr implied by any forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause or contribotihese differences include those discussed bataelsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 1(-K.

Overview

Trulia is redefining the home search experiencefmsumers and changing the way that real estafegsionals build their businesses.
Our marketplace, delivered through the web and leatgplications, gives consumers powerful toolesearch homes and neighborhoods an
enables real estate professionals to efficientlyketaheir listings and attract new clients. Weidet we deliver the best home search
experience by combining our superior user interfaitle our comprehensive database of real estafgepties, local insights, and usgenerate:

content. We offer products that provide real egpasdessionals with access to transaction-readgwmers and help them enhance their online

presence.

Key elements of our marketplace are extensive goasueach, an engaged base of real estate profaksand a comprehensive datat
of real estate information and local insights.Ha year ended December 31, 2012, we had 23.1 mitienthly unique visitors, and as of
December 31, 2012, we had more than 390,000 aetaleestate professionals, 24,443 of which weréngegubscribers in our marketplace.

large, continually
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refreshed, and searchable database contains neord 12 million properties, including 4.1 millionmes for sale and rent. We supplement
listings data with local information on schooldgnee and neighborhood amenities to provide unigsgghts into each community. In addition,
we harness rich, insightful user-generated coritent our active community of contributors, includinonsumers, local enthusiasts, and real
estate professionals. With more than 7 million ueigser contributions, we believe we have the Hrgallection of user-generated content on
homes, neighborhoods, and real estate professiaalsleliver this information on mobile devicesaingh our iPhone, iPad, Android Phone,
Android tablet, Kindle, and Windows 8 applicatiarsd also provide tailored mobile experiences, ssc@PS-based search.

We offer our products free to consumers. We delirer‘inside scoop” on homes, neighborhoods, aatlagtate professionals in an
intuitive and engaging way, helping consumers mmakee informed housing decisions. For real estaiéepsionals, we offer a suite of free anc
subscription products to promote themselves and lteéngs online, and to connect with consumezarshing for homes. Our free products
attract users to our marketplace and the qualityuofproducts drives the growth of our audience mnodnotes deep engagement by our users.
We believe this leads real estate professionatewert to paying subscribers and brand advertisgpsirchase our advertising products.

We generate revenue primarily from sales of supsoni marketing products that we offer to real tsstaofessionals. Odrrulia Pro
product allows real estate professionals to receieeninent placement of their listings in our sbamesults. With outlrulia Local Adsand
Trulia Mobile Adsproducts, real estate professionals can purchaaéddvertising on our website and mobile applaj respectively, by
locale and by share of a given market. We alsoggmeevenue from display advertising we sell tallag real estate advertisers and consume
brands seeking to reach our attractive audiendeinBrfor our display advertisements is based oregtsement size and position on our web
page, and fees are based on a per-impressionapenclick basis.

To date, we have focused our efforts and investsn@mideveloping and delivering superior products@ser experiences, attracting
consumers and real estate professionals to ouratpdake, and growing our revenue. We have invdstedily to build our robust data and
analytics platform, and continue to spend signifitaon technology and engineering.

We believe that the growth of our business andatuire success are dependent upon many factorgding our ability to increase our
audience size and user engagement, grow the nwhbebscribers in our marketplace, increase theevaf our advertising products, and
successfully invest in our growth. While each afgh areas presents significant opportunities fothey also pose important challenges tha
must successfully address in order to sustain it of our business and improve our operatingltes

Key Business Metric

To analyze our business performance, determinedianhforecasts, and help develop long-term stiatelans, we review the following
key business metrics:

. Monthly Unique Visitor. We count a unique visitor the first time a congouir mobile device with a unique IP address aesessl
website or our mobile applications during a calendanth. If an individual accesses our website obite applications using
different IP addresses within a given month, thet ficcess by each such IP address is countedegeeate unique visitor. Our
number of monthly unique visitors includes mobilenthly unique visitors. We calculate our monthlyque visitors based on the
monthly average over the applicable period. We wieanthly unique visitors as a key indicator of grewth in our business and
audience reach, the quality of our products, aedsttength of our brand awareness. In the yeardeBDdeember 31, 2012, the
number of monthly unique visitors increased to 28illion from 14.8 million in the year ended Deceent31, 2011, a 56% increa
We attribute the growth in our monthly unique \as# principally to our increasing brand awaren#ss popularity of our mobile
products and the overall industry trend of morescwners using the web and mobile applications teares housing decisior
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. Mobile Monthly Unique Visitor. We count a unique mobile visitor the first timenabile device with a unique IP address accesse
our website or our mobile applications during aendar month. We calculate our mobile monthly uniggéors based on the
monthly average over the applicable period. Theskile monthly unique visitors are included in thenthly unique visitors metri
We view mobile monthly unique visitors as a keyidgadior of the growth in our business and audieseeh, and believe that having
more unique visitors using our mobile applicationis drive faster growth in our revenue. We plaretgpand our mobile products
support our rapidly growing mobile user base. nykar ended December 31, 2012, the number of enotmhthly unique visitors
increased to 5.1 million from 2.1 million in theareended December 31, 2011, a 143% increase. Vilmugdtthis growth to the
overall adoption of smartphones and the growth olbite applications and mobile web use by consunWisalso attribute the
growth in our mobile monthly unique visitors to aocreased efforts in developing a mobile webgite mobile applications. Due
the significant growth rate of usage of our mopiteducts and solutions, our mobile monthly unigis#ters has grown as a
percentage of our monthly unique visitors over ne@eriods and we expect this trend to contil

. New Contributions to Us-Generated ContentWe define user-generated content as any contertilcuted by a user through our
website or mobile applications, such as Q&A dismuss blogs, blog comments, user votes, recommantatand neighborhood
ratings and reviews. We view the changes in thamel of new contributions to usgenerated content as a key indicator of our
engagement and the strength of our community.drydar ended December 31, 2012, new contributmnsér-generated content
increased by 3.1 million contributions, and we rfave over 7 million cumulative contributions on ooarketplace. We expect n
contributions to user-generated content to conttowgrow as our monthly unique visitors and totddscribers grow and as we
introduce new features to our marketplace. Whigeathsolute number of new contributions to user-gged content may continue
to grow period-over-period, the rate of growth kmsved and we expect that the rate of growth maficoe to slow as the
aggregate size of our user-generated content ieseslVe believe the slowing growth rate of new rdoutions to user-generated
content is a function of the large historical numbienew contributions to user-generated contertmmarketplace, which makes
achievement of increasing rates of growth morelehging. We continue to focus on promoting new dbations to usegenerates
content to increase the engagement of our usehsowit marketplace

. Total Subscribers We define a subscriber as a real estate professiath a paid subscription at the end of a perioutal
subscribers has been, and we expect will contioleef a key driver of revenue growth. It is alsaraticator of our market
penetration, the value of our products, and thaetteness of our consumer audience to real estafessionals. As of
December 31, 2012, we had 24,443 total subscribet§% increase from 16,849 total subscribers &eoémber 31, 2011. We
attribute this growth to our increasing sales amak®ting efforts, principally from the launch anagth of our inside sales team,
well as growth in monthly unique visitors. Althoughr total subscribers are growing period-overguand we expect total
subscribers to continue to grow, the rate of grow#ly slow as we increase efforts to sell more prtsito existing subscribers. In
addition, subscribers often purchase subscripfionkmited periods as a result of seasonalitypasd of their advertising campaig
and other factors

. Average Monthly Revenue per Subscr.. We calculate our average monthly revenue percsiltes by dividing the revenue
generated from subscriptions in a period by theagenumber of subscribers in the period, dividgairaby the number of months
in the period. Our average number of subscribecalmulated by taking the average of the beginaimgj ending number of
subscribers for the period. Our average monthlgmere per subscriber is a key indicator of our ghiti monetize our marketplace,
and we monitor changes in this metric to measwetfectiveness of our marketplace monetizaticategy. In the year ended
December 31, 2012, our average monthly revenusuyiescriber increased to $156 from $110 in the gaded December 31, 2011,
a 42% increase. We have been able to increaseverage monthly revenue per subscriber by launchévg products to sell to
existing customers, raising prices in certain gapgic markets, and selling to existing subscrilbee:
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additional advertising inventory created by traffrowth to our marketplace. In addition, in geodpiapnarkets that show strong
demand for our subscription products—those whereritory is sold out and wait lists to purchasemaducts exist—average
monthly revenue per subscriber is higher than irketa with less demand for our products. Whilealierage monthly revenue per
subscriber has increased and may continue to iseri@aabsolute dollars period-over-period, the ohtecrease has slowed and we
expect that the rate of increase may continuediw sk the average monthly revenue per subscribezases. We believe that the
slowing growth rate of our average monthly revepeesubscriber is the result of our larger subscitase and the resulting
challenge associated with achieving higher growaths. Despite this slowing growth rate, we belierechave significant
opportunities to continue to increase average nipndvenue per subscriber by further penetratingketa and by offering new
products to existing subscribe

Our key business metrics are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Monthly unique visitors (in thousands) 23,14 14,77¢ 7,93¢
Mobile monthly unique visitors (in thousanc 5,09( 2,08¢ 484
New contributions to us-generated content (in thousan 3,05( 1,991 1,38¢
Total subscribers (at period er 24,44  16,84¢  10,07(
Average monthly revenue per subscriber 15€ 11C 80

Components of Statements of Operations

Revenue
Our revenue is comprised of marketplace revenuaraadia revenue.

Marketplace Revenu®larketplace revenue primarily consists of our fbfed subscription products. We currently provide sets of
products to real estate professionals on a sultigeripasis. The first set of products, which in@ddulia Local AdsandTrulia Mobile Ads,
enables real estate professionals to promote theessen our search results pages and propertylslptages for a local market area. Real e!
professionals purchase subscriptions to this priooiased upon their specified market share fonaarizip code, at a fixed monthly price, for
periods ranging from one month to one year, withipg depending on the location and the percentdgearket share purchased. We price
Trulia Local AdsandTrulia Mobile Adssubscriptions similarly based on geography, theesbha market, and demand. Our second set of
products allows real estate professionals to regeieminent placement of their listings in our sbaesults. Real estate professionals sign up
for subscriptions to this service at a fixed moythlice for periods that generally range from orenth to 12 months. We recognize our
subscription revenue ratably over the term of thssription.

Media RevenuaVe derive media revenue from sales of display dtbesnents to real estate advertisers, such as hoprevement
companies and mortgage lenders. We also deriveammedénue from sales of display advertisementsadihg consumer brands, such as hom
furnishings, cable, and automotive companies. Cetlimproducts enable our customers to display &dearents to promote their brand on
website and mobile websita.trulia.com. Pricing is based on advertisement size and posith our web page, and fees are billed monthly,
based on a per impressions or a per click basidssions are the number of times an advertiseiméraded on our web page, and prices are
measured on a cost per thousand, or CPM, bastksGire the number of times users click on an ddeenent, and prices are measured on a
cost per click, or CPC, basis. CPC is based omdingber of times a user clicks an advertisemens ifedia revenue is recognized in the
periods the clicks or impressions are delivered. i®edia revenue is generated primarily through dibeaments placed on our website,
although we do generate some media revenue frgofagliadvertising on our mobile website. We pricgpthy advertisements on our mobile
website on a per-impression basis. We also
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ran one display advertising campaign for an adserin November and December 2011 on our iPad mabiplication, and we may offer
display advertising on our other mobile applicasiomthe future. We do not currently generate aegiarevenue from our mobile applicatic
As our mobile web pages offer less space on whidhigplay advertising, a shift in user traffic framar website to mobile products could
decrease our advertising inventory and negativiégchour media revenue. We do not believe thahewe experienced a shift in user traffic
from our website to our mobile applications, as m@nthly unique visitors and mobile monthly uniqusitors each continued to grow at a
rapid pace.

Cost and Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenu€ost of revenue consists primarily of expensededlto operating our website and mobile applicajamcluding those
associated with the operation of our data centestihg fees, customer service related headcoumnmgs including salaries, bonuses, benefits
and stock-based compensation expense, licenseentpatedit card processing fees, third-party @tar fees, and allocated overhead.

Technology and Developmefiechnology and development expenses consist ptintdrheadcount related expenses including salaries
bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensatiomsxphird-party contractor fees, and allocatedlmed primarily associated with
developing new technologies. Technology and devatoy also includes amortization expenses relatedpdalized costs from internal and
external development activities for our marketplatie expect our technology and development expdndsesrease in absolute dollars as we
continue to invest in the development of our prasluc

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses consist primarilyeatibount-related expenses including salaries, lesnus
commissions, benefits and stock-based compensatipense for sales, customer service, marketingpahlic relations employees and third-
party contractor fees. Sales and marketing expaaisesnclude other sales expenses related to gronad and marketing activities, and
allocated overhead. We expect sales and marketipgnses to increase in absolute dollars as wealil#¢ional employees to expand our sales
force and to support our direct marketing initia8v

General and Administrativé&eneral and administrative expenses consist pliynafrheadcount related expenses including salaries
bonuses, and benefits and stock-based compensapemse for executive, finance, accounting, ldgahan resources, recruiting, and
administrative support personnel. General and aidtnétive expenses also include legal, accounting,other third-party professional service
fees, bad debt, and allocated overhead. We expectemeral and administrative expenses to increaalesolute dollars as we expand our
financial, accounting, and legal personnel andugss to support our public reporting requirement.

Interest Income
Interest income consists primarily of interest edron our cash and cash equivalent and short-teresiment balances.

Interest Expense

Interest expense consists primarily of interesbonoutstanding long-term debt and capital leadigatons. See Note 6 of our audited
financial statements included elsewhere in thisuahiReport on Form 10-K for more information about longterm debt and Note 7 for mc
information about our capital lease obligations.

Change in Fair Value of Warrant Liability

Change in the fair value of the warrant liabilinciudes charges from the remeasurement of ourrpeefetock warrant liability on a
mark-to-market basis as of each period end. Theferped stock warrants became warrants to purat@senon stock upon the completion of
our IPO, at which time the warrant liability wasmeasured to fair value and the remaining liabikys reclassified to additional paiidcapital.
See Note 9 of the audited financial statementsided elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 1@#nfiore information about our preferred
stock warrants.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes has not been hisatlyi significant to our business as we have ireditosses to date. We currently have
federal and state net operating loss carryforwaf@3.4 million and $43.7 million, which expirearious dates beginning in 2025 and 2015
respectively. See Note 12 of our audited finamgialements included elsewhere in this Annual Regoform 10-K for more information
about our provision for income taxes.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbegenerally accepted accounting principleshie nited States, or GAAP. The
preparation of these financial statements requise® make estimates and assumptions that affecepiorted amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue, costs and expenses, and related discdosMesbase our estimates on historical experiendea various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable. In many instances, wie ¢@ve reasonably used different accounting estispyand in other instances changes in th
accounting estimates are reasonably likely to oframn period-to-period. Actual results could diff@gnificantly from our estimates. To the
extent that there are material differences betweese estimates and actual results, our futuradiahstatement presentation, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows &l affected. We believe that the accounting pedicliscussed below are critical to
understanding our historical and future performaasehese policies relate to the more signifieaeas involving our judgments and estimates

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery has occurred, theepia the buyer is fixed or
determinable, and collection is reasonably assWé&consider a signed agreement, a binding inseadtiider, or other similar documentation
reflecting the terms and conditions under whictdpiais will be provided to be persuasive evidencanoirrangement. Collectability is asse:
based on a number of factors, including paymernhjisand the creditworthiness of a customer. i idetermined that collection is not
reasonably assured, revenue is not recognizedaatiiction becomes reasonably assured, whichriergdly upon receipt of cash.

Our revenue includes marketplace revenue and medémue. Marketplace revenue consists primarilsudiscription revenue, which is
recognized ratably over the term of the subscriptMedia revenue consists primarily of advertisensafes, which is recognized in the periods
the clicks or impressions are delivered.

We also enter into arrangements with customersitichtde combinations of cost per thousand impogssior CPM, media placement,
cost per click, or CPC, media placements, and sigten products. Beginning on January 1, 2011 agtepted new authoritative guidance on
multiple-element arrangements, using the prospectigthod for all arrangements entered into or rizdiemodified from the date of adoption.
Under this new guidance, we allocate arrangememgideration in multipleslement revenue arrangements at the inception afrangement t
all deliverables or those packages in which all gonents of the package are delivered at the saneg biased on the relative selling price
method in accordance with the selling price hidrgrevhich includes: (i) vendor-specific objectivddence, or VSOE, if available; (ii) third-
party evidence, or TPE, if VSOE is not availabled #iii) best estimate of selling price, or BESPéither VSOE nor TPE is available.

VSOE -We determine VSOE based on our historical pricimg discounting practices for the specific produbew sold separately. In
determining VSOE, we require that a substantiabmitgj of the standalone selling prices for thesedpicts fall within a reasonably narr
pricing range. For certain subscription products,have been able to establish VSOE.

TPE- When VSOE cannot be established for deliveraibl@sultiple-element arrangements, we apply judgnétit respect to whether
we can establish a selling price based on TPE.i$®BEtermined based
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on competitor prices for similar deliverables whsetd separately. Generally, our go-to-market sigatéffers from that of our peers and
our offerings contain a significant level of diféetiation such that the comparable pricing of cadpcts cannot be obtained.
Furthermore, we are unable to reliably determinatveimilar competitor selling prices are on a stédoide basis. As a result, we have not
been able to establish selling price based on TPE.

BESP- When we are unable to establish selling pricaggd¥SOE or TPE, we use BESP in the allocation cfragement consideration.
The objective of BESP is to determine the pricechihive would transact a sale if the service werd ssjularly on a standalone basis. As
we have not been able to establish VSOE or TPERMW media placements, CPC media placements, atairceubscription products,
we determine BESP for these deliverables basetefotlowing:

. The list price represents a component of our govéoket strategy established by senior managementisd prices are
based on the features of the products offered.élfezgures, which consist of the size and placeiethie advertisements
our website, impact the list prices which vary dapirg on the specifications of the features. Initaah the list prices are
impacted by market conditions, including the condi of the real estate market and economy in gé&reand our
competitive landscape; al

. Analysis of our selling prices for these delivessh

We limit the amount of allocable arrangement comisition to amounts that are fixed or determinabtéthat are not contingent on futt
performance or future deliverables. We regulariyae BESP. Changes in assumptions or judgmentlamges to the elements in the
arrangement could cause a material increase oeasein the amount of revenue that we report @rticplar period.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

We record a provision for doubtful accounts basedthistorical experience and a detailed assessnfi¢imé @ollectability of our accounts
receivable. To assist with the estimate, our mamamgé considers certain factors such as historiqamence, industry data, credit quality, age
of accounts receivable balances, and current eciermnditions that may affect a customer’s abildypay. In cases where we become aware
of circumstances that may impair a specific custsrability to meet its financial obligations, weaord a specific allowance against amounts
due from the customer and thereby reduce the negnézed receivable to the amount we reasonabigueelvill be collected. There is
significant judgment involved in estimating theoatnce for doubtful accounts.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the aggregatehpse price paid over the fair value of the nagitdla assets acquired. Goodwill is not
amortized and is tested for impairment at leastialtiyior whenever events or changes in circumstirgicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. We have determined that we opasad@e reporting unit and have selected Decemésrtiie date to perform our annual
impairment test. The first step of the impairmest involves comparing the fair value of the reipgrunit to its net book value, including
goodwill. If the net book value exceeds its failueg then we would perform the second step of tedwill impairment test to determine the
amount of the impairment loss. When performinguhleiation of our goodwill, we make assumptions rdgey our estimated future cash flo
to determine the fair value of our business. If @stimates or related assumptions change in thesfulve may be required to record impairn
loss related to our goodwill. We have not recogmhiaey goodwill impairments since our inception.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We assess the impairment of long-lived assets wieereyents or changes in circumstances indicatdtibacarrying amount of such
assets may not be recoverable. Recoverabilitysdtago be held and used is
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measured first by a comparison of the carrying amofian asset to the future undiscounted net ftasls expected to be generated by the
asset. If such assets are considered to be impaindichpairment loss would be recognized. When omaas the recoverability of these assets,
we will make assumptions regarding our estimatégréucash flows expected to be generated by tregsadbour estimates or related
assumptions change in the future, we may be redjtirénpair these assets. We have not recognizgihgmairment of long-lived assets to
date.

Product Development Costs

Costs incurred in connection with the developmémtur marketplace are accounted for as followscadits incurred in the preliminary
project and posimplementation stages are expensed as incurrethi€epsts incurred in the application developnstage of a new product
projects to provide significant additional functidity to existing products are capitalized if cérteriteria are met. Maintenance and
enhancement costs are typically expensed as intuBreh costs are amortized on a straight-linestiasér the estimated useful lives of the
related assets, which was estimated to be two yAarertization expense is included in technology development expense in the statement:
of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation costs related to stoskebawards granted to employees based on the tdifaé value of the awards on
the date of grant, net of estimated forfeitures.the stock options we estimate the grant datevidire, and the resulting stock-based
compensation expense using the Black-Scholes epticing model. For the restricted stock units, gnant date fair value equals the market
value of the underlying stock. The grant date faiue of the stock-based awards is recognizedsiragght-line basis over the requisite service
period, which is the vesting period of the respectiwards.

The fair value of the awards granted during thesyeaded December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 wada@idwsing the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weightederage assumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected term (in years) 5.t 5.5 5.8
Expected volatility 53% 55% 55%
Risk-free interest rat 0.9% 1.9% 1.7%
Dividend rate 0% 0% 0%

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requiresube of highly subjective and complex assumptiondiuding the expected term and
the price volatility of the underlying stock, whidetermine the fair value of stock-based awardss@&tassumptions include:

. Expected tern. The expected term represents the period thattuk-based awards are expected to be outstantfegstimate the
expected term of the options based on a study lofghy traded industry peer companies and the hisdbdata on employee
exercises and pc-vesting employment termination behavior taking iatcount the contractual life of the st-based award:

. Expected volatility, The expected volatility is derived from the hrstal stock volatilities of several comparable pcilllisted peer
over a period approximately equal to the expectea bf the stock-based awards. We use this metboduse we have limited
information on the volatility of our common stoc&dause of our short trading history. When makimgslections of our
comparable industry peers to be used in the vityatiblculation, we considered the size, operafiana economic similarities to ¢
principle business operatior
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. Risk-free interest rate The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur&asury yield curve in effect at the time of griortzero
coupon U.S. Treasury notes with maturities apprexaéty equal the expected term of the s-based awards; ar

. Expected dividen. The expected dividend is assumed to be zero dsmwenever paid dividends and have no currensglapay
any dividends on our common sto

In addition to the assumptions used in the Bladke®xs option-pricing model, we must also estimdfarfeiture rate to calculate the
stock-based compensation for our awards. Our torierate is based on an analysis of our actutditares. We will continue to evaluate the
appropriateness of the forfeiture rate based amehtrfeiture experience, analysis of employeaduer, and other factors. Quarterly changes
in the estimated forfeiture rate can have a sigaifi impact on our stock-based compensation exmengdes cumulative effect of adjusting the
rate is recognized in the period the forfeituréneste is changed. If a revised forfeiture rateighbr than the previously estimated forfeiture
rate, an adjustment is made that will result ireerdase to the stock-based compensation expermmieed in our financial statements. If a
revised forfeiture rate is lower than the previguedtimated forfeiture rate, an adjustment is nthdewill result in an increase to the stock-
based compensation expense recognized in our fadastatements.

We will continue to use judgment in evaluating éxpected volatility, expected terms, and forfeittaes utilized for our stock-based
compensation calculations on a prospective basisvé\continue to accumulate additional data relademir common stock, we may have
refinements to the estimates of our expected Vityatexpected terms, and forfeiture rates, whiokild materially impact our future stottasec
compensation expense.

Income Taxes

We account for our income taxes in accordance thigrasset and liability method. Under this methdederred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the expected future tax consempseof temporary differences between the finamejabrting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities, and for operating losses and tax drediryforwards. Management must make assumptjodgments, and estimates to determine
our current provision for income taxes and alsodmferred tax assets and liabilities as well as\ahyation allowance to be recorded against
deferred tax asset.

Our assumptions, judgments, and estimates relatittee current provision for income taxes take mtoount current tax laws, our
interpretation of current tax laws, and possiblecomes of current and future audits conducted byettic tax authorities. We have establishe
reserves for income taxes to address potentialsexpe involving tax positions that could be chajkshby tax authorities. Although we believe
our assumptions, judgments, and estimates arenableg changes in tax laws or our interpretatiotanflaws, and the resolution of potential
tax audits could significantly impact the amountsvided for income taxes in our financial statensent

Our assumptions, judgments, and estimates relatitiee value of a deferred tax asset take intowatgpredictions of the amount and
category of future taxable income, such as incawm foperations or capital gains income. Actual apeg results and the underlying amount
and category of income in future years could remdercurrent assumptions, judgments and, estintdtescoverable net deferred taxes
inaccurate. Any of the assumptions, judgments,emtithates mentioned above could cause our actt@inia tax obligations to differ from our
estimates, thus materially impacting our finanpiasition and results of operations.

Since inception, we have incurred operating lossed,accordingly, we have not recorded signifigaotisions for income taxes for any
of the periods presented. We do not expect anyfgignt changes until we are no longer incurringsies.

We have provided a full valuation allowance for opérating losses, credits, and other deferredgawts for federal and state income ta:
purposes. A valuation allowance is provided wheseldaupon the available evidence management corscthdeit is more likely than not that
some portion of the deferred tax assets will
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not be realized. We maintained a full valuatiooaknce as of December 31, 2012 due to the uncrifimealizing future tax benefits from
net operating loss carryforwards and other defe@ardssets. As of December 31, 2012, we had fededastate net operating loss carry
forwards of $43.4 million and $43.7 million. Thedfal net operating loss carry forward will expatevarious dates beginning in 2025, if not
utilized. If not used, the state net operating lkeessy forward will expire at various dates begimnin the 2015.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronounceisen

Under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups ActO&SJAct, we meet the definition of an “emergingwtio company.” We have
irrevocably elected to opt out of the extendedditaon period for complying with new or revised aaating standards pursuant to Section 107
(b) of the JOBS Act.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-8#rendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureanenbDisclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International FinahBieporting Standard:or IFRS. This pronouncement was issued to provide a comsiste
definition of fair value and ensure that the faatue measurement and disclosure requirementsrailarsbetween U.S. GAAP and IFRS. ASU
2011-04 changes certain fair value measurementiplés and enhances the disclosure requirementisydarly for Level Il fair value
measurements. This pronouncement is effectiveeiponting periods beginning on or after December203,1, with early adoption prohibited.
The adoption of this guidance did not have any ithpa the Company'’s results of operations or fimanmosition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-BEesentation of Comprehensivincome, which requires an entity to present total
comprehensive income, the components of net incamethe components of other comprehensive incatinerén a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmat consecutive statements and eliminates therofat present the components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statementarfgds in stockholders’ equity. In December 2014 RASB issued ASU No. 2011-12,
Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments eoRhesentation of Reclassifications of Iltems OlAccumulated Other Comprehensive
Income in Accounting Standards Update No. -05, which defers the requirement within ASU 2011-6%tesent on the face of the financial
statements the effects of reclassifications owostimulated other comprehensive income on the coemis of net income and other
comprehensive income for all periods presentedirguhe deferral period, entities should continmeeport reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income consisténtie presentation requirements in effect priothte issuance of ASU 20106. We earl
adopted this guidance on January 1, 2012, retrtispc During the years ended December 31, 200212and 2010, we did not have any
other comprehensive income and, therefore, théoastand comprehensive loss was the same for radidsepresented.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011r@8ngibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350fhe amended guidance will allow
companies to assess qualitative factors to deterihihis more-likely-than-not that goodwill mighe impaired and whether it is necessary to
perform the two-step goodwill impairment test reqdi This pronouncement is effective for fiscalrgdaeginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company adopted this standard on January 2, 20k adoption of this accounting standard updateot have any material impact on
operating results or financial position.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of opienas for the periods presented in dollars and pereentage of our total revenue:
Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue $ 68,08t $38,51¢ $19,78¢
Cost and operating expens: ()
Cost of revenu® 9,99¢ 5,79¢ 3,657
Technology and developme 20,19¢ 14,65( 8,80z
Sales and marketir 33,741 17,71 8,63¢
General and administrati 13,65¢ 6,12: 2,501
Total cost and operating expen: 77,60« 44,28¢ 23,59¢
Loss from operation (9,519 (5,767) (3,819
Interest incomt 50 17 15
Interest expens (1,016 (389) (39)
Change in fair value of warrant liabili (369) (16) —
Loss before provision for income tax (10,859 (6,15%) (3,839
Provision for income taxe (67) — —
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $(10,92)) $(6,15%) $(3,839)

@) siock-based compensation was allocated as foll

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Cost of revenu $ 32 $ 11 $ 8

Technology and developme 93C 482 17€

Sales and marketir 39¢ 182 97

General and administrati\ 1,21( 808 73

Total stocl-based compensatic $ 2,57( $ 1,48¢ $ 354

(2 Amortization of product development costs was idelliin technology and development as follc $ 1,10¢ $ 70¢ $ 36€
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Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Percentage of Revenue
Revenue 10C% 10C% 10C%
Cost and operating expens
Cost of revenu 15 15 18
Technology and developme 30 38 44
Sales and marketir 49 46 44
General and administrati\ _ 20 16 _13
Total cost and operating expen: 114 11t 11¢
Loss from operation (14) (15) (29
Interest incomt * * *
Interest expens () (D) *
Change in fair value of warrant liabili * * —
Loss before provision for income tax (16) (16) (29
Provision for income taxe — — —
Net loss attributable to common stockholc _(16)% _(16)% _(19%
* Less than 0.5% of revent
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012,20 and 2010
Revenue
Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Revenue $68,08¢ $38,51¢ $19,78¢ T71% 95%

2012 Compared to 2011

Revenue increased to $68.1 million in the year dridlecember 31, 2012 from $38.5 million in the yeaded December 31, 2011, an
increase of $29.6 million, or 77%. Marketplace rawe and media revenue represented 67% and 33%ctesby, of total revenue in the year
ended December 31, 2012, compared to 58% and 4&¢ectively, of total revenue in the year endedeDdxer 31, 2011. The increase in total
revenue was attributable to the significant groaftbur subscriber base, an increase in our uniguetiy visitors, and increased prices.

2011 Compared to 2010

Revenue increased to $38.5 million in the year dridlecember 31, 2011 from $19.8 million in the yeaded December 31, 2010, an
increase of $18.7 million, or 95%. Marketplace rave and media revenue represented 58% and 42%gctesy, of total revenue in the year
ended December 31, 2011, compared to 47% and &3¥ectively, of total revenue in the year endedeDdxer 31, 2010. The increase in
marketplace revenue as a percentage of total rewsas the result of significant growth in our sulgimn business, driven by increases in
total subscribers and average monthly revenueyiescsiber, which outpaced the growth of our adsentj business.
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During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011261d, we recognized marketplace revenue and medémue as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Marketplace revenu $45,47¢ $22,25: $ 9,35¢ 104% 13€%
Media revenut 22,61( 16,26¢ 10,42" 3% 56%
Total revenu $68,08¢ $38,51¢ $19,78* 77% 95%

@ Forthe year ended December 31, 2010, becausedueohget established the fair value for each etgnrevenue for multiple element

arrangements was recognized ratably over the adnnan for financial reporting purposes. Howewemrder to provide added
transparency and help facilitate the discussiorihewe have separated marketplace and media re\eErsed on selling prices, which
management has determined to be a reasonable @panathodology

2012 Compared to 2011

Marketplace revenue increased to $45.5 milliorhayear ended December 31, 2012 from $22.3 miitidhe year ended December 31,
2011, an increase of $23.2 million, or 104%. Thaswrimarily attributable to growth in the numbésobscribers, price increases, and sales
our mobile subscription product. The overall sultearbase grew by 45% to 24,443 subscribers dseofear ended December 31, 2012 from
16,849 subscribers as of the year ended Decemb@031. In May 2012, we launched our most significaobile subscription product for
agentsTrulia Mobile Ads, that resulted in an additional $4.4 million ofnketplace revenue for the year ended December®®. Much of
the 42% increase in average monthly revenue pescsibler, from $110 in the year ended December 81120 $156 in the year ended
December 31, 2012 was attributable to increasesd sald higher pricing for odirulia Local Adsproduct as well as sales of dtnulia Mobile
Adsproduct.

Media revenue increased to $22.6 million in therysaled December 31, 2012 from $16.3 million inytear ended December 31, 2011,
an increase of $6.3 million, or 39%. This increase primarily attributable to the strong year oyear growth in our average monthly unique
visitors from 14.8 million in the year ended DecemB1, 2011, to 23.1 million in the year ended Deloer 31, 2012, an increase of 57%. We
also experienced a significant increase in displdwertisement sales to home builders as a restihiedamproving real estate market. Although
there is a correlation between monthly unique eisiand our media revenue, it is not a direct ¢atio. The growth rate in our monthly
unique visitors has outpaced the growth rate ofnoedia revenue, as well as sales of udia Mobile Adsproduct.

2011 Compared to 2010

Marketplace revenue increased to $22.3 milliorhaytear ended December 31, 2011 from $9.4 miltatihé year ended December 31,
2010, an increase of $12.9 million, or 138%. Thizéase in marketplace revenue was primarily atigifile to the 67% increase in the number
of total subscribers from 10,070 as of Decembe2810 to 16,849 as of December 31, 2011. This &sgrén total subscribers resulted in a .
million increase in marketplace revenue duringytear ended December 31, 2011 when compared teetreeypnded December 31, 2010. The
increase in marketplace revenue was also partipuaithble to a 38% increase in the average moméhvgnue per subscriber from $80 in the
year ended December 31, 2010 to $110 in the yemdebecember 31, 2011. This increase in averagmuevper subscriber resulted in a 4
million increase in marketplace revenue duringytbar ended December 31, 2011 when compared taetiveepded December 31, 2010.

Media revenue increased to $16.3 million in therysaled December 31, 2011 from $10.4 million inytear ended December 31, 2010,
an increase of $5.9 million, or 56%. This incremsmedia revenue was primarily the result of theéase in the number of impressions sold o
a CPM or CPC basis as we recognized an increaseenall advertiser demand for our display adverfisnventory during the year ended
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December 31, 2011. These increases were primanigrdby an increase in our average monthly unigsiéors from 7.9 million in the year
ended December 31, 2010 to 14.8 million in the weated December 31, 2011, an increase of 86%.

Cost of Revenue

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands) _
Cost of revenu $9,99¢ $5,79¢ $3,657 73% 58%

2012 Compared to 2011

Cost of revenue increased to $10.0 million in tearyended December 31, 2012 from $5.8 million éytbar ended December 31, 2011,
an increase of $4.2 million, or 73%. This incremseost of revenue was primarily the result of &illion increase in headcount and related
benefits due primarily to the growth in sales arpamsion of the business overall, and a $1.5 milicrease attributable to content license
fees, hosting fees, and credit card fees due toehigubscription revenue. Cost of revenue remaahd&% of revenue in the year ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2011 Compared to 2010

Cost of revenue increased to $5.8 million in tharyended December 31, 2011 from $3.7 million inybar ended December 31, 2010
increase of $2.1 million, or 58%. This increasedst of revenue was primarily the result of a $@iBion increase in headcount and related
benefits due to growth in customer service headcfmliowing the establishment of our new facility Denver in February 2011 and a $0.3
million increase in our credit card fees, a $0.2iam increase in content license fees, and a #lldon increase in hosting fees, due to growth
in our subscriptions and additional traffic. Costevenue declined to 15% of revenue in the yededrDecember 31, 2011 from 18% of
revenue in the year ended December 31, 2010.

Technology and Development Expenses

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Technology and developme $20,19¢ $14,65( $8,80: 38% 66%

2012 Compared to 2011

Technology and development expenses increasedt@ $#llion in the year ended December 31, 201ehf§14.7 million in the year
ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $5.5 milion38%. This increase was comprised primarilg 2.1 million increase in headcount
and related benefits, a $0.5 million increase atlsbased compensation expenses, a $0.4 million ine@asbutable to higher facilities relat
expenses in the current year due to significarsgdieald improvements completed in the year ende@mber 31, 2012 in our Denver facility,
as well an increase in capitalized product devekneosts. Technology and development expensesataad to 30% of revenue in the year
ended December 31, 2012 from 38% of revenue iye¢he ended December 31, 2011, reflecting the iser@aour revenue.

2011 Compared to 2010

Technology and development expenses increasedit@ #iillion in the year ended December 31, 201inf8.8 million in the year
ended December 31, 2010, an increase of $5.9 milin66%. This increase was
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primarily the result of a $3.4 million increasehieadcount and related benefits a $0.3 million imseen stock-based compensation expenses,
$0.6 million increase in equipment and facilitietated costs to support the headcount growth,&i@llion increase related to additional
recruiting and travel expenses, and a $0.3 millimnease related to amortization of capitalizeddpot development costs. Technology and
development expenses declined to 38% of reventieigear ended December 31, 2011 from 44% of reventhe year ended December 31,
2010, reflecting the increase in our revenue.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Sales and marketir $33,74° $17,71° $8,63¢ 90% 105%

2012 Compared to 2011

Sales and marketing expenses increased to $33i@miil the year ended December 31, 2012 from $f¥lifon in the year ended
December 31, 2011, an increase of $16.0 millior®086. This increase was primarily the result ofLld.8 million increase in headcount and
related benefits associated with the expansiorunfales personnel to support our revenue grow$, 2million increase in stock-based
compensation, and a $2.5 million increase in margeind advertising expenses due to the increasekleting activities for Trulia Mobile Ad
These increases were partially offset by a $1.8anidecrease in external contractor fees as weedsed usage of external contractors and
hired more full time employees. Sales and markegixygenses increased to 49% of revenue in the yeldeDecember 31, 2012 from 46% of
revenue in the year ended December 31, 2011, dagb&tantial headcount growth in our sales and etiaud function and marketing expense
associated with the launch of otnulia Mobile Adproduct in May 2012.

2011 Compared to 2010

Sales and marketing expenses increased to $17i@miil the year ended December 31, 2011 from $8lbon in the year ended
December 31, 2010, an increase of $9.1 millior,a5%. This increase was primarily the result ofial$nillion increase in headcount and
related benefits, a $2.7 million increase in cotisglcosts largely for temporary contractors whenopened our new Denver facility, where
subsequently hired to expand our sales team, an§illion increase in facilities related costs, a%fillion increase in depreciation due to our
growth and a $0.4 million increase in marketing addertising expenses. Sales and marketing expénsessed to 46% of revenue in the y
ended December 31, 2011 from 44% of revenue iyehe ended December 31, 2010.

General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
General and administratiy $13,65¢ $6,12: $2,501 122% 145%

2012 Compared to 2011

General and administrative expenses increased3d $illion in the year ended December 31, 2016 f@6.1 million in the year ended
December 31, 2011, an increase of $7.5 millior,28%. This increase was primarily the result o2@3$nillion increase in headcount and
related benefits, a $0.4 million increase in stbelksed compensation expenses, a $0.3 million ineiedacilities related expenses due to
headcount growth, and a $2.5 million increase éndhtside accounting services related to our IPSeiptember 2012. General and
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administrative expenses increased to 20% of revenie year ended December 31, 2012 from 16%\mae in the year ended Decembe!
2011 primarily due to the significant increase im inancial, accounting, and legal headcount awdeased expenses for third party service
providers to support our transition to being a fut#porting company.

2011 Compared to 2010

General and administrative expenses increased.1onilion in the year ended December 31, 2011 &% million in the year ended
December 31, 2010, an increase of $3.6 millior,45%. This increase was primarily the result oL&3$nillion increase in headcount and
related benefits, a $0.8 million increase in prei@sal services related to legal, recruiting, aocbanting as we scaled our business, and a $0
million increase in stock-based compensation exgerSeneral and administrative expenses increaskgit of revenue in the year ended
December 31, 2011 from 13% in the year ended Deeefith 2010.

Interest Expense

Year Ended December 31 2011 to 201 2010 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Interest expens $1,01¢ $ 38¢ $ 39 161% 897%

2012 Compared to 2011

Interest expense increased to $1.0 million in & ynded December 31, 2012 from $0.4 million éytbar ended December 31, 2011,
an increase of $0.6 million, or 161%. The increasatributable to an incremental interest experss®ciated with our outstanding
indebtedness.

2011 Compared to 2010

Interest expense increased to $0.4 million in tk&rynded December 31, 2011 from $39,000 in thegreded December 31, 2010. This
increase was primarily the result of the incremieinterest expense associated with the increasadipal amount of our outstanding
indebtedness, which increased from $2.0 millionfa3ecember 31, 2010 to $9.6 million as of Decengier2011.

Change in Fair Value of Warrant Liability

Year Ended December 31 2012 to 201 2011 to 201
2012 2011 2010 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Change in fair value of warrant liabili $(369) $(1€) $— 2,20€6% N/A

2012 Compared to 2011

Change in fair value of warrant liability increased$368,766) in the year ended December 31, 2@H2 ($15,938) in the year ended
December 31, 2011, an increase of $ 352,828, 06%2 This increase is attributable to an increngaé fair value of the warrant to purchase
convertible preferred stock. We issued this warvamtn a new credit facility was established in 8ayter 2011. Upon the first public filing of
our registration statement in August 2012, the-difition provisions in this warrant terminated. &sesult, the preferred stock warrant liabi
was remeasured to fair value and the remainingit\alvas reclassified to additional paid-in capitenmediately prior to completion of our
initial public offering in September 2012, the
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preferred stock converted to common stock andwhisant to purchase preferred stock convertedaént@rrant to purchase common stock.
Because this warrant no longer contains anti-difupirovisions, this warrant will no longer be rem@®d to fair value on an ongoing basis.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following unaudited quarterly statements ofraiens data for each of the eight quarters inytrgr ended December 31, 2012 have
been prepared on a basis consistent with our alditaual financial statements included in this AairRReport on Form 10-K and include, in
our opinion, all normal recurring adjustments neeeg for the fair presentation of the financiabimhation contained in those statements. Our
historical results are not necessarily indicatif/éhe results that may be expected in the futuhe fbllowing quarterly financial data should be
read in conjunction with our audited financial etaents and the related notes included in ItemtBisfAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

Three Months Ended

March 31, March 31,
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue $ 20,55¢ $ 18,54« $ 16,82¢ $ 12,16: $ 11,73 $ 10,53¢ $ 9,302 $ 6,94¢
Cost and operating expens(®)

Cos(tz)of revenue (exclusive of amortization)

2,692 2,61t 2,48¢ 2,20¢ 1,79¢ 1,642 1,34: 1,01¢

Technology and developme 5,05¢ 5,23¢ 5,25¢ 4,64¢ 4,37: 3,62¢ 3,618 3,03¢

Sales and marketir 10,10¢ 8,441 9,122 6,07t 5,42¢ 5,01C 4,08¢ 3,19:

General and administrati 4,00¢ 3,631 3,054 2,971 1,93: 1,66( 1,16¢€ 1,36¢

Total cost and operating expen 21,86 19,92: 19,92: 15,897 13,52¢ 11,93¢ 10,20¢ 8,611

Loss from operation (2,309 (2,379) (3,099 (3,739 (2,799 (2,405 (90€) (1,665)

Interest incomi 2€ 3 4 3 7 4 3 3

Interest expens (242) (26¢) (239 (252) (254) (94) (13) (28)

Change in fair value of warrant liabili — (46) (107) (21€) (16) — — —

Loss before provision for income tax (2,525 (1,689 (3,440 (4,200 (2,059 (2,495 (91€) (2,690

Provision for income taxe (67) — — — — — — —

Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (1,599 $ (1,689 $ (3,440 $ (4,200 $ (2,059 $ (1,499 $ (916) $ (1,690

Net loss per share attributable to comr

stockholders, basic and dilut $ (0.06) $  (0.19 $ (049 $ (0.61) $  (0.30 $ (0.2 $ (0.14) $  (0.2¢)

Weighted average shares used in computing ne

per share attributable to common stockholder:

basic and dilute: 27,328,41 8,805,72, 7,017,44 6,882,06! 6,772,66 6,720,26i 6,579,64 6,552,49;
Other Financial Information:
Adjusted EBITDAG $ 564 $ 301 $ (1,759 $ (2,47 $ (67%) $ (400) $ (91) $ (623)
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(1) stock-based compensation was allocated as foll:

Cost of revenu

Technology and developme
Sales and marketir
General and administrati

Total stocl-based compensatic

(@ Amortization of product development costs was
included in technology and development as follc

®

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31, Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands)
$ 12 $ 6 $ 9 $ 5 $ 4 $ 4 $ 1 $ 2
301 252 184 192 162 16C 10C 5¢
12z 97 124 55 47 44 42 5C
32€ 437 234 213 12¢ 96 96 487
$ 761 $ 79 $ 551 $ 465 $  34: $ 304 $  23¢ $ 59¢
$ 361 $  26€ $ 207 $ 274 $ 261 $ i8¢ $  14¢ $ 11¢

presented in accordance with generally acceptenuatiog principles in the United Stat

Marketplace revenu
Media revenur

Total revenug

Percentage of Revenue
Revenue
Cost and operating expens
Cost of revenu
Technology and developme
Sales and marketir
General and administratiy
Total cost and operating
expense
Loss from operation
Interest incom
Interest expens
Change in fair value of warrant liabili
Loss before provision for income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net loss attributable to common stockholc

* Less than 0.5% of reveni

Three Months Ended

See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for more infation and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA tot hess, the most directly comparable financial nueagalculated and

Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31, Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands)

$13,85: $ 11,89( $11,04¢ $ 8,68 $ 7,29¢ $ 6,23¢ $ 5,05: $ 3,66¢

6,702 6,654 5,77¢ 3,47¢ 4,43¢ 4,297 4,24¢ 3,28

$20,55¢ $ 18,54« $16,82¢ $ 12,16 $11,73° $ 10,53: $ 9,307 $  6,94¢

Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31, Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31,

2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011

100% 100% 100% 100% 10(% 100% 10(% 10C%

13 14 15 18 15 16 14 15

25 28 31 38 37 34 3¢ 44

49 46 54 50 4€ 48 44 46

19 20 18 24 1€ 16 13 20

10€ 107 11€ 131 11% 113 11C 124

(7) (7) (18) (31) (19) (13) (10) (29)

* * * * * * * *

(1) (1) () (2 (2 () * *

— - W @ - - . —

(§) 9 (20) (39) (19) (14) (10) (29)
(8)% (9)% (20)% (35)% (18)% (14)% (10)% (24)%
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Adjusted EBITDA

The following table presents a reconciliation ofjidgled EBITDA to our net loss, the most compar&#eAP measure, for each of the
periods indicated below. See the section titledé&ed Financial and Other Data” for the detailecbnciliation to our net loss and for more
information on our use and the limitations of Ad@tsEBITDA as a measure of our financial perfornganc

Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30 March 31,
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Dec. 31, Sept. 30,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands)
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $(1,597) $(1,689 $(3,440 $(4,200) $(2,059 $(1,49% $(91€) $(1,690
Non-GAAP adjustments

Interest incom (26) 3 4 3 (7) (4) 3 3
Other expens 242 26¢ 23¢ 252 254 94 13 28
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,11z 88¢ 78¢ 797 77t 701 57€ 444
Change in fair value of warrant liabili — 46 107 21¢ 16 — — —
Stoclk-based compensatic 761 793 551 46¢ 34z 304 23¢ 59¢
Provision for income taxe 67 — — — — — — —

Adjusted EBITDA $ 564 $ 301 $(1,759) $(247) $ (679 $ (400 $ (91) $ (629

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2012, our principal sourcesopifidlity were cash and cash equivalents totalin@0$d million which consists of bank
deposits and money market funds. On September@22, 2ve completed our IPO pursuant to which we 5¢€0,000 shares of our common
stock, which includes 900,000 shares sold purstaattie exercise by the underwriters of an optiopurchase additional shares, at a public
offering price of $17.00 per share, resulting ihpr@ceeds to us of $89.4 million, after deductimglerwriting discounts and commissions and
offering expenses payable by us. In addition, a#roth000,000 shares were sold by certain selliockbblders. We did not receive any
proceeds from sales by the selling stockholdeisr Ry the IPO, our operations were financed primday the net proceeds of $32.6 million
from the sales of shares of our convertible preféstock and $15.2 million in proceeds from theasee of indebtedness. As of December 31
2012, we had $9.8 million of outstanding debt framredit facility, which reflects a debt discoufiti@41,000.

We have incurred cumulative losses of $47.1 milfrmm our operations to date, and expect to inddiitional losses in the future. We
believe that our cash balances and the cash flewsrgted by operations will be sufficient to satisdir anticipated cash needs for working
capital and capital expenditures for at least #nd 42 months. However, our future capital requiate will depend on many factors, including
our rate of revenue growth, the cash that may bd irsconnection with acquisitions or other investits, the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities, and the timing and extenvof spending to support our technology and devetoprafforts. To the extent that existing
cash and cash equivalents, and cash from operatieriasufficient to fund our future activities, wey need to raise additional funds through
public or private equity or debt financing. Addita funds may not be available on terms favorablestor at all.
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Credit Facility

In September 2011, we entered into a loan and sgagreement with Hercules Technology Growth Calpltc., or Hercules, providing
for a secured term loan facility, or the creditifiag in an aggregate principal amount of up t@¥2million to be used for general business
purposes. The indebtedness we incurred underdghnezment is secured by substantially all of ouetssd his agreement contains customary
affirmative and negative covenants, including carea that limit or restrict our ability to, amonther things, incur additional indebtedness,
grant liens, make investments, repurchase stogkdp#ends, transfer assets, merge or consolidaig: make acquisitions. As of Decembet
2012, we had drawn $10.0 million in term loans urttle credit facility. Our ability to draw additiahfunds under the credit facility expired on
December 31, 2012.

Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our cash flows fa periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 4,15¢ $1,132 $(1,120)
Cash used in investing activiti (1,970 (6,63¢) (3,479
Cash provided by financing activiti 90,79: 8,152 1,407

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities for the yeraded December 31, 2012 was $4.2 million. The pgimamponent of our cash flows
during the year ended December 31, 2012 was ouosebf $10.9 million. The cash flows from our hets were more than offset by our non-
cash operating activities and net cash flows pexvithrough changes in certain of our operatingtass®l liabilities. Specifically, we
recognized non-cash charges of $3.6 million forrdeiption and amortization of our property and pqeént, $2.6 million for stock-based
compensation, and $0.4 million for the fair valeeneasurement of the preferred stock warrant ItgbllVe also recognized changes in
operating assets and liabilities which provided3$8illion of cash from operating activities. Of4t$8.3 million, $1.0 million related to an
accrued withholding tax from stock options exerdstected from a former employee, which we renditie the appropriate tax authorities a
December 31, 2012. The primary driver of the changeur operating assets and liabilities was ab $#8llion increase in deferred revenue
due to the increase in the number of total substsibnd average monthly revenue per subscribanglthe year. Changes in our operating
assets and liabilities were also affected by aree in accrued liabilities in the amount of $hiBion, due primarily to the overall growth in
our business during the year; increases in acaoegpensation and benefits of $2.5 million due ®dhowth in our headcount, an increase in
accounts receivable of $2.5 million, primarily doeour revenue growth but also to timing of coliecs; and increases in prepaid expenses ar
other current assets of $0.9 million mainly duexpansion of our facilities in Denver and overatigth in our business.

Cash provided by operating activities for the yeraded December 31, 2011 was $1.1 million. The pgimamponent of our cash flows
during the year ended December 31, 2011 was odosebf $6.2 million. The cash flows from our feds were more than offset by our non-
cash operating activities and net cash flows pexvithrough changes in certain of our operatingtass®l liabilities. Specifically, we
recognized non-cash charges of $2.5 million fordejption and amortization of our property and pqent, $1.5 million for stock-based
compensation, and $0.2 million provision for doubtfccounts. We also recognized changes in opgratisets and liabilities which provided
$3.0 million of cash from operating activities. Tim@mary driver of the changes in our operatingtsand liabilities was a $3.0 million
increase in deferred revenue due to the increaeinumber of total subscribers and average mpnglienue per subscriber during the year.
Changes in our operating assets and liabilitieewaso significantly affected by an increase inoaicts receivable of $1.4 million, primarily
due to our revenue growth but also to timing otaiarpayments related to generally
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slower collections during the year. Changes inaparating assets and liabilities were also affebiethcreases in accrued compensation and
benefits of $0.7 million and deferred rent of $hiflion due to the growth in our headcount and ezl facilities during the year. Changes in
our operating assets and liabilities were alsocédfit by an increase in accounts payable and actiallities in the amount of $0.4 million, d
primarily to the overall growth in our businessidgrthe year.

Cash used in operating activities for the year dridlecember 31, 2010 was $1.1 million. The primamnponent of our cash flows duri
the year ended December 31, 2010 was our net f&&& million. The cash flows from our net lossrer@artially offset by our non-cash
operating activities and net cash flows providedulyh changes in certain of our operating assetdialilities. Specifically, we recognized
non-cash charges of $1.0 million for depreciatind amortization of our property and equipment, $fikion for stock-based compensation,
and $0.1 million for provision for doubtful accosnie also recognized changes in operating assétéadilities which provided $1.3 million
of cash from operating activities. The primary driof the changes in our operating assets anditiebiwas a $1.3 million increase in deferred
revenue due to the increase the number of totalcsilders and average monthly revenue per subsatibarg the year. Changes in our
operating assets and liabilities were also sigaifity affected by increases in accrued compensatidrbenefits in the amount of $0.7 million
and accounts receivable of $0.7 million due prifgad our growth in headcount and revenue, respelgti during the year. Changes in our
operating assets and liabilities were also affebieen increase in deferred rent of $0.4 millior guimarily to the growth of our business
during the year and by an increase in accountshpayend accrued liabilities of $0.3 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities for the year endecember 31, 2012 was primarily related to théunits of short-term investments in
the amount of $4.3 million, which was more tharseffby the acquisition of property and equipmernheémamount of $5.5 million.

Historically, cash used in investing activities vaBnarily related to the acquisition of propertydsequipment and patents, which
amounted to $4.8 million and $2.6 million for theays ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Cash useetfiting activities was also
attributable to the increases in our restrictedh@asl deposit balance of $2.2 million and $2.1iomlin the years ended December 31, 2011
2010.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2012 of $90.8 million was coneprisf net proceeds of $89.4
million from our IPO in September 2012 and proceefdl.7 million from the exercise of stock optippartially offset by $0.3 million of
capital lease payments.

Cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2011 of $8.2 million was primaomprised of proceeds of $12.0
million from additional borrowings and $0.4 millidrom exercise of stock options, which were padstiaffset by $4.2 million of capital lease
and long-term debt repayments.

Cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2010 of $1.4 million was primaomprised of proceeds of $2.1
million from additional borrowings which were paity offset by $0.8 million of capital lease and¢pterm debt repayments.
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual gégions as of December 31, 2012:

Payments Due by Perioc
Less Thar 3to5 More Than
1to3
Contractual Obligations: 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)

Long-term debt —

$ 2,80( $ 7,20( $ $ — $10,00(

Interest on long-term debt —
67¢ 50t — 1,18¢

Operating lease® —
2,52¢ 2,66: — 5,19(

Capital leases —
22t 16 — 241

Total contractual obligations —
$ 6,232 $10,38: $ $ — $16,61¢

(@) The Credit Facility carries an interest rate équizhe greater of the prime rate plus 2.75% orf6@she first tranche, and a rate equal to thaigreof the prime rate plus 5.5% or 8.75%
for the second and third tranch

(@  Operating leases include total future minimum Eaytments under noncancelable operating lease agnes.

We had unrecognized tax benefits in the amoun26f@0 as of December 31, 2012 related to uncedaipositions. However, there is
uncertainty regarding when these liabilities watuire settlement so these amounts were not indludhe contractual obligations table abc

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not entered into any off-balance sheehgements and do not have any holdings in variaitégest entities.

Segment Information
We have one business activity and operate in qnartable segment.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to certain market risks in the arglicourse of our business. These risks primanmitjuide interest rate sensitivities as
follows:

Interest Rate Risk

We had cash and cash equivalents of $100.0 m#igoaf December 31, 2012, which consists of banksiepand money market funds.
Such interest-earning instruments carry a degréstefest rate risk. To date, fluctuations in isrincome have not been significant. We also
had total outstanding debt of $9.8 million as otBmber 31, 2012, of which $2.7 million is due withhi2 months. Amounts outstanding under
our credit facility carry variable interest ratemging from 6.0% to 8.75%.

The primary objective of our investment activitisgo preserve principal while maximizing incomehwiut significantly increasing risk.
We do not enter into investments for trading orcsiietive purposes and have not used any deriviitigacial instruments to manage our
interest rate risk exposure. Due to the short-teatnre of our investments, we have not been expmseshr do we anticipate being exposed to
material risks due to changes in interest rates.ifiterest rate on our outstanding debt is varigbleypothetical 10% change in interest rates
during any of the periods presented would not leda material impact on our financial statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Trulia, Inc.
San Francisco, California

We have audited the accompanying balance she@&twulid, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2@hd 2011, and the related
statements of operations, stockholdecity, and cash flows for each of the three yauatise period ended December 31, 2012. Our aulditx
included the financial statement schedule listeart IV, Item 15. These financial statements amahicial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these faiahstatements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigramdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of Trulia, Inc. as of December 31, 2012
2011, and the results of their operations and tteesh flows for each of the three years in theogeended December 31, 2012, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America. Also, in our opinioncls financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial steets taken as a whole, presents fairly, in allemaltrespects, the information set forth therein

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Jose, California
March 3, 2013
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TRULIA, INC.

Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fetounts of $142 and $80 as of December 31, 204.2
2011, respectivel
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Restricted cas
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and bene
Deferred revenu
Deferred rent, current portic
Capital lease liability, current portic
Long-term debt, current portic
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent, net of current porti
Capital lease liability, net of current porti
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (NOTE

STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:

Convertible preferred stock, par value of $0.000p8Bshare, issuable in Series A, B, C and D, aoeshand
42,897,601 shares authorized as of December 32,&0d 2011; no shares and 14,161,444 shares iasdec
outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011; ggtgdiquidation preferences of nil and $33,6098fas
December 31, 2012 and 20

Preferred stock, par value of $0.00001 per shaoé Becember 31, 2012, 20,000,000 and zero shatbsrized
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011; no shares issumdstanding as of December 31, 2012 and :

Common stock, par value of $0.00001 and $0.000@83pare as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 1,000
and 77,200,000 shares authorized as of Decemb&032,and 2011; 27,552,818 and 6,919,892 shanasds
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivel$527318 and 6,919,892 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti'

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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As of December 31

2012 2011
$100,01°  $ 7,041
— 4,30(
6,09t 3,71t
1,41 524
107,52! 15,58
38E —
7,06¢ 5,54¢
2,15¢ 2,15¢
1,83 917
$118,96:  $ 24,19
$ 528 0§ 1,33
2,91¢ 1,50¢
4,50 2,04:
13,29¢ 4,821
444 387
217 292
2,66t 73C
33C 297
24,89: 11,41
407 63¢

16 15€
7,09¢ 8,86-
20 85
32,43( 21,15¢
133,65 39,24:
(47,129 (36,209
86,53 3,03¢
$118,96:  $ 24,19
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TRULIA, INC.
Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenue
Cost and operating expens
Cost of revenue (exclusive of amortization of pretdievelopment cos
Technology and developme
Sales and marketir
General and administrati
Total cost and operating expen:
Loss from operation
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Change in fair value of warrant liabili
Loss before provision for income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net loss attributable to common stockholc

Net loss per share attributable to common stocldrs|dasic and dilute

Weighted average shares used in computing nepkrsshare attributable to common
stockholders, basic and dilut

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

$ 68,08 $ 38,51 $ 19,78
9,99¢ 5,79t 3,657
20,19¢ 14,65( 8,80:
33,74 17,71 8,63¢
13,65¢ 6,12: 2,501
77,60« 44,28t 23,59¢
(9,519) (5,767) (3,819
50 17 15
(1,016) (389 (39
(36¢) (16) —
(10,859 (6,155) (3,839

(67) — —
$ (10,929 $ (6,155 $ (3,839
$ (0.8 $ (0.9 $  (0.69
12,538,76 6,657,04 6,016,55!

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Balance—January 1, 2010
Issuance of common stock
related to acquisition of
Movity, Inc.
Issuance of common stock warrant
in exchange for service
Exercise of common stock optio
Stock-based compensation expens
related to options granted
to employees and nonemployt¢
Net loss and total comprehensive |
Balanc—December 31, 201
Issuance of common stock warrants
in exchange for service
Exercise of common stock optio
Exercise of common stock warrai
Stock-based compensation expens
related to options
granted to employec
Net loss and total comprehensive |
Balanc—December 31, 201
Issuance of common stock in
connection with initial public
offering net of offering cost
Conversion of convertible preferrec
stock to common stock in
connection with initial public
offering
Conversion of preferred stock warr
to common stock warrant in
connection with initial public
offering
Exercise of common stock optio
Exercise of common stock warrz
Shares returned from escrow relate
to acquisition of Movity, Inc
Stock-based compensation expense
related to options
granted to employee
Net loss and total comprehensive |

TRULIA, INC.

Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands, except share data)

Balanc—December 31, 201

. Additional Total
Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock
Accumulated Stockholders
Paid-in
Shares Amount Shares Amount  Capital Deficit Equity

1416144  $ — 582112 $ — 3 34.47: $ (26,21) $ 8,26:
— — 542,68t — 2,21¢ — 2,21¢

= = = = 1€ = 1€

— — 255,58: — 112 — 112

— — — — 371 — 371
— — — — — (3,839 (3,83¢)
14,161,44 — 6,619,39 — 37,19: (30,049 7,14:
— — — — 93 — 93

= = 287,76t = 40¢ = 40¢

— — 12,73 — 45 — 45

— — — — 1,50¢ — 1,50¢
— — — — — (6,15F) (6,155
14,161,44 = 6,919,89; — 39,24 (36,209 3,03¢
— — 5,900,001 89,44’ — 89,44’

(14,161,44) —  14,161,44 = — _ _
— — — — 66€ — 66€

= = 541,44} = 1,681 = 1,681

— — 33,38( — — — —
— — (3,349 — 14 — (14

— — — — 2,63¢ — 2,63¢
= = = = = (10,929 (10,929

— $ — 2755281 $ — $ 13365 $ (47,125 $ 86,53

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TRULIA, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby (used in) operating activiti¢
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stocl-based compensatic
Provision for doubtful accoun
Issuance of common stock warrants in exchangesfwices
Change in fair value of warrant liabili
Amortization of debt discout
Amortization of debt issue co
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and bene
Deferred ren
Deferred revenu
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash acquired from acquisition of Movity, Ii
Increase in restricted cash and depc
Decrease in restricted ca
Reclass from restricted cash to s-term investment
Maturities of shorterm investment
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash used in investing activit
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of unaeiting discounts
Payments of costs related to initial public offer
Proceeds from lor-term debi
Repayment of notes payal
Repayments on lo-term debr
Repayments on capital lease liabi
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warr

Net cash provided by financing activiti

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of perioc
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of perioc

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIOI
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for income tax

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of preferred stock warrants in conneatitim debt financing

Common stock issued in connection with the acqarsivf Movity, Inc

Stocl-based compensation capitalized in product develapouests

Purchase of equipment under capital lei

Net change related to purchase of equipment inuadsgayable and accrued liabilit
Conversion of preferred stock warrants to commonkstvarrant:

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Year Ended

December 31,

2012

2011

2010

$(10,92)) $(6,15%) $(3,839

3588 2,49¢ 962
2,570 1,48 35¢
95 17€ 82

— 93 16
36¢ 1€ —
167 38 =

30 1C —
(2,479 (1,427 (736
(889  (286) (72)
(13) (169 (489
(864) 33¢ 42¢
1,811 100 (126)
2,45¢ 66¢€ 657
(179 651 372
8,46¢ 3,011 1,26t
(65) 8g —
415: 1137 (1,120
= = 904
(769 (2,200 (2,100
— 4,64¢ 34t
— (4300 —
4,30( — —
(5500 (4,789 (2,629
(1,970 (6,639 (3,479
93,27 = =
(3,837 — —
— 12,038 2,10(

— (119 —

— (4049 (172
(33) (18] (34)
1,68 40¢ 11¢
— 45 —
90,79: _ 815. 1,40
92,97¢ 2,646 (3,197
7,041 4,395 7,58
$100,01° $ 7,041 $ 4,39
$ 791 $ 26: $ 38
$ 4 § 1c $ 11
$ — $ 281 $§ —
$ — $§ —  $221¢
$ 66 $ 22 $ 17
$ 11 $ 43¢ $ 15¢
$ 54 $ (58 $ 69¢
$ 666 $ — § —
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TRULIA, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organization and Description of Business

Trulia, Inc. (“Trulia” or the “Company”) was incogpated on June 1, 2005 in the state of DelawaReadvide, Inc. On September 22,
2005, the Company changed its name to Trulia, Tnglia’s online marketplace and mobile applicatitwe$p consumers research homes and
neighborhoods and help real estate professionalsetnthemselves and their listings. The Companytsssription products also provide real
estate professionals with access to transactiayreansumers and help them enhance their onlireepoe.

Initial Public Offering

In September 2012, the Company completed an imitiblic offering (“IPO”) in which the Company sd900,000 shares of its common
stock, which included 900,000 shares sold pursigatite exercise by the underwriters of an optiopurchase additional shares, at a public
offering price of $17.00 per share. In additionptiuer 1,000,000 shares were sold by certain sedliogkholders. The Company received net
proceeds of $89.4 million, after deducting undetiwgi discounts and commissions and offering expepsgable by the Company, from sales
of its shares in the IPO. The Company did not recany proceeds from sales by the selling stocldisldmmediately prior to the completion
of the IPO, all shares of the then-outstanding edtie preferred stock automatically converted iabh aggregate of 14,161,444 shares of
common stock, and an outstanding warrant to puechasvertible preferred stock automatically corsgiinto a warrant to purchase up to
120,961 shares of common stock.

Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry andyrdowly, can be affected by a variety of factéist example, management of the
Company believes that changes in any of the folgvéreas could have a significant negative effadhe Company in terms of its future
financial position, results of operations, or céletvs: ability to obtain additional financing; adwees and trends in new technologies and
industry standards; changes in certain strate¢atioaships or customer relationships; market atzoege of the Company’s products;
development of sales channels; loss of significastomers; litigation or other claims against tlenpany; the hiring, training, and retentior
key employees; and new product introductions bypetitors.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The Company'’s financial statements have been pedparconformity with accounting principles gensralccepted in the United States
of America (“U.S. GAAP").

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statas in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires managetto make estimates and
assumptions about future events that affect theuatsmf assets and liabilities reported, disclosatgout contingent assets and liabilities, and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Semifiems subject to such estimates include: reveecognition; allowance for doubtful
accounts; the useful lives of property and equidrtée recoverability of long-lived assets; theatstination of fair value of the Company’s
common stock, stock options and preferred and camstack warrants; income tax uncertainties, inelgdi valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets; and contingencies. The Company basss éstimates on historical and anticipated regtatsds and various other assumptions th:
the Company believes are reasonable under thewdtamces, including assumptions as to future ev@hese estimates form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assed liabilities and recorded revenue and expahsg¢sire not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results could differ from thoséneates.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk and Credit Evaluatien

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisigipally of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and trade axtsaeceivable. The Company deposits its cash asld equivalents and short-term
investments with major financial institutions tm&nagement believes are of high credit quality; dnew, at times, balances exceed federally
insured limits.

The Company’s accounts receivable are derived frestomers in the United States of America. The Gomgloes not require its
customers to provide collateral to support accotetteivable. The Company performs ongoing credituations of its customers’ financial
condition and maintains allowances for estimatediitiosses. Actual credit losses may differ frdi@ Company’s estimates. No customer
represented 10% or more of total revenue durinyéaes ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010c@be@mer accounted for 10.4% of the
Company’s gross accounts receivable as of Decef®ihet012, no customer accounted for 10% of accaectsvable as of December 31,
2011.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived from selling stipgon products to real estate professionals aonhfdisplay advertising sold to
brand advertisers that operate in the real estaigystem. The Company recognizes revenue wheer§upsive evidence of an arrangement
exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services hbeen rendered to the customer, (iii) the feexisdior determinable, and (iv) collectability is
reasonably assured. The Company considers a sigredment, a binding insertion order or other simdbcumentation reflecting the terms
and conditions under which products will be prodde be persuasive evidence of an arrangement@aliility is assessed based on a numb
of factors, including payment history and the ciwdrithiness of a customer. If it is determined twltection is not reasonably assured, reve
is not recognized until collection becomes reasbnassured, which is generally upon receipt of cdste Company does not request collatera
from its customers.

The Company’s revenues include marketplace revandemedia revenue.

Marketplace revenue consists primarily of subsimipbased revenue. The fixed-fee subscriptased revenue is recognized ratably |
the period the service is provided.

Media revenue primarily consists of advertisingesain a cost per thousand impressions (“CPM”) et per click (“CPC") basis to
advertisers. The Company recognizes these revémties period the clicks or impressions are deédeto the client.

Multiple-Element Arrangements
The Company enters into arrangements with custothatsnclude combinations of CPC media placeme®®syl media placements, and
subscription products.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, becauseothedy had not yet established the fair value éocheslement, advertising revenue
was recognized ratably over the contract term.

Beginning on January 1, 2011, the Company adopedauthoritative guidance on multiple-element ageanents, using the prospective
method for all arrangements entered into or mdtgmiaodified from the date of adoption. Under thisw guidance, the Company allocates
arrangement consideration in multiple-
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element revenue arrangements at the inception afrangement to all deliverables or those packagesich all components of the package
are delivered at the same time, based on thewelsgilling price method in accordance with thersglprice hierarchy, which includes:

(i) vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE")afailable; (ii) third-party evidence (“TPE”) if VIDis not available; and (iii) best estimate
of selling price (“BESP”) if neither VSOE nor TPg available.

VSOE- The Company determines VSOE based on its histgi@zEng and discounting practices for the spegifioduct when sold
separately. In determining VSOE, the Company reguinat a substantial majority of the standalotiingeprices for these products fall
within a reasonably narrow pricing range. For darsaibscription products, the Company has beentatdstablish VSOE.

TPE- When VSOE cannot be established for deliveralvlgsiiltiple-element arrangements, the Company applidgment with respect
to whether it can establish a selling price base@®E. TPE is determined based on competitor pfaesimilar deliverables when sold
separately. Generally, the Company’s go-to-markategy differs from that of its peers and its dfigs contain a significant level of
differentiation such that the comparable pricinghef products cannot be obtained. FurthermoreCtimapany is unable to reliably
determine what similar competitor selling prices an a standalone basis. As a result, the Compasindt been able to establish selling
price based on TPE.

BESP- When the Company is unable to establish sellimgeprsing VSOE or TPE, the Company uses BESP milgsation of
arrangement consideration. The objective of BESP @etermine the price at which the Company warddsact a sale if the service was
sold regularly on a standalone basis. As the Comnpan not been able to establish VSOE or TPE favl @Gfedia placements, CPC me
placements, and certain subscription productsCtirepany determines BESP for these deliverableddbaséhe following:

. The list price represents a component of the gmdiket strategy established by senior manageméstCbmpany’s list
prices are based on the features of the produfeedf These features, which consist of the siziepdeccement of the
advertisements on the Compamyiebsite, impact the list prices which vary depegan the specifications of the features
addition, the list prices are impacted by marketditions, including the conditions of the real ¢éstaarket and economy in
general, and the Compé’'s competitive landscape; a

. Analysis of the Compar’'s selling prices for these deliverabl

The Company limits the amount of allocable arrangeinconsideration to amounts that are fixed orrd@teable and that are not
contingent on future performance or future delitéga. The Company regularly reviews BESP. Changassumptions or judgments or
changes to the elements in the arrangement coukkaamaterial increase or decrease in the ambuenenue that the Company reports in a
particular period.

The Company recognizes the relative fair valudefgroducts as they are delivered assuming alt odlvenue recognition criteria are
met.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of expensegeadlto operating the Company’s website and molgf#ieations, including those
associated with the operation of the Company’s datder, hosting fees, customer service relateddoeat expenses including salaries,
bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensationgxgde&ensed content, credit card fees, thirdypashtractor fees and other allocated
overhead.

Technology and Development

Costs to research and develop the Company’s preduetexpensed as incurred. These costs consisirgyi of technology and
development headcount related expenses includiagess bonuses, benefits and stock-based compemsadpense, third party contractor fees
and allocated overhead primarily associated witretbping new technologies. Technology and develaoyprakso includes amortization of
capitalized costs (“product development costs"peisged with the development of the Company’s miptkee.
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Product Development Costs

Product development costs include costs relatéioetalevelopment of the Company’s marketplace wisichclusive of costs related to
the development of the Company’s delivery poirtte,website and mobile applications. Product deveky costs are accounted for as
follows: all costs incurred in the preliminary peoj and post-implementation stages are expenseduwsed while certain costs incurred in the
application development stage of a new productajepts to provide significant additional functidibato existing products are capitalized if
certain criteria are met. Maintenance and enhanceousts are typically expensed as incurred. Thagamy capitalized costs associated with
product development of $2.5 million, $1.3 millionda$851,000 during the years ended December 32, 2001, and 2010, respectively, and
recorded related amortization expenses of $1.1amjli5708,000 and $366,000 during the years endszdi@ber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. The net book value of capitalizeddpied development costs was $2.0 million and $1llianias of December 31, 2012 and 2011
respectively. Such costs are amortized on a stréiighbasis over the estimated useful lives of #ated assets, which has been estimated
two years. Amortization expense is included in textbgy and development in the statements of opeTsi

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred amihatuded in sales and marketing expenses indbenapanying statements of
operations. The Company’s advertising expenses $&million, $459,000 and $127,000 during thergemded December 31, 2012, 2011,
and 2010, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation costs relatst¢k options and restricted stock units gratdesmployees based on the
estimated fair value of the awards on the dateaitynet of estimated forfeitures. The Companireses the grant date fair value of option
grants, and the resulting stock-based compensexjpense, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing @hdthe grant date fair value of the
stock-based awards is recognized on a straighblasés over the requisite service period, whidihésvesting period of the respective awards.

The Company accounts for stock options issued bemployees based on the fair value of the awargsrdaed using the Blacgchole:
optionjpricing model. The fair value of stock options geghto nonemployees are remeasured as the stdck®pest, and the resulting chal
in value, if any, is recognized in the statemendmérations during the period the related senaregendered.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbethe asset and liability method. Under thisgmoel, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured based on differences tervtiee financial reporting and the tax bases aftasnd liabilities using enacted tax rates the
are expected to be in effect when the difference®agpected to reverse. A valuation allowancetabdished to reduce net deferred tax asse
amounts that are more likely than not to be redlize

The Company accounts for uncertainty in tax pas#ticecognized in the financial statements by reizagma tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position when it is more likely thaot that the position will be sustained upon exatidm, including resolutions of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the igamerits. Income tax positions must meet a nitdy-than-not recognition threshold at the
effective date to be recognized.

The Company’s policy for classifying interest arahalties associated with unrecognized income tagfiis is to include such items as
tax expense.
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Comprehensive Loss

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011260d, the Company did not have any other compiiherncome and, therefore,
the net loss and comprehensive loss were the samadl periods presented.

Net Loss per Share Attributable to Common Stockhetsl

The Company calculates its basic and diluted rest peer share attributable to common stockholdegsriiormity with the two-class
method required for companies with participatingusities. Immediately prior to the completion oét@ompany’s IPO in September 2012, all
shares of outstanding preferred stock automaticalhywerted into 14,161,444 shares of common stockddition, the Company’s outstanding
preferred stock warrants converted into 56,504 comstock warrants. Under the two-class methodenods when the Company has net
income, net income attributable to common stockéralds determined by allocating undistributed e®gsj calculated as net income less cu
period convertible preferred stock non-cumulatixeéd#nds, between common stock and the conventitdéerred stock. In computing diluted
net income attributable to common stockholdersjsiriduted earnings are re-allocated to reflectgbeential impact of dilutive securities. The
Company’s basic net loss per share attributabb®nomon stockholders is calculated by dividing tkeeloss attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number ofshaircommon stock outstanding for the period. dihged net loss per share attributabl
common stockholders is computed by giving effedlt@otential dilutive common stock equivalentéstanding for the period. For purpose
this calculation, options to purchase common stankl, common stock warrants are considered comnogk stjuivalents but have been
excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss ghare attributable to common stockholders aséffect is antidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and higflig linvestments with original maturities of thre®nths or less at the time of
acquisition. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, eaglivalents consisted of money market funds. Adtit card and debit card transactions
that process within one business day are alsoifidaisas cash and cash equivalents. The amountfraimethird party merchant processors for
these transactions classified as cash totaled @23%&nd $207,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 28dfectively.

Short-term Investments

The Company’s short-term investments consist dffaztes of deposit with maturities of 12 monthdass from the balance sheet date.
Short-term investments are reported at cost, wajgroximates fair value, as of each balance staset d

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acotus

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluationssatustomers. Accounts receivable are recordé@d/aiced amounts, net of the
Company’s estimated allowances for doubtful accaifihe allowance for doubtful accounts is estiméi@sed on an assessment of the
Companys ability to collect on customer accounts receigalbhe Company regularly reviews the allowancednsiaering certain factors su
as historical experience, industry data, credilijyage of accounts receivable balances and stuaeonomic conditions that may affect a
customer’s ability to pay. In cases where the Camgpa aware of circumstances that may impair aifipezistomer’s ability to meet their
financial obligations, the Company records a speaifowance against amounts due from the cust@mérthereby reduces the net recognized
receivable to the amount the Company reasonabigvas will be collected. The Company writes-off @aaets receivable against the allowance
when it determines the balance is uncollectible mmtbnger actively pursues collection of the reable. Write-offs of accounts receivable to
bad debt expense were $95,000, $176,000 and $8&160Q) the years ended December 31, 2012, 20H12@10, respectively.
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Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of certificates of degusdd as collateral at a financial institution tethto a property lease in the name of the
Company, and to insure the corporate credit caeddipg. These certificates of deposit have coniedehaturities of 12 months or less. The
balance of the restricted cash was $385,000 arabrof December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are initially recorded &t @nd depreciated using a straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the
assets. Maintenance and repair costs are chargeghémse as incurred. The useful lives of the Caryipgroperty and equipment are as
follows:

Computer equipmet 2 to 3 year:

Office equipment, furniture and fixtur: 3 years

Capitalized product development ca 2 years

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of the lease term or estimated usefu

Depreciation expense of assets acquired througtatigases is included in depreciation and amatitin expense in the statements of
operations.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the aggregatehpse price paid over the fair value of the nagitdla assets acquired. Goodwill is not
amortized and is tested for impairment at leastialtiyior whenever events or changes in circumstirgicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. The Company has determined tbaeitates as one reporting unit and has selecteeniler 1 as the date to perform its ani
impairment test. In the valuation of its goodwilie Company must make assumptions regarding estihfiature cash flows to be derived from
the Company. If these estimates or their relatsdraptions change in the future, the Company matpeired to record impairment for these
assets. The first step of the impairment test me®lcomparing the fair value of the reporting tmiits net book value, including goodwill. If
the net book value exceeds its fair value, therCiimpany would perform the second step of the gdbufmpairment test to determine the
amount of the impairment loss. The impairment leesld be calculated by comparing the implied failue of the Company to its net book
value. In calculating the implied fair value of tBempanys goodwill, the fair value of the Company woulddiecated to all of the other ass
and liabilities based on their fair values. Theesscof the fair value of the Company over the arhassigned to its other assets and liabilitie
the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairmerdds would be recognized when the carrying amougbotiwill exceeds its implied fair
value. The Company was not required to perfornstiend step of the goodwill impairment test duthrgyears ended December 31, 2012 or
2011. There was no impairment of goodwill recorttedhe years ended December 31, 2012 or 2011.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatetibacarrying amount of such
assets may not be recoverable. Recoverabilitysg#tato be held and used is measured first by @aoeson of the carrying amount of an asset
to future undiscounted net cash flows expectedetgdmerated by the asset. If such assets are eosdith be impaired, an impairment loss
would be recognized when the carrying amount ofgset exceeds the fair value of the asset. To thhat€ompany believes that no such
impairment has occurred.

-75-



Table of Contents

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of the Company’s financialriastents, including cash equivalents, short-ternegtwents, accounts receivable and
accounts payable, approximated their fair valuestdithe short period of time to maturity or repayin The carrying value of the restricted
cash approximates its fair value due to the shenibfd of time to maturity. The carrying amount loé tCompany’s preferred stock warrants
represent their fair value. Lortgrm debt is stated at the carrying value as titedtnterest rate approximates market rates diyrawailable tc
the Company. Fair value is defined as the exchange that would be received for an asset or anpgide paid to transfer a liability in the
principal or most advantageous market for the amskdbility in an orderly transaction between ketrparticipants on the measurement date.
Valuation techniques used to measure fair valug masimize the use of observable inputs and mirgntiie use of unobservable inputs. The
current accounting guidance for fair value measergmdefines a three-level valuation hierarchydfeclosures as follows:

Level —Unadjusted quoted prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities;

Level ll—Inputs other than quoted prices includeathim Level | that are observable, unadjusted qdigiéces in markets that are not
active, or other inputs that are observable orbeanorroborated by observable market data; and

Level lll—Unobservable inputs that are supporteditthe or no market activity, which requires thei@pany to develop its own
assumptions.

The categorization of a financial instrument witttie valuation hierarchy is based upon the loweastllof input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The Company’s financidtimsents consist of Level | assets and liabilities Level Il liabilities. Level | assets
include highly liquid money market funds that anelided in cash and cash equivalents and ceréfoat deposit that are included as short-
term investments. Level | liabilities consist ohtpterm debt. Level Il liabilities consist of tipeeferred stock warrant liability. The fair values
of the outstanding preferred stock warrants werasueed upon issuance and at each period end usiogte Carlo model. Inputs used to
determine the estimated fair value of the warrgftility include the estimated fair value of thedenlying stock at the valuation date, the
estimated term of the warrants, risk-free interatds, expected dividends, and the expected vtfaifithe underlying stock.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of prepaid but unrecegrszibscription revenue, advertising fees recaivdiilled in advance of delivery and
for amounts received in instances when revenuegregtion criteria has not been met. Deferred revaauecognized when all revenue
recognition criteria have been met.

Preferred Stock Warrant Liability

The Company’s warrants to purchase convertiblegpredl stock were classified as liabilities and rded in other current liabilities
within the accompanying balance sheets at fairevajpon issuance because these warrants contairiath @nti-dilution provisions which
required the Company to lower the exercise pricéenefwarrants upon any future down-round financifddeerefore, the warrants were subject
to remeasurement to fair value at each balance dahez and any change in fair value was recogriizélte statements of operations. At the
time of issuance, the aggregate fair value of tieseants were determined using a Monte Carlo maded Company adjusted the liability
quarterly for changes in fair value using a Montl@ model until the completion of the IPO in Sepber 2012. Upon conversion of the
underlying preferred stock, the related warrartility was remeasured to fair value and the renmgjtiability was reclassified to additional
paid-in capital.

Segments

The Company’s chief operating decision maker isligf executive officer. The chief executive officeviews financial information
accompanied by information about revenue by protinetfor purposes of
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allocating resources and evaluating financial pemtmce. The Company has one business activityterd ire no segment managers who are
held accountable for operations, or operating tegat levels or components. In addition, the Comyp®operation and customers are located
only in the United States of America. Accordinglye Company has a single reporting segment ancgtipgunit structure.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (‘S@Bt"), the Company meets the definition of an egireg growth company. The
Company has irrevocably elected to opt out of tttereded transition period for complying with newrevised accounting standards pursuant
to Section 107(b) of the JOBS Act.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-8#endments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureanenbDisclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International FinahBieporting Standarc(“IFRS”) . This pronouncement was issued to provide a
consistent definition of fair value and ensure thatfair value measurement and disclosure reqeinésrare similar between U.S. GAAP and
IFRS. ASU 2011-04 changes certain fair value meamsant principles and enhances the disclosure emeints particularly for Level Ill fair
value measurements. This pronouncement is effefdivieeporting periods beginning on or after Decemtb, 2011, with early adoption
prohibited. The Company adopted this standardrndey 2012 as reflected in Note 3 of these findrst&tements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011R&sentation of Comprehensive Incomehich requires an entity to present total
comprehensive income, the components of net incamthe components of other comprehensive incatinerén a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmat consecutive statements and eliminates therofat present the components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statementarfgds in stockholders’ equity. In December 2014 RASB issued ASU No. 2011-12,
Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments ®oRhesentation of Reclassifications of Items O#afumulated Other Comprehens
Income in Accounting Standards Update No. :-05, which defers the requirement within ASU 2011-6%tesent on the face of the financial
statements the effects of reclassifications owostimulated other comprehensive income on the coemis of net income and other
comprehensive income for all periods presentedirguhe deferral period, entities should continmeeport reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income consistéintie presentation requirements in effect priothte issuance of ASU 2011-05. The
Company early adopted this guidance on Januar@12,Zetrospectively. During the years ended Deesr8h, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the
Company did not have any other comprehensive incamdetherefore, the net loss and comprehensigenas the same for all periods
presented.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011r@8ngibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350fhe amended guidance will allow
companies to assess qualitative factors to deterihihis more-likely-than-not that goodwill mighe impaired and whether it is necessary to
perform the two-step goodwill impairment test reqdi This pronouncement is effective for fiscalrgdaeginning after December 15, 2011.
The Company adopted this standard on January 2, 20 adoption of this accounting standard upda&s not have any material impact on
the Company’s results of operations or financiaifan.
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3. Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures and reports its cash equivasort-term investments, restricted cash aniépesl stock warrant liability at fair
value on a recurring basis. The Company’s cashvatgrits and short-term investments are investadoney market funds and certificates of
deposit. The following table sets forth the faitueaof the Company'’s financial assets and liaktiiemeasured on a recurring basis, by level
within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

As of December 31, 201

Level | Level Il Level llI Total
Financial Assets:
Money market fund $ 6,68 $ — $ — $ 6,681
Restricted cas 38t — — 38t
Total financial assel $ 7,06¢ $ — $ — $ 7,06¢

As of December 31, 201

Level | Level Il Level llI Total
Financial Assets:
Money market fund $ 6,67¢ $ — $ — $ 6,67¢
Certificate of deposl 4,30( — — 4,30(
Total financial assel $10,97¢ $ — $ — $10,97¢
Financial Liabilities:
Preferred stock warrant liabili $ — $— $ 297 $ 297

None of the cash equivalents, short-term investmentestricted cash held by the Company had urezhlosses and there were no
realized losses for the years ended December 32, &0d 2011. There were no other-than-temporargimyents for these instruments as of
December 31, 2012 or 2011. As of December 31, 2B&lcontractual maturity of all certificates oposit was less than one year.

Level Il instruments consisted solely of the Comya preferred stock warrant liability in which tfedr value was measured using a
Monte Carlo model. The significant unobservablaiispused in the fair value measurement of the pafestock warrant liability were the fair
value of the underlying stock at the valuation datd the estimated term of the warrants. Genelaltyeases (decreases) in the fair value o
underlying stock and estimated term would resu#t directionally similar impact to the fair valueeasurement.

Upon completion of the Company'’s IPO in Septemldr2the preferred stock warrants had converteddotomon stock warrants and
were no longer carried as a liability recordedatt Value at December 31, 2012. The following tat@ts forth a summary of the changes in the
fair value of the Company’s Level Il financial tidities for the years ended December 31, 2012281d. (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Fair value—beginning of period $ 297 $ —
Issuance of preferred stock warra — 281
Change in fair value of Level Il financial liaktiks 36¢ 16
Reclassification of warrant liability to stockhotd’ equity (666€) —
Fair valu—end of perioc $ — $ 297
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The gains and losses from remeasurement of Leivihdincial liabilities are recorded through theanlge in fair value of warrant liability
in the statements of operations.

4. Balance Sheet Component
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the followinglousands):

As of December 31

2012 2011
Computer equipment $ 6,07¢ $ 4,45¢
Capitalized product development ca 3,23( 2,99¢
Furniture and fixture 974 63C
Leasehold improvemen 2,31¢ 2,041
Software 11 —
Equipment not yet in servic 614 —
Total property and equipment, gr¢ 13,22: 10,12¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (6,159 (4,580
Total property and equipment, r $ 7,06¢ $ 5,54¢

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, property andoeagmt under capital lease, included within the cat@mpequipment balance above,
amounted to $865,000 and $729,000, respectiveth, adcumulated depreciation of $492,000 and $215 @3pectively. Depreciation and
amortization expense during the years ended Deaedih@012, 2011, and 2010 was $3.6 million, $2ilion and $963,000, respectively.

Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

As of December 31

2012 2011

Legal and professional fees $ 767 $ 32¢
Marketing expense 304 162
Interest 10z 79
Sales taxe 44¢€ 137
Payroll taxes 234 107
Other 1,06: 694
Total accrued liabilitie! $2,91¢ $1,50¢

Accrued Compensation and Benefits
Accrued compensation and benefits consisted dfotfl@ving (in thousands):

As of December 31

2012 2011

Bonus $ 34¢ $ 96¢
Payroll and related expens 1,97¢ —

Commission: 1,28: 22:

Vacation 891 851

Total accrued compensation and bent $4,50( $2,04:
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5. Movity, Inc. Acquisition

On December 10, 2010, the Company entered intograeinent of Plan of Merger (“Movity Agreement”)doquire Movity, Inc.
(“Movity”), a privately held geographic data compamhich was founded in January 2010. The acquisitichich closed on December 10,
2010, allowed the Company to enhance its workforce.

Upon closing of the acquisition, all of the outstany shares of Movity, including the shares of casnrstock that were issued by Movity
upon closing of the acquisition as a result ofabhtomatic conversion of its convertible promisseoye into common stock, were converted
the right to receive a fraction of a share of tlenpany’s common stock. The Company accounted éoMbvity acquisition as a purchase of a
business. The Company expensed the related adgnpisists, consisting primarily of legal expensethie amount of $155,000, during the y
ended Decembdll, 2010. These legal expenses were presentechasajand administrative expense in the statenfesperations for the ye
ended December 31, 2010. The total purchase coatime of $2.2 million consisted of issuance of B8® shares of the Company’s common
stock with fair value of $4.0866 per share. Untherterms of the Movity Agreement, the Company igtled to withhold 125,461 shares of the
total purchase consideration as partial securitynfidemnification of obligations of Movitg' stockholders. The shares withheld were and w
released as follows: (i) 75% of the shares wiltddeased on the 18-month anniversary of the adeprisiate, and (ii) the remaining shares will
be released on April 15, 2014. Upon completiorhefacquisition, the operations were absorbed b tdrapany, and Movity ceased to exist as
a separate entity. During the year ended Decenthe2(® 2, 3,343 shares were returned from escrandasnnification from Movity's
stockholders. In addition, the Company also rel@&&6 of the remaining shares, or 91,594 sharex;dardance with the Movity Agreement.
As of December 31, 2012, the Company had no clairbgect to indemnification by Movity’s stockholders

The following table summarizes the fair value cfeds acquired and liabilities assumed (in thougands

Cash $ 904
Property and equipme 13
Current liabilities (744)
Notes payabli (110
Goodwill 2,15¢

Total purchase considerati $2,21¢

The excess of the consideration transferred oeefain value assigned to the assets acquired ahifities assumed was $2.2 million,
which represents the goodwill resulting from thquasition. Goodwill is attributable to technologiexpertise associated with the acquired
assembled workforce. None of the goodwill is expedb be deductible for income tax purposes. Thagamy tests goodwill for impairment
on an annual basis on December 1, or sooner if dgerecessary. As of December 31, 2012 and 201k, wees no impairment of goodwill.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Information
Supplemental information on an unaudited pro fobasis is presented below for the year ended DeaeBih@010 (in thousands):

Pro forma revenu $ 19,78t
Pro forma loss from operatiol (5,64¢)
Pro forma net los (5,647)

The Company did not present comparative informaforihe year ended December 31, 2009 above astiieas founded in January
2010. The unaudited pro forma combined financidrimation includes the
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results of the Company and Movity as if the acduisiof Movity had occurred as of January 1, 200l@e pro forma information presented d
not purport to present what the actual results ditvalve been had the acquisition actually occurredamuary 1, 2010, nor is the information
intended to project results for any future periedrther, the unaudited pro forma information exelidny benefits that may result from the
acquisition due to synergies that were derived ftioenelimination of duplicative costs. From thewsdion date through December 31, 2010,
the Company recognized an immaterial loss fromMbegity acquisition in the accompanying statemerfteperations.

6. Debt

In September 2008, the Company entered into alsamagreement with a banking institution for aapippal amount of $725,000. The
loan carried a variable annual interest rate flgatit London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) pl2% and matured in July 2011. In April
2009, the Company repaid the outstanding balantteedban and concurrently entered into a new lEgreement with the same banking
institution for a principal amount of $776,000. Tiew loan carried the same interest rate as tigenatiloan and the principle was repayable
over 27 equal monthly installments. The Companyigthe new loan on its maturity date in July 2011.

From January 2010 through April 2011, the Companrtgred into several additional loan agreements thitrsame banking institution 1
a total principal of $4.3 million. These loans @adrvariable annual interest rates floating at £.2% above LIBOR, were repayable in 31 ol
equal monthly installments, and had maturity d&t@® January 2013 through April 2014. In Septenti&1 when the outstanding principal
for these loans was $3.0 million, the Company rtizé loans with the proceeds received from the faaility agreement discussed
immediately below. These loan agreements had pregalypenalties and required additional intereshygrepayment. The Company
recognized an immaterial loss upon the repaymetiteofiebt prior to its contractual maturity.

In September 2011, the Company entered into a $20li6n loan and security agreement which provid@da secured term loan facility
(“Credit Facility”), issuable in tranches, with iadncial institution. This financial institution wanot the same banking institution noted in the
preceding paragraph, therefore, the issuance dZtedit Facility did not result in a modificatioa the prior debt agreements. Under the Credi
Facility, the first tranche of $5.0 million was dna down in full in September 2011 and was use@pay the Company’s outstanding debt. Th
second tranche of $5.0 million was also drawn dowfull in September 2011. The Credit Facility dasran interest rate equal to the greater ©
the prime rate plus 2.75% or 6% for the first ttamcand a rate equal to the greater of the prineeplas 5.5% or 8.75% for the second and 1
tranches. The loan facility was subject to intemdy payments through September 2012, which wasyadge in 30 equal monthly installme
of principal and interest after the interest-ondyipd, and had a maturity date of March 2015. Hawesluring the six months ended June 30,
2012, the Company achieved certain financial noless under the Credit Facility which provided toe £xtension of: a) the drawdown period
from August 2012 to December 2012, b) the beginointe interest-only period from September 201Ri&rch 2013, and c¢) the maturity date
from March 2015 to September 2015. On DecembeP@12, the drawdown period for the remaining $10illian expired. As of
December 31, 2012, there was no unused amount thel€redit Facility.
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As of December 31, 2012, the future principal pagta@n the debt are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31. Amounts
2013 $ 2,80(
2014 3,98¢
2015 3,211
Total payment: 10,00¢(
Less debt discout 241
Total debt, net of unamortized discol 9,75¢
Less current portio 2,66¢
Noncurrent portior $ 7,09«

In conjunction with the Credit Facility, the Compassued warrants to purchase up to 120,961 slod@smpany stock as follows:
(1) shares of Series D convertible preferred stoith an exercise price equal to $8.4738 per sha(2)ashares of the next round of preferred
stock financing at the per share price for sucheshapon drawdown of the entire loan amount. Gf &#mnount, warrants to purchase 56,054
shares of Series D convertible preferred stockineoaxercisable upon the drawdown of the first awbsd tranches and have an exercise
of $8.4738 per share. At the time of issuanceatigregate fair value of these warrants was $281;008 Company also paid a net facility
charge of $165,000 upon drawdown of the first thenof the loan. The fair value of warrants andfaeility charge were recorded as debt
discount to be amortized as interest expense beecdntractual term of the loan agreement usingtieetive interest rate method. As a result
of the debt discount, the effective interest ratettie Credit Facility differs from the contractwate. During the years ended December 31,
and 2011, the Company recognized interest expeatated to amortization of the debt discount inaheunt of $167,000 and $38,000,
respectively.

Under the Credit Facility, the Company grantedfthancial institution a security interest in allthe Company’s assets. If the Company
has available cash and marketable securities oth dfaait least $20.0 million, the financial institrt may release the security interest on the
Companys intellectual property. However, if at any timéeafrelease of the intellectual property, the akdé cash and marketable securitie
hand are less than $10.0 million, the Company gvdint the financial institution a security intereatits intellectual property.

The Company was in compliance with all covenantieaiits loan facility agreement as of December281,2 and 2011. The Credit
Facility provides certain reporting covenants, aqiothers, relating to delivery of audited finangtdtements to the financial institution. The
agreement also contains covenants that limit driceshe Company’s ability to, among other thinggur additional indebtedness, grant liens,
make investments, repurchase stock, pay dividdératssfer assets, merge or consolidate, and makeséoons.

7. Commitments and Contingencie:
Operating Leases

The Company leases its corporate offices underaraetable operating leases. Rent expense fronadi#yf leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term and wa& $dllion, $1.1 million and $611,000 during the y@@nded December 31, 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s minimum payisiunder the noncancelable operating leases dofi@vs (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31. Operating Leas¢
2013 $ 2,52¢
2014 1,94¢
2015 713

Total minimum lease paymer $ 5,19(

Capital Leases
During the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112@hd, the Company entered into various capitaldegreements for certain
hardware and equipment for use by the Companytarahiployees. The lease terms ranged from 24 todfhs.

The following is a schedule of future minimum legsgments due under the capital lease obligatiaf Becember 31, 2012 (in
thousands):

Year Ending December 31. Capital Lease
2013 $ 22t
2014 16
Total minimum lease paymer 241
Less: amount representing inter 8
Present value of minimum lease payme 23¢
Less: current portio 217
Capital lease liability, net of current porti $ 16

Contingencies

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claintslitigation arising in the ordinary course afmess. In July 2011, a non-
practicing entity brought suit against Trulia fatent infringement. In September 2011, the Compantgred into a license agreement to
purchase a license for these patents for $550,000a a result, the claim against the Companydnggped. The agreement also provided for
an additional contingent payment of $350,000 if@wempany filed its initial Registration Statemerithathe SEC prior to January 11, 2015 anc
its shares become publicly listed on either the RA® or NYSE exchanges following the completion leé iCompany’s IPO. The Company
paid the additional contingent payment of $350,B00ctober 2012.

In September 2012, Zillow, Inc. (“Zillow”) filed Ewsuit against the Company alleging patent inimgnt. Zillow is seeking a
permanent injunction against the alleged infringetheompensatory damages, and attorneys’ feesCohgany believes it has meritorious
defenses and intends to vigorously defend the slaigainst the Company. This litigation is stilit;®iearly stages and the final outcome,
including any estimated liability, if any, with f@sct to these claims, is uncertain. The Companydidiccrue any amounts related to this
litigation because the Company is unable to eséraakasonably possible range of loss, if any, gt result from this matter could not be
estimated as of December 31, 2012.

In January, 2013, Mortgage Grader, Inc. (“Mortg&yader”) filed a lawsuit against the Company in theted States District Court for
the Central District of California, alleging th&iet Company infringes on two U.S. patents held bytlydme Grader. The lawsuit alleges that th
Company’s mortgage center infringes those
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patents. The Company believes it has meritoriofisndes and intends to vigorously defend the claiganst the Company. The Company did
not accrue any amounts related to this litigatienaduse a reasonably possible range of loss, ifthaymay result from this matter could not be
estimated as of December 31, 2012.

Although the results of litigation and claims cahhbe predicted with certainty, the Company beliedesfinal outcome of the matters
discussed above will not have a material and advefifect on the Company’s business, financial posiresults of operations, or cash flows.
The Company will, however, accrue for losses for lamown contingent liabilities when future payménprobable and the amount is
reasonably estimable.

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangrsiinto contractual arrangements under whichriéegyto provide indemnification of
varying scope and terms to business partners dred parties with respect to certain matters, indgdbut not limited to, losses arising out of
the breach of such agreements and out of inteliéproperty infringement claims made by third pstiln these circumstances, payment may
be conditional on the other party making a claimspant to the procedures specified in the partiatdatract. Further, the Company’s
obligations under these agreements may be limitéerims of time and/or amount, and in some inssrtbe Company may have recourse
against third parties for certain payments. In toldj the Company has indemnification agreementis egrtain of its directors and executive
officers that require the Company, among othergino indemnify them against certain liabilitieat may arise by reason of their status or
service as directors or officers. The terms of salgligations may vary. No such obligations exisasf December 31, 2012 and 2011.

8.  Stockholders’ Equity
Reverse Stock Split

In September 2012, the Company’s board of dire@ondsstockholders approved an amendment to the @wytgpamended and restated
certificate of incorporation as in effect priorttee completion of the IPO. The amendment provideddmong other things, a 1-for-3 reverse
stock split of the outstanding common stock andtaniding convertible preferred stock of the Comp@oylectively, “capital stock™), which
became effective on September 6, 2012. Accordif{glgvery three shares of capital stock were comtinto one share of capital stock,

(i) the number of shares of capital stock into efthéach outstanding option or warrant to purchapéal stock is exercisable, as the case may
be, were proportionately decreased on a 1-for-Bpasd (iii) the exercise price for each such taumging option or warrant to purchase capital
stock was proportionately increased on a 1-forsdshall of the share numbers, share prices, aedogse prices have been adjusted within
these financial statements, on a retroactive bsigflect this 1-for-3 reverse stock split.

Common Stock

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company ésatved shares of common stock, on an as-if cad/edsis, for issuance as
follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011

Conversion of Series A convertible preferred stock — 3,566,50!
Conversion of Series B convertible preferred si — 5,480,76!
Conversion of Series C convertible preferred s — 3,343,58!
Conversion of Series D convertible preferred st — 1,770,58
Stock options and awards issued and outstar 3,608,32i 3,334,533
Stock base-awards available for grant under 2005 and 20124 2,127,271 38,67
Common and convertible preferred stock warr: 56,05+ 100,70(

Total 5,791,65 17,635,34
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Convertible Preferred Stock

Immediately prior to the completion of the CompaniPO, all of the outstanding shares of convertibeferred stock automatically
converted into 14,161,444 shares of common stock @me-to-one basis.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had outstgr&aries A, B, C and D convertible preferred stc#ividually referred to as
“Series A, B, C or D" or collectively “preferredostk”) as follows (in thousands, except for sharafa

As of December 31, 201

Aggregate

Shares Liquidation Proceeds, Net ¢
Shares Issued and

Authorized Outstanding Preference Issuance Costs
Series A 10,699,53 3,566,50! $ 2,15¢ $ 2,081
Series B 16,442,30 5,480,76! 5,70( 5,66¢
Series C 10,030,76 3,343,58! 10,75( 9,95¢
Series C 5,725,00I 1,770,58 15,00: 14,90«
Total 42,897,60 14,161,44 $ 33,60¢ $ 32,61:

The holders of the Company’s Preferred Stock haddtiowing rights, preferences, and privileges:

Conversion

Each share of preferred stock was convertibldyebption of the holder thereof, at any time afterdate of issuance of such share, into
such number of fully paid and non-assessable slofiesmmon stock as determined by dividing theinggissue price for such Series by the
then effective conversion price for that Serieg (ttonversion rate”). The conversion rate was stthigadjustment for any stock dividends,
combinations or splits with respect to such shakdslitionally, each share of preferred stock wa®mnatically convertible into shares of
common stock at the then effective conversionf@atsuch Series (i) with the approval, by affirmvativote, written consent, or agreement, of
the holders of not less than two-thirds of the taurding preferred stock voting together as a sinlgiss; (ii) upon the voluntary conversion by
the holders of not less than two-thirds of the @nefd stock issued by the Company; or (iii) immeadiaprior to the completion of an
underwritten initial public offering with proceettsthe Company of not less than $50.0 million. Thaversion rate for each series of preferre
stock was 1-for-1 as of December 31, 2011.

Dividends

The holders of Series A, B, C and D were entittececeive non-cumulative dividends on a pari pdsis, and in preference to common
stockholders, at the rate of $0.04836, $0.0831238262 and $0.67788 per share (as adjusted fostank dividends, combinations or splits
with respect to such shares) per annum payablefduhds legally available. Such dividends wereaidg when, and if declared by the board
of directors, acting in its sole discretion. Affmyment of dividends at the rates set forth abamg,additional dividends declared would be
distributed among all holders of preferred stoct a@mmon stock in proportion to the number of shafecommon stock that would then be
held by each such holder if all shares of prefestedk were converted into common stock. No divitbewere declared through December 31,
2011.

Liquidation Preference

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or @ing-up of the Company, whether voluntary or invaary, the holders of the preferred
stock were entitled to receive, prior and in prefee to any distribution of the assets of the Camppa the holders of common stock, an
amount equal to (i) 100% of the original issue @ificr each share of Series A, 100% of the origs®le price for each share of Series B,
107.5% of the original issue price for each sh&r@evies C, and 100% of the original issue priaeefich share of Series D, plus (ii) all decl:
but unpaid dividends on such shares. If the asset§unds available for distribution to the
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holders of the preferred stock were insufficienp&y the stated preferential amounts in full, theére assets and funds of the Company legally
available for distribution would be distributed Wwigqual priority and pro rata among the holderhefpreferred stock in proportion to the
preferential amount each such holder would otheris entitled to receive. The remaining assets)yf were to be distributed ratably to the
holders of the common stock and preferred stoclaroas-if-converted basis, provided that the hsldéiSeries A, Series B, Series C and
Series D were not entitled to any proceeds abov&0#6, $1.0398, $2.9907 and $8.47368 per shareedfter, if assets remained, they would
be distributed to the holders of common stock pncarata basis.

The Company classified the preferred stock withiarsholders’ equity since the shares were not mdbke, and the holders of the
preferred stock could not effect a deemed liquatatif the Company outside of the Company’s control.

Voting

The holders of the preferred stock were entitlethéonumber of votes equal to the number of shareemmon stock into which these
shares could then be converted.

Redemption
The preferred stock was not redeemable.

Preferred Stock

Under the amended and restated certificate of puration registered by the Company in Septembe? 2k Company was authorized
to issue 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock.80$01 par value per share. The preferred stockbmagsued from time to time in one or
more series pursuant to a resolution or resolutituhg adopted by the board of directors. The Corgjsalmoard of directors is authorized to
determine by resolution the relevant powers of éssie of the preferred stock, such as designatmeferences, participation, dividend rights.
divided rates, conversion rights, voting rights, éts of December 31, 2012 no shares were issuedtstanding.

9. Warrants
Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

In September 2011, the Company entered into a $20li6n Credit Facility discussed further in Ndéeln connection with the Credit
Facility, the Company issued a warrant to purchgsto 120,961 shares of Series D with an exergise pf $8.4738 per share. As of
December 31, 2011, only 56,054 shares were exbteisBhe exercisability of the warrant would bggeéred upon specified drawdowns under
the Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2012 and2Ghe Company had drawdowns of $10.0 million frtw total $20.0 million underlying
the Credit Facility. If the Company withdrew then&ning $10.0 million, the remaining 64,907 shaxesild become exercisable under the
warrant. As of December 31, 2012, the Company’btalbd withdraw the remaining $10.0 million expiteAt the time of issuance, the
aggregate fair value of the warrant in the amo@i$281,000 was determined using a Monte Carlo mimdelrporating two scenarios, one with
a future equity financing and one without. The miaso used the following assumptions: expecteah @ 1.2 years, risk-free interest rate of
0.2%, expected volatility of 55.0% and expectedd#ind yield of 0%. The fair value of the warrantswacorded as a warrant liability upon
issuance. As a result of the Company’s first pufiliieg of its Form S-1 in August 2012 and in cowtien with the termination of the anti-
dilution provisions contained in the warrant, tharmnt liability was remeasured to fair value amel temaining value reclassified to additional
paid-in-capital. Upon completion of the CompanyP©lin September 2012 and the related conversitimatonvertible preferred stock to
common stock, this warrant to purchase converpbdéerred stock became a warrant to purchase constoegk and the expiration date was se
at September 19, 2017, which is five years fromettiectiveness of the Company’s IPO.
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During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 208 Company recognized a charge to earnings of,886%nd $16,000,
respectively, from remeasurement of the fair valihe warrant, which was recorded through theegtants of operations.

The Company determined the fair value of the ontitey convertible preferred stock warrant as of éatdl7, 2012, the date the anti-
dilution provision was no longer applicable, andcBraber 31, 2011 with the following assumptions:

As of As of
August 17 December 31
2012 2011
Estimated term (in years) 5.¢ aL{e
Risk-free interest rat 1.C% 0.1%
Expected volatility 53% 55%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0%

The above assumptions were determined as follows:

Term—The term represents a weighted average of theinémyaerm under probable scenarios used to deterhie fair value of the
underlying stock. A weighted average term was deitexd to be more appropriate than the contractral tue to potential adjustments to the
related expiration date for the warrant under rplétscenarios;

Risk-free interest rate-The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8adury yield in effect at the time of grant for@eoupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately edboalterm of the warrant;

Expected volatility—The expected volatility is derived from historicallatilities of several unrelated publicly listpder companies over
a period approximately equal to the term of theramtrbecause the Company has limited informatiothernvolatility of the preferred stock
since the Company does not have significant tradisgpry. When making the selections of industrgmeompanies to be used in the volatility
calculation, the Company considered the size, dipaa and economic similarities to the Companyisgiple business operations; and

Expected dividend yield-The expected dividend yield is assumed to be asithe Company has never paid dividends and hasrnent
plans to do so.

Common Stock Warrants

In July 2010, in conjunction with services providada third party consultant, the Company issuadaant to purchase 12,735 shares o
common stock with an exercise price of $3.54 pareslnd expiration date of July 19, 2015. The warisaexercisable with cash or through a
cashless exercise provision. Under the cashlessisg@rovision, the holder may, in lieu of paymehthe exercise price in cash, surrender th
warrant and receive a net amount of shares bas#tedair market value of the Company’s commonlstitdhe time of exercise of the warrant
after deducting the aggregate exercise price. @ainevdlue of the warrant in the amount of $16,0@&wecorded as additional paid-in capital
upon issuance and was not subject to remeasurerneath reporting period. The fair value of theramatrwas calculated using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model with the following asgptions: contractual term of 5 years, risk-freeliest rate of 1.7%, expected volatility of
55.0% and expected dividend yield of 0%. In Mar6i 2, the warrant was exercised with cash procee$fi$5000.

In September 2011, in conjunction with servicesyfted by a third party consultant, the Companyésisa warrant to purchase 44,646
shares of common stock with an exercise price &%per share and expiration date of February Q86 2The fair value of the warrant in the
amount of $93,000 was recorded as additional paihpital upon issuance and was not subject toasanement at each reporting period. The
fair value of the
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warrant was calculated using the Black-Scholesoogpricing model with the following assumptionsno@ctual term of 4.5 years, risk-free
interest rate of 0.7%, expected volatility of 55.8%@ expected dividend yield of 0%. In connectidthwhe IPO in September 2012, the
warrant was exercised using the cashless exemasésipn which amounted to the net issuance of @3 ghares of common stock. As of
December 31, 2012, this warrant was no longer andishg.

10. Stock-Based Compensation
2005 Stock Plan

The Company granted options under its 2005 Stocgrtive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) until September 2@tien the 2005 plan was
terminated. Under the terms of the 2005 Plan, t@any had the ability to grant incentive (“ISOfjdanonstatutory (“NSQ”) stock options,
restricted stock awards and restricted stock uAgsf December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively aad 4,474,605 shares of common stock
were reserved under the 2005 Plan for the issuain&Os, NSOs, restricted stock or restricted stauks to eligible participants. Under the
2005 Plan, the options were granted at a pricelpare not less than 100% of the fair market vakreshare at the grant date. Options granted
under the 2005 Plan generally vest at a rate of 2fiéf the first year and then at 1/36 of the revng shares each month thereafter and expire
10 years from the grant date. Certain options mestithly over two to four years.

2012 Equity Incentive Plan

Effective September 19, 2012, the Company’s bo&directors adopted, and the Company’s stockholdppsoved, a 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”). The 2012 Plarvides for the grant of ISOs, NSOs, restricted stoektricted stock units, stock appreciation
rights, performance units, and performance sharesiployees, directors, and consultants of the @GompJUnder the 2012 Plan, a total of
2,370,000 shares of common stock have been restaweguance plus up to 1,000,000 shares fronexipgation or termination of awards
under the 2005 Plan. The shares available wilhbeeased at the beginning of each fiscal year &yahst of (i) 2,100,000 shares, (ii) 4% of
outstanding common stock on the last day of theediately preceding fiscal year, or (iii) such numbetermined by the Company’s board of
directors. Under the 2012 Plan, both the ISOs aB@#&are granted at a price per share not lesslfG# of the fair market value per share of
the underlying stock at the grant date. The boé&directors determines the vesting period for eggtion award on the grant date, and the
options generally expire 10 years from the gram¢ da such shorter term as may be determined blgdhed of directors. The restricted stock
units are granted for zero purchase price.

In October 2012, the Company awarded restricteckataits (“RSUs”) to certain employees. As of Debem31, 2012 approximately
37,760 RSUs were outstanding.

Total shares of common stock available for gramteur?005 and 2012 Plans were 2,127,279 and 38$%a@P@ecember 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.
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Stock Option Activity
The stock option activity under the 2005 and 20E2$during the year ended December 31, 2012 whslaw's:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Stock Weighted Contractual Aggregate
Options Average Intrinsic
Qutstanding Exercise Price Life (Years) Value
(In thousands!
Balanc—December 31, 201 3,334,53 $ 3.4¢ 8.2 $ 11,10¢
Grantec 1,041,97. 14.2¢
Cancelec (264,49) 6.6€
Exercisec (541,44) 3.07
Balanc—December 31, 201 3,570,561 $ 6.45 7.5€ $ 35,41
Options exercisab—December 31, 201 1,722,60! $ 3.2C 6.1¢ $ 22,47
Options vested and expected to —December 31, 201 3,411 ,46. $ 6.2€ 7.4¢ $ 34,44

The options exercisable as of December 31, 201@ded options that were exercisable prior to vgstirhe weighted average grant date
fair value of options granted during the years @ndecember 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $6.773$2@ $1.59, respectively.

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the differdmetsveen the estimated fair value of the underlgioigimon stock and the exercise price
of outstanding, in-the-money options. The aggregatsic value of options exercised was $5.3ianl] $902,000 and $760,000 during the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 201@&ataésgdy. The total estimated grant date fair valiemployee options vested during
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 20104vasrlion, $1.2 million and $336,000, respectiuelotal cash received from exercise
stock options during the years ended December@i12,2011 and 2010 were $1.7 million, $408,000 $3,000, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012, total unrecognized compensatietirelated to non-vested stock options grantesiriployees was $7.0 million, net of
estimated forfeitures of $782,000. These costsheilamortized on a straight-line basis over a wemjaverage vesting period of 2.68 years.

Additional information regarding the Company’s &t@ptions outstanding and vested and exercisabi¢ Recember 31, 2012 is
summarized below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of Contractual Exercise Price Number of Exercise Price
Options Options
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (Years) per Share Exercisable Per Share
$0.15—$0.18 511,99! 3.84 $ 0.1t 511,99! $ 0.1%
$1.3—8$1.47 144,55 4.9C 1.37 144,55 1.37
$3.54 209,38t 6.94 3.54 189,84. 3.54
$4.2%$4.59 1,207,13. 8,2¢ 4.3 648,06:¢ 4.3z
$5.55 528,13( 8.7¢ 5.5¢ 133,24! 5.5¢
$6.81—$9.42 202,81 9.1¢ 7.62 52,41 6.8¢
$12.1—$13.32 167,89: 9.3¢ 12.7¢ 12,25( 13.32
$13.3—%$22.44 598,66( 9.64 16.9% 30,24 16.6:2
3,570,561 1,722,60
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Restricted Stock Units Activit

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Grant Date Contractual Aggregate
RSUs Intrinsic
Qutstanding fair Value Life (Years) Value
(In thousands'
Unveste—December 31, 201 — — — $ —
Grantec 39,80¢ 16.4(
Cancelec (2,046 16.1¢
Rolled from 2005 Pla —
Exercisec —
Unveste—December 31, 201 37,76( 16.41 2.1¢ $ 613,22
Stock awards exercisa—December 31, 201 — — $ —
Stock awards vested and expected to—December 31, 201 32,68¢ 2.0¢ $ 530,85t

As of December 31, 2012, total unrecognized congt@rscost related to non-vested RSUs granted m@mees was $520,000, net of
estimated forfeitures of $82,000. This cost willdyeortized on a straight-line basis over a weightestage vesting period of 3.81 years.

Determining Fair Value of Stock Options

The fair value of each grant of stock option awasd$etermined by the Company and its board ofctirs using the methods and
assumptions discussed below. Each of these inpstshjective and generally requires significangjudnt to determine.

Valuation Method—The Company estimates the fair value of its stmquion awards using the Black-Scholes option-pgaimodel.

Expected Term-The expected term represents the period thattlo& sption awards are expected to be outstanding.Company
estimates the expected term for its awards graagsdon a study of publicly traded industry peenganies and the historical data on empli
exercises and post-vesting employment terminatérabior taking into account the contractual lifetef award.

Expected Volatility—The expected volatility is derived from the histat stock volatilities of several comparable palylilisted peers
over a period approximately equal to the expectea bf the awards because the Company has lintifedmation on the volatility of its
common stock since the Company does not have gigniftrading history. When making the selectiohthe comparable industry peers to be
used in the volatility calculation, the Company sidiered the size, operational and economic sirtidarto its principle business operations.

Fair Value of Common StoekPrior to the Company’s IPO, the fair value of duenmon stock underlying the stock option awards was
determined by the Company’s board of directors.aBse there had been no public market for the Coypatock, the board of directors had
determined the fair value of the common stock attifme of the option grant by considering a nundferbjective and subjective factors
including contemporaneous valuations performedroglated third party specialists, valuations of panable companies, operating and
financial performance, lack of liquidity of capitstiock and general and industry-specific econorattook, amongst other factors. After the
Company’s IPO the Company has been using the Itadk price on the date of grant as its fair value

-90-



Table of Contents

Risk-Free Interest Rate-The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8aJury yield curve in effect at the time of grnmtzero coupon
U.S. Treasury notes with maturities approximatejyad to the expected term of the options.

Expected Dividends-The expected dividend has been zero as the Contmgever paid dividends and has no expectatiods $0.

Forfeiture Rate—The Company estimates its forfeiture rate basedmanalysis of its actual forfeitures and will tione to evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on actu&ifare experience, analysis of employee turnoedralvior, and other factors. The impact fron
a forfeiture rate adjustment will be recognizedutin the period of adjustment, and if the actnamber of future forfeitures differs from that
estimated, the Company may be required to recqusstdents to stock-based compensation expenseéurefperiods.

Summary of Assumptions

The fair value of each employee stock option awaras estimated at the date of grant using a Blatic®s option-pricing model with
the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 201C
Expected term (in years) B3 5.5 55
Expected volatility 53% 55% 55%
Risk-free interest rat 0.€% 1.9% 1.7%
Dividend rate 0% 0% 0%

Determining Fair Value of Restricted Stock Units
The fair value of restricted stock units equalsriaket value of the underlying stock on the détgrant.

Options granted to non-employees

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@anhd, the Company granted zero, 16,216 and zec sftions to non-employees.
Through June 30, 2012, no stdoised compensation expense was recognized retetieel dptions granted during the year ended DeceBit
2011 as these non-employee options have performamzbtions that the Company determined are ndiabte as of June 30, 2012. Such
options were subject to remeasurement using thekEdaholes option-pricing model as the optionsegsin the second half of the year ended
December 31, 2012 a total of $58,000 of stock-basetpensation expense was recognized related$e thions.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
The Company recorded compensation expense for-baskd awards granted to employees and nonemplagdeBows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cost of revenue $ 32 $ 11 $ 8
Technology and developme 93C 482 17¢€
Sales and marketir 39¢ 18< 97
General and administrati\ 1,21(C 80¢ _ 73

Total stocl-based compensation expel $2,57( $1,48¢ $354

The Company capitalized stock-based compensati@s&000, $22,000 and $17,000 as product developoosts during the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, resplgctive
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11. Net Loss per Share Attributable to Common Stkholders

The following table sets for the computation of @@mpany’s basic and diluted net loss per sharibuatable to common stockholders
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112@h@ (in thousands, except share and per shaag dat

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (10,92) $ (6,159 $ (3839
Shares used in computing net loss per share athlautc

common stockholders, basic and dilu 12,538,76 6,657,04! 6,016,55I
Net loss per share attributable to common stocldrs|

basic and dilute: $ (0.87) $ (099 $ (069

The following outstanding shares of common stodkivajents were excluded from the computation ofdiheted net loss per share
attributable to common stockholders for the peripgssented because including them would have hetgdilative:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Convertible preferred stock — 14,161,44 14,161,44
Stock options to purchase common st 3,570,561 3,334,533l 1,532,35
Stock awards to purchase common si 37,76( — —
Heldback shares in connection with Movity acquisit 30,52 125,46: 125,46:
Preferred stock warran — 56,05 —
Common stock warran 56,05¢ 44,64¢ 12,73t

12. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeauthoritative guidance, which requires the aéthe asset and liability
method. Under this method, deferred income taxtassel liabilities are determined based upon tfferdince between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets ahilities and are measured using the enacted teverpected to apply to taxable income in
years in which the differences are expected tebersed

The components of the provision for income taxeste years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 $oéaes:

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011

Current:
Federa $ —
State 67,32
Deferred:
Federa —
State —

TOTAL $ 67,32

©®
|

“
|‘|||
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The following table presents a reconciliation @ftstory federal rate and the Company’s effectivergéde for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Tax benefit at federal statutory rate (34.0% (34.0% (34.0%
State taxes (net of federal bene (5.6) (5.9 (5.9
Stoclk-based compensatic 3.1 4.7 3.7
Change in valuation allowan 32.¢ 34.7 42.2
Other nondeductible expens 4.€ 0.t (6.3
Other — 0.7 0.2

Effective tax rate 0.€% 0.C% 0.C%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ugethfome tax purposes. Significant componenthief@ompany’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 weriohows (in thousands):

As of December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwa $16,27¢ $ 11,56¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 36 —
Accruals and reserve 867 84¢
Deferred revenu — 1,93¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 633 492
General business crei — 15
Other 1 41C
Gross deferred tax assi 17,81: 15,26¢
Valuation allowanct (17,349 (14,139
Net deferred tax asse 47C 1,13¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid expenst $ 358 $ 12z
Depreciation and amortizatic — 1,01«
Deferred Revenu 117 —
Gross deferred tax liabilitie 47C 1,13¢€
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ — $ —

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company adopted authoritative guidance und& A& on January 1, 2007, which clarifies the anting for uncertainties in tax
positions recognized in the financial statemenke Tompany has not been audited by the InternadfiRe/Service or any state tax authority.
The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S.\aamibus states. Due to the Company’s net losséstantially all of its federal and state
income tax returns since inception are still subje@udit.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inusands):

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of period $ 47k $337 $11C
Gross increase- tax position in prior perio 2C — —
Gross decreas- tax position in prior perio (47%) — —
Gross increase- current period tax positior — 13¢ 227
Lapse of statute of limitatior — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits, end of per $ 2C $47E $337

If the $20,000 of unrecognized income tax bendéditecognized, there would be impact to the eféectax rate.

The Company does not have any additional tax positthat are expected to significantly increasgesrease within twelve months of

year ended December 31, 20

13. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined contribution 401(k) eetent plan covering all employees who have meaicediigibility requirements.
Eligible employees may contribute pretax compensatip to the maximum amount allowable under InteR&venue Service limitations.
Employee contributions and earnings thereon vestddiately. The Company matches up to 3% of the eyepls contributions. The
Company'’s expense related to its benefit plan dutfie years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, andw84 685,000, $388,000, and

$192,000, respectively.

Kk kk k Kk
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Our management, with the participation of our Clarécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officeyaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decenthe2@®.2. The term “disclosure controls and procesitias defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls amer grocedures of a company that are designedstoreithat information required to
disclosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded;gs®ed, summarized and reported, within
the time periods specified in the SEC'’s rules amthk. Disclosure controls and procedures includtiowt limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it fdlesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neaneugt, including its principal executive and prpatifinancial officers, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required discice. Management recognizes that any controls sowegures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assuddiraahieving their objectives and management rezaég applies its judgment in evaluat
the cost-benefit relationship of possible conteoidl procedures. Based on the evaluation of outodisie controls and procedures as of
December 31, 2012, our Chief Executive Officer @ikf Financial Officer concluded that, as of sdele, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assitawvel.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciaReporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includeport of management’s assessment regarding ihtsongol over financial
reporting or an attestation report of our registgreblic accounting firm as permitted in this tii¢ing period under the rules of the SEC for
newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

We previously reported a material weakness thatigegified as of December 31, 2011 relating todhsign and operating effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reportinghd material weakness resulted from a lack of sefiicnumber of qualified personnel within
accounting function that possessed an appropgats bf expertise to effectively perform the folliony functions:

« identify, select and apply U.S. GAAP sufficientimvide reasonable assurance that transactionshe@rg appropriately recorded;
and

» design control activities over the financial cl@s®l reporting process necessary to provide realoaaburance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacstt of financial statement

During 2012, we addressed the material weaknesagdhrprocess improvements and the hiring of aduitifinance personnel. We have
significantly expanded our finance organizatiorhioyng a number of accounting and finance persowiittl technical accounting and financial
reporting experience. These include a new corpa@téroller, a senior director of finance, a diogaif technical accounting and reporting, anc
accounting and systems managers. We have alsormapted control procedures where control gaps ekigstgplemented additional reviews
and processes where controls were not workingygdheémployees in the performance of these procassksontrols, implemented control
procedures over the identification, selection gmpliaation of U.S. GAAP with respect to our accangtpolicies so that transactions are
appropriately recorded. As of December 31, 2012hawee determined that our controls are designedjpture the information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that we file or submider the Exchange Act, that this information isorded, processed, summarized and reportec
within the time periods specified in SEC rules &ins, and that such information is accumulated@mmunicated to our management,
including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to aliovely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Except for the efforts described above, there le@nimo changes in our internal control over final@porting during our most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, aiei@sonably likely to materially affect, our intekeantrol over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information
Not applicable.
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Part Il

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere
The following table provides information regardiogr executive officers and directors as of MarcB1,3:

Name Age Position

Executive Officers

Peter Flint 38  Cc-Founder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offi
Prashan“Sear” Aggarwal 47  Chief Financial Office

Paul Levine 42  Chief Operating Office

Daniele Farnec 45  Chief Technology Office

Scott Darling 40  Vice President, General Counsel, and Corporatectey
Nor-Employee Directors

Erik Bardmar 46  Director

Theresia Gouv 44  Director

Sami Inkiner 37 Director

Robert Moles 58 Director

Gregory Waldor! 44  Director

Peter Flint . Mr. Flint is our cofounder and has served as our Chief Executive &fnd as Chairman of our board of directors sinat
inception in June 2005. From July 1998 to June 2003Flint served in a variety of executive robtdastminute.com Ltd., a European online
travel company that he helped launch, includingdHefdnteractive Marketing and Business Developmbtit Flint holds a Master of Physics
degree from the University of Oxford and a MasteBuosiness Administration degree from Stanford @nsity.

We believe that Mr. Flint is qualified to serveasamember of our board of directors because of énepective and experience he bring
our Chief Executive Officer and one of our foundléris perspective as one of our significant stotdidas, and his extensive background as an
executive of companies in the Internet industry.

Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal. Mr. Aggarwal has served as our Chief Financidlg®f since November 2011. Prior to joining us,
Mr. Aggarwal served as Vice President of Finanak @hief Accounting Officer at PayPal, Inc., an aelpayments company, from June 2008
to October 2011. From March 2003 to May 2008, Mggarwal worked at eBay Inc. in various finance saleluding as Vice President of
Finance and Vice President of Financial Planningr&lysis. Prior to eBay, Mr. Aggarwal served asddtor of Finance at Amazon.com, Inc.
Mr. Aggarwal started his career in investment bagkvith Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Inparated. Mr. Aggarwal holds a Bache
of Arts degree from the College of Wooster and atdiaof Management degree from Northwestern UnityesKellogg School of
Management.

Paul Levine. Mr. Levine has served as our Chief Operatingd@ffisince February 2011. Prior to joining us, Mevine served as
President of Digital at Current Media LLC, a broasicmedia company, from February 2009 to Febru@iyl 2Prior to Current Media,
Mr. Levine was Vice President of Marketing at AdBrilnc., an online advertising network, from AugR807 to October 2008. Prior to
AdBrite, Mr. Levine served as Vice President ansh&al Manager of Local at Yahoo! Inc., from Aprd(@3 to July 2007. Mr. Levine has also
held management positions at EXTRADE Financial &esvCorporation. Mr. Levine earned his BacheloAd§ degree from Amherst College
and a Master of Business Administration degree f8tamford University.

Daniele Farnedi. Mr. Farnedi has served as our Chief Technolodic&@fsince March 2013. Prior to serving as Chie€finology
Officer, Mr. Farnedi served as our Vice Presid&migineering since January 2007. Prior to joiningMis Farnedi served as Director of
Technology at Shopping.com, Inc., a price comparsampany that was acquired by eBay, from Octob8d2o January 2007. Prior to
Shopping.com, Mr. Farnedi served as Director otvamfe Engineering at Looksmart, Ltd., from May 2@6@ctober 2004. Prior to
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Looksmart, Mr. Farnedi served as a Data ArchitecBfarclays Global Investors, a division of Bardd®LC, from April 1998 to May 2000, a
as a Senior Software Engineer at Assyst GmbH,dirlgacomputer-aided design software developmentpamy, from September 1995 to
February 1998. Mr. Farnedi holds a Laurea degré&gdntrical Engineering from the University of Bgla.

Scott Darling . Mr. Darling has served as our Vice President,ee@nCounsel, and Corporate Secretary since Ocit. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Darling served as Vice Presidergnéral Counsel, and Corporate Secretary at Impbereg,from September 2010 ur
June 2011. Prior to Imperva, Mr. Darling servecasior Attorney for Microsoft Corporation from M2p08 to September 2010 following the
acquisition by Microsoft of Danger, Inc., a molsleftware-as-a-service company. Mr. Darling seng&®anger’s Vice President, General
Counsel, and Corporate Secretary from November 20@¢ril 2008, and as Senior Corporate Counsehf@eptember 2002 to October 2004.
Mr. Darling started his career as an attorney efdiw firm of Gunderson Dettmer Stough Villeneuvariklin & Hachigian, LLP. Mr. Darling
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Yale Universitd a Juris Doctor degree from the Universitjathigan.

Non-Employee Directors

Erik Bardman . Mr. Bardman has served as a director since JOh2. Mr. Bardman has served as the Chief Fina@ffdder and Senio
Vice President Finance of Logitech Internation®.Since October 2009. Prior to joining Logitech;.Mardman served as Acting Chief
Financial Officer of ZillionTV Corporation, a pensalized television service, from March 2009 to 8egter 2009. Prior to ZillionTV,
Mr. Bardman served in a number of positions at eBay, over five and one half years, including &eresident and Chief Financial Officer of
eBay Marketplaces from May 2005 to September 2B@i8r to eBay, Mr. Bardman served in a number diians at General Electric
Company, over the course of 15 years, includingg\Reesident of Strategic Pricing at GE Global CamsuFinance from October 1999 to June
2003. Mr. Bardman holds a Bachelor of Arts degreenfDickinson College and is also a graduate ofdgarElectric’s Financial Management
Program.

We believe that Mr. Bardman is qualified to sergeaanember of our board of directors because addép expertise in finance and his
experience as an executive at several successhrldgy companies.

Theresia GouwMs. Gouw has served as a director since Decemlf¥sy. AMls. Gouw is a general partner at Accel Parfreeventure
capital firm, which she joined in 1999, where sbeuses on software investments, with a specifer@st in social commerce, vertical media,
security, and consumer Internet/mobile applicatids. Gouw serves on the board of directors of Impgelnc., as well as on the boards of
directors of several other software and technolmmypanies that are portfolio companies of Accetrieas. Ms. Gouw holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from Brown University and a Mast@usiness Administration degree from Stanford @nsity.

We believe that Ms. Gouw is qualified to serve aseamber of our board of directors because of hpegance in the software and
technology industries as an investment professiandlas an executive, her experience as a direttiher technology companies, as well as
her perspective as a representative of one ofignifisant stockholders.

Sami Inkinen . Mr. Inkinen is our co-founder, served as our ex®t from February 2010 to March 2012, and hageskas a director
since our inception in 2005. Mr. Inkinen serveaas Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating i©éfr from our inception until his
promotion to President in February 2010. From RGO to November 2002, Mr. Inkinen served as CorEeuand Vice President, Business
Development of Matchem Ltd., a wireless softwanmmpany, of which he was a co-founder. Mr. Inkinespalas an associate consultant with
McKinsey & Company, Inc. from January 2003 to Auge@03. Mr. Inkinen holds a Master of Engineerirgee from the Helsinki University
of Technology and a Master of Business Administratiegree from Stanford University.
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We believe that Mr. Inkinen is qualified to senssaamember of our board of directors because gb¢ngpective and experience he bri
as one of our former executives and a founder,edlsas his perspective as one of our significamtigtolders.

Robert Moles. Mr. Moles has served as a director since Juné.2@0. Moles has served as the Chairman of Intezal Estate Services,
Inc., a real estate brokerage company, since 2pA4. Prior to joining Intero, Mr. Moles servedRresident and Chief Executive Officer of
Real Estate Franchise Group of Cendant Corporétion October 2001 to June 2004. Prior to CendaomfMarch 1997 to October 2001,
Mr. Moles served as President and Chief Executiffie€ of Century 21 Real Estate LLC, a real estedachise company. Mr. Moles serves
the board of directors for Heritage Bank of Commagideritage Commerce Corporation, and Western Bantuc. He has served as an adv
to Santa Clara University and the University of $a@go. Mr. Moles holds a Bachelor of Science dedrem Santa Clara University.

We believe that Mr. Moles is qualified to serveaasiember of our board of directors because ofxpsrence and expertise as an
executive at several companies in the real estdtesiry and his experience as a director of otbblipcompanies.

Gregory Waldorf . Mr. Waldorf has served as a director since Sepé&era005. Mr. Waldorf served as Chief Executiveicaif of
eHarmony, Inc., an online dating company, from ApB06 to January 2011. Mr. Waldorf has servednenbioards of directors of several
private companies. Mr. Waldorf holds a BacheloAdt degree from the University of California, LAsgeles and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Stanford University.

We believe that Mr. Waldorf is qualified to senseamember of our board of directors because Ing¥strategic insights and operatic
leadership and experience as a former chief exexofficer of a technology company, as well as beeaof the experience and perspective he
has obtained in his roles as an investor in, ad¥sand board member of, numerous companies.

Each executive officer serves at the discretioausfboard of directors and holds office until hisher successor is duly elected and
qualified or until his or her earlier resignationremoval. There are no family relationships amany of our directors or executive officers.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04183 amended, requires that our executive off@edsdirectors, and persons who owr
more than 10% of our common stock, file reportewhership and changes of ownership with the SECh Slirectors, executive officers and
10% stockholders are required by SEC regulatidoruish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forrhey file.

SEC regulations require us to identify in this Fdr@aK anyone who filed a required report late dgirine most recent fiscal year. Based
on our review of forms we received, or written eg@ntations from reporting persons stating that wWere not required to file these forms, we
believe that during fiscal 2012, all Section 16{l#)g requirements were satisfied on a timely basi

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has adopted a code of bssioenduct and ethics that applies to all of ouplegees, officers, and directors,
including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief FinaalcOfficer, and other executive and senior finahoificers. The full text of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on the lakepbrtion of our website at http://ir.trulia.cortWe will post amendments to our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics or waivers of our Gddgusiness Conduct and Ethics for directors aretetive officers on the same website.
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Stockholder Recommendations for Nominations to th&oard of Directors

Additional information called for by this item isdorporated by reference to our Proxy Statememiioi2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders anticipated to be filed with the SB@hin 120 days after the end of the fiscal yeateshDecember 31, 2012, pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adi9#4, as amended.

Board of Directors

Our business and affairs are managed under thetidimeof our board of directors. The number of dices is fixed by our board of
directors, subject to the terms of our amendedrastdited certificate of incorporation and amendetrastated bylaws. Our board of directors
consists of six directors, four of whom qualify“aglependent” under New York Stock Exchange listatgndards.

In accordance with our amended and restated cattfiof incorporation and our amended and restatkedvs, our board of directors is
divided into three classes with staggered threetggms. Only one class of directors will be eldcd¢ each annual meeting of our stockholder:
with the other classes continuing for the remairafeheir respective three-year terms. Our directoe divided among the three classes as
follows:

» the Class | directors are Peter Flint and Gregoajddff, and their terms expire at the annual meeatinstockholders to be held in

2013;

» the Class Il directors are Sami Inkinen and Thar& uw, and their terms expire at the annual mgetirstockholders to be held in
2014; anc

» the Class lll directors are Erik Bardman and Robgles, and their terms expire at the annual mgetdfrstockholders to be held in
2015.

Any increase or decrease in the number of direstdide distributed among the three classes st Hsanearly as possible, each class
consist of one-third of the directors.

This classification of our board of directors mayé the effect of delaying or preventing changesointrol of our company.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has undertaken a revievh@fidependence of each director. Based on infeomatovided by each director
concerning his or her background, employment, dfiichions, our board of directors has determiriedt Ms. Gouw and Messrs. Bardman,
Moles, and Waldorf do not have a relationship thatild interfere with the exercise of independerijment in carrying out the responsibilities
of a director and that each of these directorsidependent” as that term is defined under theiegapke rules and regulations of the SEC and
the listing standards of the New York Stock Excharig making these determinations, our board @fafirs considered the current and prior
relationships that each n@mployee director has with our company and all othets and circumstances our board of directoesral releval
in determining their independence, including thedjieial ownership of our capital stock by each+eomployee director, and the transactions
involving them described in the section titled “@ém Relationships and Related Party Transactions.”

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has established an auditwittee, a compensation committee, and a nominatintggovernance committee. The
composition and responsibilities of each of the gottees of our board of directors is described Wweldembers will serve on these committ
until their resignation or until as otherwise datared by our board of directors.
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Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of Messrs. BardmaneMand Waldorf, with Mr. Bardman serving as Gimain. The composition of our
audit committee meets the requirements for indepecel under current New York Stock Exchange lissitagpdards and SEC rules and
regulations. Each member of our audit committeetente financial literacy requirements of the Newrk/ Stock Exchange listing standards.
In addition, our board of directors has determitied Mr. Bardman is an “audit committee financigbert” within the meaning of Item 407(d)
of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act. Ouriacdmmittee, among other things:

» selects a qualified firm to serve as the independsgistered public accounting firm to audit ourafincial statement
* helps to ensure the independence and performartbe afdependent registered public accounting f

» discusses the scope and results of the audit hétindependent registered public accounting fimd, reviews, with management
and the independent registered public accounting, fbur interim and ye-end operating result

» develops procedures for employees to submit cos@monymously about questionable accounting ot aualiters;
* reviews our policies on risk assessment and riskagement
* reviews related party transactiol

» obtains and reviews a report by the independergtergd public accounting firm at least annualgttdescribes our internal cont
procedures, any material issues with such procsedarel any steps taken to deal with such issuek

» approves (or, as permitted, pre-approves) all amditall permissible non-audit services, other tfmminimisnon-audit services, t
be performed by the independent registered pubtownting firm.

Our audit committee operates under a written chént satisfies the applicable rules of the SEQ the listing standards of the New
York Stock Exchange.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of Ms. GouwMndValdorf, with Mr. Waldorf serving as Chairmarhe composition of our
compensation committee meets the requirementsif@pendence under New York Stock Exchange listagdsirds and SEC rules and
regulations. Each member of the compensation cameni also a non-employee director, as definedyaunt to Rule 16B-promulgated unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenddtiedExchange Act, and an outside director, amddfpursuant to Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The purpose of our compensadmmittee is to discharge the responsibilitisur board of directors relating to
compensation of our executive officers. Our compgoa committee, among other things:

e reviews, approves, and determines, or make recomaiatiens to our board of directors regarding, theagensation of our executive
officers;

» administers our stock and equity incentive pl:
» reviews and approves and makes recommendations twoard of directors regarding incentive compengsaind equity plans; ar
» establishes and reviews general policies relatrgpmpensation and benefits of our employ

Our compensation committee operates under a wigttarter that satisfies the applicable rules ofSB€ and the listing standards of the
New York Stock Exchang:
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Nominating and Governance Committee

Our nominating and governance committee consisidasisrs. Bardman, Moles, and Waldorf, with Mr. Wafdserving as Chairman. T
composition of our nominating and governance cottemimeets the requirements for independence urelerrk Stock Exchange listing
standards and SEC rules and regulations. Our ndiminand governance committee, among other things:

» identifies, evaluates and selects, or make recordatems to our board of directors regarding, nomén®r election to our board of
directors and its committee

» evaluates the performance of our board of direaadsof individual directors

» considers and makes recommendations to our boatieators regarding the composition of our bodrdicectors and its
committees

» reviews developments in corporate governance |ges;
» evaluates the adequacy of our corporate governanactices and reporting; a
» develops and makes recommendations to our boatiesftors regarding corporate governance guidebmesmatters

The nominating and governance committee operatgsrunwritten charter that satisfies the applicéibtng requirements and rules of
the New York Stock Exchange.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

None of our executive officers currently servesinathe past year has served, as a member of #el lod directors or compensation
committee of any entity that has one or more exeeutfficers serving on our board of directors ompensation committee.

Non-Employee Director Compensation

The following table provides information concernithg compensation paid by us to each of our nonl@rap directors in the year ended
December 31, 2012. Mr. Inkinen is a non-employeeatdr, but his compensation is set forth in thetiea titled “Executive Compensation”.
For all non-employee directors, we offer to reindauany travel expenses or other related expensasténding meetings.

Change in
Pension
Value and
Non-Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Deferred All
Fees Stock Plan Compensatior Other
E?g‘;g Awards Option Compensatior Compensatior
in Cash Awards Earnings Total
Name OIS ®) $) PO [©) [©) ®) ®)
Current non-employee
directors:
Erik Bardmar $4,87¢ $155,57! — — $160,45(
Theresia Gouv $1,25( $ 85,26( — — $ 86,51(
Robert Moles $3,37¢ $ 87,357 — — $ 90,73:
Gregory Waldort $6,75( $272,93( — — $ 25,00(® $304,68(

@ Cash fees paid for board and/or committee sergffeat a partial year of service beginning upondbmpletion of our IPO in September

2012.

The amounts reported represent the aggregate dadamfair value of the stock options awarded todihector in fiscal 2012, calculated in
accordance with ASC Topic 718. Such grant-dateviaine does not take into account any estimatddifares related to service-vestng
conditions. The assumptions used in calculatinggthet date fair value of the stock options repbitethis column are set forth in the
stocl-based compensation note to our audited finana@gdistents included in this Annual Report on Fori-K.

@
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@ As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate numberavéshunderlying options awards outstanding for edicur non-employee directors

was:

Name Options
Erik Bardman 24.,50(
Theresia Gouv 10,50¢(
Robert Moles 126,17:
Gregory Waldor! 49,00(

@ The Company paid Mr. Waldorf a cash bonus of $25j6@®012 as an incentive to become our lead inutdge director

GregoryWaldorf Letter Agreement

In January 2012, we entered into a letter agreemi¢ghtGregory Waldorf confirming his agreement & as the lead independent
director of our board of directors. Pursuant toléieer agreement, in February 2012, our boardrettbrs granted to Mr. Waldorf a stock
option to purchase 24,500 shares of common stoalpate per share of $6.81, which was the fairkeiavalue of our common stock on the
date of grant. The stock option granted to Mr. Vddldests monthly over a 12-month period, and hassdting commencement date of July 1,
2011. As such, a majority of shares subject tasthek option were vested on the date of grant, lwhias in recognition of Mr. Waldorf's
significant contributions and service to us asraalor and advisor. In addition, pursuant to thiteteagreement, we also paid Mr. Waldorf a
cash bonus of $25,000 in April 2012, and agree@itaburse him for reasonable travel and incideexpenses that we approve. Additionally,
in July 2012, our board of directors granted to Wialdorf a stock option to purchase 24,500 sharesmmon stock at a price per share of
$16.53, which was the fair market value of our camratock on the date of grant. The stock optiomigdto Mr. Waldorf vests monthly over
a 12-month period, and has a vesting commencena¢atod July 1, 2012. The vesting of both of Mr. daf’'s stock option grants accelerat:
full upon a “company transaction” (as defined ia #005 Plan). Both of Mr. Waldorf's stock optioragts are “early-exercisable” as to
unvested shares, provided that unvested sharssilject to our repurchase on a termination of servi

Erik Bardman Letter Agreement

In May 2012, we entered into a letter agreemerti Witk Bardman confirming his agreement to serv@oanboard of directors and as the
chairman of our audit committee. Pursuant to titede@greement, our board of directors granted toBdrdman a stock option to purchase
24,500 shares of our common stock at a price pestt $13.32, which was the fair market valuewf@mmon stock on the date of grant.
The stock option granted to Mr. Bardman vests mgrdher a 12-month period and has a vesting comeraeat date of June 5, 2012. The
vesting of Mr. Bardman'’s stock option grant accates in full upon a “company transaction” (as dedirn the 2005 Plan). Mr. Bardman'’s
stock option grant is “early-exercisable” as to ested shares, provided that unvested shares gezstdour repurchase on a termination of
service.

Option Grants to Directors

In February 2012, our board of directors granteRdbert Moles a stock option to purchase 12,256eshaf our common stock at a price
per share of $6.81, which was the fair market valueur common stock on the date of grant. Thekstgation granted to Mr. Moles vests
monthly over a 12-month period and has a vestimynsencement date of February 1, 2012. The vestif@roMoles’s February 2012 stock
option grant accelerates in full upon a “compamaysaction” (as defined in the 2005 Plan). Mr. Mal€®bruary 2012 stock option grant is
“early-exercisable” as to unvested shares, providatiunvested shares are subject to our repurdmadermination of service. In addition, on
September 19, 2012, our board of directors gratatédr. Moles a stock option to purchase 5,825 shafeur common stock at a price per
share of $17.00, which was the initial public offfigrprice of our common stock and was the fair retiwkalue of our common stock on the date
of grant. The stock option granted to Mr. Molestgemonthly over a five-month period and has a ngstommencement date of February 1,
2013. The vesting of Mr. Moles’s September 201 2Istaption grant accelerates in full upon a “chaimgeontrol” (@s defined in the 2012 Pla

-10z-



Table of Contents

On September 19, 2012, our board of directors grhrt Theresia Gouw a stock option to purchase0D0shares of our common stock at
a price per share of $17.00, which was the ingiddlic offering price of our common stock and whas fair market value of our common stock
on the date of grant. The stock option granted $o Gbuw vests monthly over a nine-month periodfzagla vesting commencement date of
October 1, 2012. The vesting of Ms. Gouw’s stockarpgrant accelerates in full upon a “change intowl” (as defined in the 2012 Plan).

On September 19, 2012, our board of directors grhrtt Sami Inkinen a stock option to purchase Xdb@ares of our common stock at a
price per share of $17.00, which was the initidhluoffering price of our common stock and was féie market value of our common stock
the date of grant. The stock option granted tolWkinen vests monthly over a nine-month period hasl a vesting commencement date of
October 1, 2012. The vesting of Mr. Inkinen’s stogkion grant accelerates in full upon a “changedntrol” (as defined in the 2012 Plan).

Directors who are also our employees receive niiaddl compensation for their service as a diredburing 2012, Messrs. Flint and
Inkinen were employees. See the section titled tHttiee Compensation” for more information aboutitltempensation.

Outside Director Compensation Policy

On October 30, 2012, our board of directors adofitedOutsider Director Compensation Policy to fdiegaour practices regarding cash
and equity compensation to non-employee directors.

Cash Compensation

Under the Outsider Director Compensation Policyn-employee directors will receive annual cash netia for service in the following
positions:

Annual

- Cash
Position Retainer
Audit committee chair $16,00(
Audit committee member other than ct 10,00(
Compensation committee chi 10,00(
Compensation committee member other than ¢ 5,00(
Nominating and governance committee cl 7,00(
Nominating and governance committee member ottzer thait 3,50(

Equity Compensation

Non-employee directors are eligible to receiveygies of equity awards (except incentive stockans) under our 2012 Equity Plan, or
the 2012 Plan, including discretionary awards meieced under the Outsider Director CompensatioiciPohll awards under the Outsider
Director Compensation Policy will be automatic ammh-discretionary.

The Outsider Director Compensation Policy provittes on the date of each annual meeting of stodensifollowing our initial public
offering, each non-employee director, will be gehéin annual award of restricted stock units utitePlan having a value equal to $100,000
In addition, the lead independent director andaingit committee chair will each receive an addaicemnual award having a value equal to
$100,000 at each annual meeting. Each annual amithifdlly vest on the earlier to occur of: (i) theext annual meeting following the date of
grant or (ii) the anniversary of the grant dateg@tch case, subject to continued service as adlirdrough the vesting date. For purposes o
Outsider Director Compensation Policy, value mdhrsper share fair market value of the our comntookson a given date, multiplied by the
shares subject to the annual award.

-104-



Table of Contents

Notwithstanding the vesting schedule described abttwe vesting of all equity awards granted to mamployee director, including any
award granted outside of the Outsider Director Cemsgtion Policy, will vest in full upon a “changedontrol” (as defined in the 2012 Plan).
ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

Overview

The following discussion and analysis of the conga¢ion arrangements of our named executive offislessild be read together with the
compensation tables and related disclosures dbtlietow. This discussion contains forward-lookstgtements that are based on our current
plans, considerations, expectations, and deterioimategarding future compensation programs. Thegaamount and form of compensation
and the compensation policies and practices thadeet in the future may differ materially from cemtly planned programs as summarized it
this discussion.

The compensation provided to our named executifieeo$ for 2012 is detailed in the 2012 Summary @ensation Table and
accompanying footnotes and narrative that folldws $ection. This section explains our executivapensation philosophy and objectives,
compensation-setting process, and the elementsrafoonpensation program.

Our named executive officers in 2012 were:

» Peter Flint, our Chief Executive Officer, or CE@dacc-founder;

*  Sami Inkinen, our former President an-founder;

* Sean Aggarwal, our Chief Financial Officer, or Cf

» Paul Levine, our Chief Operating Officer, or CC

» Daniele Farnedi, our Chief Technology Officer; ¢

» Scott Darling, our Vice President, General Coureed, Corporate Secreta

In March 2012, Mr. Inkinen’s employment with us eddbut Mr. Inkinen continues to serve as one ofdinectors.

During 2012, Mr. Farnedi served as our Vice Pregidéngineering, and was appointed as our Chiehiiglogy Officer in March 2013.

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our executive compensation philosophy is to proad®mpensation program that attracts and retainsx@cutive officers, including c
named executive officers, and to motivate themuteye our corporate objectives while encouragiegctieation of long-term value for our
stockholders. We strive to provide compensatiorkages to our executive officers that are competitreward achievement of our business
objectives, and align executive and stockholdesregts through equity ownership.

Our executive compensation program is designedh@ae the following principal objectives:

e attract, motivate and retain qualified executiv@esupport growth expectatior

» provide total direct compensation, consisting ddigaand short-term and long-term incentive awdhads$ are competitive with the
market while remaining internally equitable and;f

e ensure that our executive compensation progranaetu@l payouts are aligned with financial perforoeand strategic business
goals;
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* ensure a substantial portion of each executivésdd tmmpensation is at-risk and varies based orpemsand individual
performance; an

» align the executive compensation program with tsbibr-term and lon-term stockholder interest

Compensation-Setting Process
Role of the Board of Directors and Compensation @diae

The initial compensation arrangements with our atiee officers, including the named executive a#ftg, have been determined in
negotiations with each individual executive wheanlsaxecutive joined us. Historically, the boardi&ctors or our CEO has been responsible
for negotiating these arrangements.

With respect to continuing executive compensatioaregements, historically, our board of directoas been responsible for overseeing,
determining, and approving the compensation ofGiE® and our former President, and has been redperisi overseeing the compensation
of our other executive officers on an informal kasVith respect to the compensation of our namedwive officers other than our CEO, our
board of directors consults with our CEO and hagcslly informally approved his recommendationsdese of his closer nexus to his direct
reports. Historically, our board of directors hagsiseen our 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, or the Z@B, and awards thereunder.

Typically, in the first quarter of each year, owabd of directors would review the compensationwfCEO. At that time, our board of
directors would also evaluate the performance efcttmpany and the CEQ’s contributions thereto terdene whether to pay him cash
bonuses for the previous year and, if so, the amafuany such bonuses.

In February 2012, we established a compensatiomttiee of our board of directors, or the Committhat has assumed responsibility
for overseeing our executive compensation progradwvéll approve the compensation of our CEO andexarcutive officers. The Committee
determined incentive compensation earned by ouedamrecutive officers for the 2012 performanceqeerGoing forward, the Committee v
be responsible for annually reviewing and approdompensatory arrangements for our named exeooftivers and will act as administrator
of our equity compensation plans. See the summesgription of the Committee’s composition and atrairt the section titled “Management—
Committees of the Board of Directors—Compensatiom@iittee.”

Role of Senior Management

In prior years, our CEO has typically sought thpragal of our board of directors on an informalibasgarding the compensation for
other named executive officers. While, historicatiyr board of directors had final authority wispect to compensation decisions for our
executive officers, our board of directors typigaleferred to the recommendations of our CEO wa#pect to our other named executive
officers because our CEO had a better understarditite performance of his direct reports. Withpess to his role in our executive
compensation process, our CEO quarterly reviewegénformance of the other named executive offisatsconsulted with our board of
directors on an informal basis on his conclusiams$ @commendations as to their compensation, ingudlase salary adjustments and cash
bonus payouts. Our CEO advised our board of directo recommended stock option awards to the ottmed executive officers, which we
subject to formal approval by our board of direstor

Following the establishment of the Committee in20dur CEO continued to have a similar advisorg tolthe Committee with respect
to compensation decisions.

Role of Compensation Consultant

The Committee is authorized to retain the servidame or more executive compensation advisorg,sees fit, in connection with the
establishment of our compensation programs antkerkfzolicies.
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In May 2012, the Committee retained Radford, aomati compensation consultant, to provide it wittoimation, recommendations and
other advice relating to executive compensatioamongoing basis. Accordingly, Radford now serntdbadiscretion of the Committee. The
Committee has directed Radford to develop one aergmups of peer companies to help us determmeypipropriate level of overall
compensation for our executive officers, as welhssess each separate element of compensatiorg gathl of more formally ensuring that the
compensation we offer to our executive officersdampetitive and fair.

In October 2012, the Committee retained Radfongrtwide it with information, recommendations antestadvice relating to a peer
group evaluation and executive compensation revieMovember 2012, the Committee approved the ¥atig per group for use in
benchmarking and evaluating our executives’ comgigms. Bazaarvoice, Blue Nile, Brightcove, Dice Hiolgs, eHealth, Ellie Mae, Eloqua,
Epocrates, Jive Software, Liveperson, LogMeln, Matleader, Move Inc., OpenTable, Spark Networksgbe, TechTarget, Vocus, XO
Group, Yelp, and Zillow. With respect to the 20I2npensatory decisions, the Committee did not us@der group and/or benchmark
executive compensation and the Committee only densd third-party survey data for a general undadihg of market compensation
practices.

As we continue to become established as a pultiajed company, we expect that the specific doacgmphasis and components of
our executive compensation program will continuevolve as will our process for establishing exeeutompensation. In the future, the
Committee may continue to retain Radford or anotivenpensation consultant to advise us regarding@recutive compensation program to
ensure that it remains properly aligned with ougaing business strategy and that the pay mix areldeare competitive with current market
practices.

Elements of Executive Compensation

Our compensation program for our named executifieav$ in 2012 reflects our stage of developmerda psvate company that was
transitioning towards becoming a publicly-tradedhpany. As a private company, we had emphasizedsb®f equity in the form of stock
options to incentivize our named executive offiderfocus on our growth and create sustainable-teng stockholder value. Our founders
were initially incentivized through restricted stodéfter our initial public offering, we introducemstricted stock units as a form of equity
compensation to our named executive officers. Wievethat equity awards offer our named execubfficers a valuable long-term incentive
that aligns their interests with the interests af stockholders.

We also offer cash compensation to our named eixecofficers in the form of a base salary and amuahcash incentive award
opportunity at levels that we believe, based orettperience and knowledge of our board of directtves Committee and our management
team, are competitive for our stage of developra@dtindustry. Our annual cash incentive award dppdfes generally focus on the
achievement of specific near-term financial andtetyic objectives and individual key performancgotives that will further our longer-term
growth objectives. In addition, in order to attraod induce potential executive officers to leadwrtexisting employment, we occasionally
provide for a sign-on bonus. In the case of theuitnent of our CFO, we also offered certain retmrabenefits.

Base Salaries

Base salaries provide our named executive offiséisa fixed amount of consistent compensation aredan important motivating factor
in attracting and retaining these individuals. Vendt apply specific formulas to determine adjustta¢o base salary. Historically, the base
salaries of our CEO and former President were vexieand adjusted on a periodic basis by our bofditectors. In 2012, the Committee was
responsible for reviewing and approving base sddor our named executive officers. For our CE®,Eommittee considered the
recommendations of our former President and alsstope of our CEO’s performance, individual cdnitions, responsibilities, experience,
and prior base salary level. For our other contiguiamed executive officers, our CEO reviewed aedmmended adjustments of base salary
to the Committee, taking into consideration thepgcof the named executive officer's performancedividual contributions, responsibilities,
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experience, prior base salary level, and, in tlse ©d a promotion, position. With respect to ouned executive officers, their initial base
salaries were generally established through arerigth negotiations at the time each named execaofiieer was hired, taking into account his
qualifications, experience, prior salary level, d&inel base salaries of our other executive officers.

In March 2012, the Committee approved base satangases for our named executive officers as st ielow. In making this
adjustment, the Committee considered the subjetdisters described above, as well as the contobatexpected from, and responsibilities of,
each named executive officer in preparing us tasitamn from a private company to a publicly-tradmanpany. Messrs. Aggarwal and Darling
did not receive base salary increases becausemvir@yhired late in 2011 and their base salari#éisadtime had been recently determined
through arm’s-length negotiations.

Base Salan
Base Salary Raise

Named Executive Officer at End of 201: in 2012
Peter Flint $ 285,00 $ 25,00(
Sami Inkiner® 250,00( —
Sean Aggarwe 260,00( —
Paul Levine 270,00( 20,00(
Daniele Farnec 225,50( 20,50(
Scott Darling 230,00( —

@ Mr. Inkinen resigned as our President effective i&81, 2012. The base salary reflected is hisysalaof his termination dat

Annual Incentive Compensation

In establishing our annual incentive compensatian,pur objective is to provide cash awards linf@dompany and individual
performance, remain competitive in the marketpkaue drive performance toward company goals. Cotpaaals focus on overarching
objectives for the organization, while individuddjectives represent key performance expectatiotteeadepartmental or individual level. In
setting these objectives, we identify the finaneiadl operational results required to successfutbyvghe business, while also recognizing that
internal and external factors may hinder this pesgr As such, these objectives are intended tbddkenging to achieve but within reach. Our
annual incentive compensation plan for named ekezofficers is a component of the SMT Bonus Piahich is summarized and described in
the section titled “Employee Benefit and Stock Plaelow. For 2012, the Committee determined thagfiygropriate performance period wo
be annual because the Committee believed a fullamperiod reflected the best means for evaluatimjrewarding performance. The
Committee selected revenue and (adjusted) EBITD#hesorporate performance goals because thesesmyied key objectives for us in 2C
The Committee determined the relative weightingvieein corporate and individual performance basetth@mole of the executive officer
within the company. The percentage breakdown betweegporate goals and individual goals for eachathaxecutive officer as follows: (i)
Messrs. Flint, Inkinen, Aggarwal, and Levine ha@D&6 corporate / 10% individual breakdown, andNigssrs. Farnedi and Darling had a 70%
corporate / 30% individual breakdown. Messrs. Flinkinen, Aggarwal, and Levine, who are all c-leegecutives, had a greater emphasis on
corporate goals because the compensation commigieted to more closely tie the annual incentiveoopmities to our devel executives wit
corporate results. With respect to assessing iddatiperformance, our CEO reviews the individugeotives for, and achievements of, the
named executive officers (other than himself) beeahe is best suited to evaluate his direct repbhts Committee reviews the individual
objectives for, and achievements of, our CEO. Fdr22 corporate achievement was capped at 200% fedae Committee wanted to continue
incentivizing our named executive officers to extéee performance goals, while maintaining a cestainty with respect to incentive
compensation. In addition to the annual bonus ptenCommittee approved a discretionary overachievg pool of potentially $500,000 or
$1,000,000 if we exceeded both of our 2012 corpogatls beyond a certain level. Individual allowasi under this discretionary
overachievement pool to any eligible employee in2012 bonus plan would be recommended by our GEBject to approval by the
Committee.
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2012 Incentive Target

For 2012, our annual cash incentive award oppdiasnivere designed to reward our named executifieeod based on our performance
and the individual named executive officer's cdmition to that performance. The target award oppdtst for our CEO was established by the
Committee. With respect to our other named exeeudfficers, each target award opportunity was basetthe contractual rights set forth in
respective offer letter agreement. The 2012 taageird opportunities were as follows:

Target Award

Named Executive Officer Opportunity

Peter Flint $ 110,00(
Sami Inkiner 100,00(
Sean Aggarwe 100,00(
Paul Levine 100,00(
Daniele Farnec 31,00(
Scott Darling 50,00(

In addition to regular annual incentive compensatibe Committee, in 2012, determined that thenfiie thresholds for the 2011
incentive awards were too aggressive and estadlishéncentive arrangement for our CEO and fornmesiBlent to potentially earn, based on
2012 performance, a portion of the incentive awhad was not earned in 2011. Accordingly, the Cottemidetermined a rollover bonus
potential for our CEO and former President of $88,and $50,000, respectively. If we achieved 2@isannual revenue targets that were
deemed very challenging, then each applicable ¢xecofficer would receive 50% of the applicabldiaeer bonus potential. If we exceeded
these semi-annual targets by more than 5%, thénagaalicable executive officer would receive 100the applicable rollover bonus
potential. The rollover bonuses would have beed,faithe extent earned, in July 2012, subjecbtdinued employment of the executive
officer at the end of the six month period endinge)30, 2012. If the executive officer employmenirtinates prior to the end of the six month
period ending June 30, 2012, then any earned milbenus would be pro-rated. The rollover bonus avasmcentive opportunity separate from
and in addition to any annual 2012 incentive award.

2012 Incentive Achievement

None of our named executive officers received aruahcash incentive award for 2012 because we aidneet the minimum revenue
and adjusted EBITDA objectives established underSNT Bonus Plan or the revenue targets undemllwver bonus opportunity.

Sign-On Bonuses
In addition to our annual bonus opportunities, weasionally provide for sign-on bonuses as a nadterducement to join the company.

Equity-Based Incentive Compensation

We use stock options to attract, motivate, andriticze the executive talent necessary to accommglis business objectives while also
providing a significant long-term interest in owcsess by rewarding the creation of stockholdewe/aVesting for stock options is based on
continued employment with us, generally over foeang, thereby also encouraging the retention oérecutive officers. In addition to stock
options, we used restricted stock to incentivizefounders in connection with our incorporationséfollowing our initial public offering, we
started granting restricted stock units to profatecertain equity incentives regardless of flutimas in our stock price.

Historically, we have not applied a formula to detime the size of individual stock options grante@ur named executive officers.
Instead, our board of directors has generally datexd the size of individual grants
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using its collective business judgment and expedgetaking into account, among other factors, tie and responsibility of the individual
executive officer, the competitive market for theeutive officer’s position and the size, valued &esting status of existing equity awards.
Based upon these factors, our board of directotseoCommittee sets the size of each equity awsadevel it considers appropriate to create
meaningful incentive.

Our executive officers generally receive a stoctiampgrant at the time of hire, with only discretayy additional awards thereafter. In
addition to the factors considered above, theaizeew hire grants was based on arm’s-length natjotis at the time each named executive
officer was hired. Our current informal practicadasot provide additional equity awards until afige initial stock option grant has been
substantially vested.

During 2012, our board of directors and/or the Cattem approved two named executive officer grantsah aggregate of 27,166 shares.
Our board of directors granted a stock option to IMkinen for his service as a member of our badrdirectors and the Committee approved ¢
merit grant to Mr. Farnedi because his existindompgirants were largely vested compared to otheretbexecutive officers and we wanted to
provide him with sufficient additional incentive ¢ontinue to align his interests with those of stackholders.

The following table summarizes the size of the sgaivard grants awarded to each named executiieeoff 2012:

Number of
Shares of
Common Stock
Underlying
Stock Options
Named Executive Officer Granted in 2012
Peter Flint —
Sami Inkiner 10,50(
Sean Aggarwe —
Paul Levine —
Daniele Farnec 16,66¢

Scott Darling —

In addition to the grants described above, in 2092, Committee amended the sign-on stock optiantgrof Messrs. Aggarwal and
Darling to remove the one-year vesting cliff angbtovide for monthly vesting over the four-year tiag period. The Committee made this
amendment because it wanted Messrs. Aggarwal arlth@#o be able to participate as selling stockleo$ in connection with our IPO and,
absent the amendment, each of their sign-on gvamitd not have reached the one-year vesting diiffrgo our IPO.

Also in 2012, in connection with his confirmatomnpployment letter and in order to create parity agiour named executive officers, we
amended Mr. Farnedi’'s 2011 stock option grant tviole for the similar potential accelerated vestiegefits as our other named executive
officers.

We expect that the Committee may make discretioaqujty grants shortly following the end of eaclaye

Retirement and Other Benefits

Our named executive officers receive health andarebenefits under the same programs and sulbj¢lsetsame terms and conditions
our other salaried employees. These benefits isanedical, dental, and vision benefits; healthrsgariaccounts; short-term and long-term
disability insurance; accidental death and dismambat insurance; and basic life insurance. In @mdito promote preventative health
measures, we reimburse all our employees for gymimeeship.

Our named executive officers are eligible to pgrtite in our 401(k) retirement savings plan onséme basis as our other employees
who satisfy the plan’s eligibility requirements. \Wey make discretionary
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contributions to the plan in any year, subjectddain limits. In 2012, we made matching contribn§ under our 401(Kk) retirement savings |
to all eligible participants.

Generally, we have not provided perquisites or opleesonal benefits to our named executive officatiser than those offered to our
other salaried employees. However, in 2012, weigsal/our CFO, who resides over 50 miles from ofice$ in San Francisco, with an
apartment in San Francisco for his use on a tax-alebasis so long as Mr. Aggarwal is required twknin San Francisco. At the time of his
hiring in 2011, we believed that without providitigs benefit, we would not have been able to inddceAggarwal to join us and we contint
this benefit in 2012. Currently, we do not viewgugisites or other personal benefits as a compafemir executive compensation program.
All future practices with respect to perquisitether personal benefits will be approved and satligeperiodic review by the Committee.

Certain Arrangements with Executive Officers

In August 2012, we entered into confirmatory empiewnt letter agreements with Messrs. Flint and Firttat confirm the terms of their
employment with us. In addition, the initial tereasd conditions of employment for Messrs. Aggankakine and Darling are set forth in
written offer letter agreements. Each of the agesgswith our named executive officers was negadiain our behalf by our CEO, who
consulted with our board of directors, except for confirmatory employment letter agreement with Mint, which was negotiated on our
behalf by our board of directors. We believe that tonfirmatory employment letter and offer letigreements were necessary to induce thes
individuals to forego other opportunities or, i ttase of the offer letter agreements, to leavie ¢herent employment for the uncertainty of a
demanding position in a new and unfamiliar orgatiora

In filling these executive positions, we recognizledt it would be necessary to recruit candidatiéis thie requisite experience and skills.
Accordingly, we sought to develop competitive comgagion packages to attract qualified candidates eduld fill our most critical positions.
At the same time, we were sensitive to the neédtégrate new executive officers into our existsxgcutive compensation structure, balan:
both competitive and internal equity considerations

For a summary of the material terms and conditafrthese executive offer letter agreements, seeXeektive Confirmatory
Employment Letter and Offer Letter Agreements.”

Severance and Change in Control Arrangements

The confirmatory employment letter and offer letigreements and/or equity award agreements eritecedith certain of our named
executive officers provide certain protectionshia event of their termination of employment ungecified circumstances, including followi
a change in control of our company. We believe tiwse protections serve our executive retentigactibes by helping our named executive
officers maintain continued focus and dedicatiothtr responsibilities to maximize stockholderualincluding in the event of certain
qualifying terminations of employment or a trangacthat could result in a change in control of oampany. The terms of these agreements
were determined after review by our board of dwesof our retention goals for each named execufifteer. For a summary of the material
terms and conditions of these severance and chiarmgatrol arrangements, see the section titled tteRtial Payments Upon Termination or
Change in Control.”

Other Compensation Policies
Stock Ownership Guidelines

At this time, the Committee has not adopted staekarship guidelines with respect to our named ekeewofficers, although it may
consider doing so in the future. In connection waith initial public offering, we established aniges trading policy that prohibits, among ot
things, short sales, hedging of stock ownershigtipos, and transactions involving derivative sées relating to our common stock.
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Compensation Recovery Policy

At this time, we have not implemented a policy relgay retroactive adjustments to any cash or eepdtyed incentive compensation paid
to our executive officers and other employees whieegayments were predicated upon the achieveofidinancial results that were
subsequently the subject of a financial restaten¥ére Committee intends to adopt a general compiensacovery, or clawback, policy
covering our annual and long-term incentive awdatipand arrangements after the SEC adopts fited mnplementing the requirement of
Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @onsumer Protection Act.

Tax and Accounting Treatment of Compensation
Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Generally, Section 162(m) of the Internal RevenodéCdisallows a tax deduction to any publicly-heddporation for any remuneration
in excess of $1 million paid in any taxable yeaitsachief executive officer and to certain othgghty compensated officers. Remuneration in
excess of $1 million may be deducted if, among othiegs, it qualifies as “performance-based conspéinon” within the meaning of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Under a certain Section 162(m) exception, certampensation paid pursuant to a compensation plarigtence before the effective
date of the IPO will not be subject to the $1 raitllimitation until the earliest of: (i) the expii@an of the compensation plan, (ii) a material
modification of the compensation plan (as deterchimeder Section 162(m)), (iii) the issuance otladl employer stock and other compense
allocated under the compensation plan, or (iv)itise meeting of stockholders at which directors afected after the close of the third calenda
year following the year in which the offering ocsuwe expect that, where reasonably practicableyileeek to qualify the variabl
compensation paid to our executive officers unter‘performance-based compensation” exemption fi@rdeductibility limit. As such, in
approving the amount and form of compensation torexecutive officers in the future, we will considill elements of the cost to us of
providing such compensation, including the potémigact of Section 162(m). The Committee may ténudgment, authorize compensation
payments that do not comply with an exemption ftberdeductibility limit under Section 162(m) wherélieves that such payments are
appropriate to attract and retain executive talent.

Taxation of “Parachute” Payments and Deferred Conmpsation

We did not provide any executive officer, includiagy named executive officer, with a “gross-up’btrer reimbursement payment for
any tax liability that he or she might owe as ailtesf the application of Sections 280G, 4999, 094 of the Internal Revenue Code during
fiscal 2012, and we have not agreed and are netwibe obligated to provide any named executivieeffwith such a “gross-up” or other
reimbursement. Sections 280G and 4999 of the lat&avenue Code provide that executive officersdirettors who hold significant equity
interests and certain other service providers neagubject to an excise tax if they receive paymentenefits in connection with a change in
control that exceeds certain prescribed limits t#wad we, or a successor, may forfeit a deductiotheramounts subject to this additional tax.
Section 409A also imposes additional significaretaon the individual in the event that an exeeutifficer, director, or other service provider
receives “deferred compensation” that does not tieetequirements of Section 409A of the Internedéhue Code.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We follow Financial Accounting Standards Board Aacting Standards Codification Topic 718, or ASC itofil8, formerly known as
SFAS 123(R), for our equity-based awards. ASC T@f# requires companies to measure the compengatianse for all equity-based
payment awards made to employees and directotagding stock options and restricted stock awardseld on the grant date “fair value” of
these awards. This calculation is performed fopanting purposes and reported in the compensatlieg below, even though our executive
officers may never realize any value from their elgaASC Topic 718 also requires companies to
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recognize the compensation cost of their equitleba®mpensation awards in their income statememtstbe period that an executive officer
is required to render service in exchange for {iteoa or other award.

Risk Assessment and Compensation Practices

Our management assesses and discusses with theitieenmar compensation policies and practices fwreanployees as they relate to
our overall risk management, and based upon temsament, we believe that any risks arising frooh @olicies and practices are not
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effacts.

Compensation Committee Report

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the samjmtioned “Executive Compensation,” includedhiis atnnual report on Form XQO-
with management and, based on such review andsdigry the compensation committee has recommendad thoard of directors that this
“Executive Compensation” section be included is timnual report on Form 10-K and in our proxy stetet for our annual meeting of
stockholders.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee of thedoadirectors:

Gregory Waldorf (Chair)
Theresia Gouw
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides information regarditig total compensation for services rendered inagihcities that was earned by each
individual who served as our principal executivécefr or principal financial officer at any time dog fiscal 2012, and our three other named
executive officers who were serving as executifieefs as of December 31, 2012. These individua&sevour named executive officers for
fiscal 2012.

Non-Equity
Incentive All Other
Option Comgtlaarl:;atior Compensatior
Salary Awards Bonus Total
Name and Principal Position Year $) $) D ($) $® %) @ ($)
Peter Flint
Chief Executive Officer 2012 $278,91° $ $ $ $ $
— — — — 278,91°
2011 241,66’ 674,65¢ — — — 916,32:
Sami Inkiner
Former President 201z
72,917 124,8746) — — 142,200 339,99
2011 233,33 551,99( — — 7,00( 792,32:
Sean Aggarwe
Chief Financial Officer 201z 256,00(
48,877©) — — 87,48¢0) 392,36¢
2011 37,50( 664,78 50,0004 14,24 6,207 772,73¢
Paul Levine
Chief Operating Officer 201z 264,18(
— — — 6,93: 271,11
2011 220,67 1,171,841 — 48,21¢ 5,83: 1,446,56!
Daniele Farnec
Vice President of 201z 220,32:
Engineering 131,32¢ — — 6,10¢ 357,75’
2011 200,83: 116,62¢ — 23,00( 6,66 347,12:
Scott Darling
Vice President, General 201z 226,46
Counsel, and Corporate 19,556 — — 8,75( 254,76!
Secretary 2011 39,21¢ 265,91 — 8,35¢ — 313,48’

Mr. Inkinen resigned as our President in March 2@l continues to serve as a member of our bdaddextors.

The amounts reported represent the aggregate dadmfair value of the stock options awarded todw@ed executive officer in fiscal

2012, calculated in accordance with ASC Topic Buh grant-date fair value does not take into aticany estimated forfeitures

related to service-vesting conditions. The assummptused in calculating the grant date fair valudb® stock options reported in this

column are set forth in the stock-based compensatite to our audited financial statements includetiis Annual Report on Form 10-

K.

The amounts reported represent performance-basadisiwarned by each named executive officer bas#ltecachievement of certain

of our company and individual management goalstaedndividual’'s target incentive compensation antppro-rated for fiscal 2011

based on their hire date, if applicable. The makéerms of the incentive compensation awards aseribed in the section titled “—

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectiveserehts of Executive Compensation—Annual Incentisenfiensation.” The

amounts were paid in February 20

Unless otherwise described in the footnotes belbbevamounts reported represent the amount of thehmg contributions made by us

to the named executive offi¢ s account under our 401(k) ple

The amount represents a $50,000 sign-on bonus foAlygarwal earned in November 2011 when he joimédch was paid in

January 2017

Of the amount reported, $84,055 represents costsrad by and reimbursed to Mr. Aggarwal in fis2@l2 for housing costs in San

Francisco, as further discussec*—Executive Confirmatory Employment Letter and Offetter Agreemen—Sean Aggarwe’

Of the amount reported, the following representgsiticremental fair value, calculated in accordamitlke ASC Topic 718, as a result of

material modifications to stock options: (i) Samkinen, $39,614 (as a result of the extension efoibst-termination exercise period

provided in the Transition Agreement), (ii) SeargAgval, $48,844 (as a result of removing the 124mersting cliff of Mr.

Aggarwal’s sign-on stock option) and (iii) Scottibag, $19,551 (as a result of removing the 12-rhargsting cliff of Mr. Darling’s

sigr-on stock option)

@ Of the amount reported, $114,583 reflects a casbrance payment made to Mr. Inkinen pursuant td'thesition Agreement that we
entered into with him in connection with his teration of employment, and $25,801 of the amountntepareflects payment of accru
vacation.

@

@

®

@)

®)

(6)
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards 2012

The following table presents information regardgngnts of plan-based awards made to our named txeafficers during fiscal 2012.

All Other
Estimated Future Payouts Option Awards: _
Under Non-Equity Incentive Exercise ol Grant Date
Plan Awards ($)1) Number of
Securities Base Price Fair Value
Underlying of Option of Option
Grant Options Awards Awards
Name Date Threshold Target # ($/sh) @ $®
Peter Flint — — $ 110,00(@ — $ — $ —
Sami Inkiner 9/19/201. — 100,00(®) 10,50(10 17.0C 85,26(
Sean Aggarwe — — 100,00(®) — — —
Paul Levine — — 100,00(™ — — —
Daniele Farnec 7/127/201. — 31,000®) 13,09¢(1) 16.5:% 103,19°
7/127/201. — — 3,570 16.5:% 28,13:
Scott Darling — — 50,00(® — — —

@

@

®

@)

®)

(6)

O]

®)

©)

(10)

(11)

The amounts represent target performance-basedrasnpayable at the time the grants of awards we@enand assume the
achievement of the corporate and individual comptsat the target levels for 2012. Payments uridsipian are not subject to a
minimum payment requirement but are subject to @imam payment at the target amount. The matenialdeof the awards are
discussed in the section titled “—Executive Comp#ins Philosophy and Objectives—Elements of ExeeuGompensation—Annual
Incentive Compensatic”

The exercise price is set at the fair market vakreshare of our common stock on the grant dateaEiiscussion of our methodology
for determining the fair value of our common stas#e the section titled “ManagemenbDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operatic—Critical Accounting Policies and Estima—Stock-Based Compensatic”

The amounts reported represent the aggregate dadmfair value of the stock options awarded todw@ed executive officer in fiscal
2012, calculated in accordance with ASC Topic Buh grant-date fair value does not take into accany estimated forfeitures
related to service-vesting conditions. The assumptused in calculating the grant date fair valud® stock options reported in this
column are set forth in the notes to our auditadricial statements included in this Annual ReporfForm 1¢-K.

Mr. Flint did not receive an annual incentive bofarsfiscal 2012. The targets underlying this bomgse not achieved and no bonus
was paid

Mr. Inkinen did not receive an annual incentive ®for fiscal 2012. His employment was terminatadrgo the end of the fiscal year
and he was not eligible for a payme

Mr. Aggarwal was eligible to receive a $100,000w@alrincentive bonus, subject to specific perforneametrics. The targets underlying
this bonus were not achieved and no bonus was

Mr. Levine was eligible to receive a $100,000 ahime@entive bonus, subject to specific performamegrics. The targets underlying
this bonus were not achieved and no bonus was

Mr. Farnedi was eligible to receive a $31,000 ahmeentive bonus, subject to specific performamerics. The targets underlying t
bonus were not achieved and no bonus was

Mr. Darling was eligible to receive a $50,000 arinneentive bonus, subject to specific performanerics. The targets underlying t
bonus were not achieved and no bonus was

The stock option granted to Mr. Inkinen is not intliagely exercisable and will vest in 9 successiyeat monthly installments upon the
completion of each month of service measured flwernvesting commencement de

The stock options granted to Mr. Farnedi are nohédiately exercisable and will vest in 48 successigual monthly installments upon
the completion of each month of service measurem the vesting commencement date. In the evenFlnedis employment is eith
terminated by us without cause or he resigns fodgeason within 12 months following a change intoa, then, in each case, Mr.
Farnedi will be entitled to accelerated vestind@®36 of the the-unvested shares subject to the stock op
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2012 Year-End

The following table sets forth information regamglioutstanding stock options held by our named ekexofficers at the end of fiscal
2012:

Option Awards (1)

Number of
Securities Number of
Underlying Securities
Vesting Unexercise( Underlying Option
Commencemen Unexercised Exercise Option
Options (#) Options (#) Expiration
Name Date Exercisable Unexercisabl¢ Price ($) Date
Peter Flint 9/22/200¢®@ 266,33¢ 61,46¢ $ 4.2¢ 2/7/202:
Sami Inkiner 10/1/201:®) 2,33t 8,16i 17.0C 9/19/202.
Sean Aggarwe 11/9/201: 241,77.0) — 5.5t 11/8/202:
Paul Levine 2/14/201: 197,35t 290,20« 4.2¢ 5/10/202:
Daniele Farnec 1/18/200° 132,25 — 0.1f 1/30/201°
1/18/201.@ 27,15: 29,51« 4.2¢ 2/7/202:
7/27/201:@ 1,38¢ 15,27¢ 16.5¢ 7127/202.

Scott Darling 10/31/201. 19,50¢ 68,50: 5.5t 11/8/202:

@ Each stock option was granted pursuant to our Z388. Unless otherwise described in the footnosdawh the stock options are not

immediately exercisable. Unless otherwise describélde footnotes below, the shares of common ssotlect to such stock options will
vest over a four-year period, with 25% of the shdocevest upon completion of one year of servicasueed from the vesting
commencement date, and the balance will vest isu86essive equal monthly installments upon the éstiop of each additional month
of service thereafte

These stock options were granted to Messrs. Fiikinen, and Farnedi on February 8, 2011. Thesemptvill vest in 48 successive
equal monthly installments upon the completionaxftemonth of service measured from the vesting centement date

This stock option was granted to Mr. Inkinen ont8eber 19, 2012. This option will vest in 9 sucoesgqual monthly installments
upon the completion of each month of service meakfrom the vesting commencement d

This stock option was granted to Mr. Farnedi oty 27, 2012. These options will vest in 48 successiyual monthly installments upon
the completion of each month of service measurem the vesting commencement date. In the evenFinedi’s employment is either
terminated by us without cause or he resigns fodgeason within 12 months following the changedntrol, then in each case, Mr.
Farnedi will be entitled to accelerated vesting®36 of the the-unvested shares subject to the stock op

The stock option granted to Mr. Aggarwal is immeeliaexercisable for any or all of the shares stittjeereto. However, 176,293
unvested shares purchased under such option wélibgect to repurchase by us, at the lower of thggral price paid per share or the
current fair market value per share, should heectmprovide services to us prior to vesting insthehares

@
®

@)

®)

Option Exercises and Stock Vested
The following table presents information concerniing exercise of options during fiscal 2012 forreatour named executive officers.

Option Awards

Number of Shares

Acquired on Exercis¢ Value Realized

on

Exercise

Name # %o
Peter Flint — $ —
Sami Inkiner 201,15( 2,397,70:
Sean Aggarwe — —
Paul Levine 48,20( 516,22:
Daniele Farnec 20,30( 301,45!
Scott Darling 8,70( 82,21¢

@ Reflects the difference between the market priceunfcommon stock at the time of exercise on ther@se date and the exercise price of

the option.
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Pension Benefits and Nonqualified Deferred Compensan

We do not provide a pension plan for our employaad,none of our named executive officers partteippdn a nonqualified deferred
compensation plan during 2012.

Executive Confirmatory Employment Letter and Offer Letter Agreements
Peter Flint

We entered into a confirmatory employment letteeagent with Mr. Flint, our CEO, in August 2012 €Ttonfirmatory employment
letter agreement has no specific term and conssitat-will employment. Mr. Flint is eligible for amnual incentive bonus of $110,000, subjec
to achievement of specific performance metricaddition, Mr. Flint was eligible for a one-time lmler bonus of $55,000 in the six months
ended June 30, 2012 that was not earned.

Sami Inkinen

We had not entered into an employment agreemesffear letter agreement with Mr. Inkinen. In 2012 ,donnection with his termination
of employment, we entered into a transition agregmth Mr. Inkinen. For a summary of the matet&ims and conditions of the transition
agreement, see “—Sami Inkinen Transition Agreement.

Sean Aggarwal

We entered into an offer letter agreement with AMygarwal, our CFO, in October 2011. The offer letigreement has no specific term
and constitutes at-will employment. Mr. Aggarwalsyaovided with a $50,000 sign-on bonus payablaiwiB0 days of his joining us. The
sign-on bonus is subject to repayment if Mr. Aggarresigns within 12 months of his start date. Mygarwal is eligible for an annual
incentive bonus of $100,000, subject to achievernéapecific performance metrics. Mr. Aggarveadiffer letter agreement provides that, in
event his employment is either terminated by ubevit “cause” (as defined below) or he resigns fmdd reason” (as defined below), within
12 months following a change in control, then, dcte case, Mr. Aggarwal will be entitled to accetedavesting in 50% of the then-unvested
shares subject to his sign-on stock option awalsb Ave reimburse Mr. Aggarwal for an apartmen®an Francisco on a tax-neutral basis so
long as Mr. Aggarwal is required to work in Sanriiaco.

Paul Levine

We entered into an offer letter agreement with Mwvine, our COO, in February 2011. The offer lettigreement has no specific term
constitutes awill employment. Mr. Levine is eligible for an arauncentive bonus of $100,000, subject to achieamrof specific performan
metrics. Mr. Levine’s offer letter agreement prasdhat, in the event his employment is either itesited by us without “cause” (as defined
below) or he resigns for “good reason” (as defibhelbw), within 12 months following a change in aohtthen, in each case, Mr. Levine will
be entitled to accelerated vesting in 50% of tlemthnvested shares subject to his sign-on stoé&roptvard.

Daniele Farnedi

We entered into a confirmatory employment lettereagent with Mr. Farnedi, our Vice President, Eegiting, in August 2012. The
confirmatory employment letter agreement has neifipeéerm and constitutes at-will employment. Nrarnedi’s confirmatory employment
letter agreement provides that Mr. Farnedi is klegfor an annual incentive bonus of $31,000, stthifeachievement of specific performance
metrics. Mr. Farnedi’s confirmatory employmentéetagreement provides that, in the event his emnpéoy is either terminated by us without
“cause” (as defined below) or he resigns for “goealson” (as defined below), within 12 months folilogva change in control, then, in each
case, Mr. Farnedi will be entitled to acceleratedting in 50% of the then-unvested shares suljdbetstock option granted to Mr. Farnedi in
February 2011 and July 2012.
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Scott Darling

We entered into an offer letter agreement with Darling, our Vice President, General Counsel, anth@rate Secretary, in October
2011. The offer letter agreement has no specifio #nd constitutes atill employment. Mr. Darling is eligible for an aunal incentive bonus
$50,000, subject to achievement of specific perforae metrics. Mr. Darling’ offer letter agreement provides that, in the ehenemploymer
is either terminated by us without “cause” (as edi below) or he resigns for “good reason” (asrafibelow), within 12 months following a
change in control, then, in each case, Mr. Danliiigbe entitled to accelerated vesting in 50%la then-unvested shares subject to his eign-
stock option award.

Definitions of Terms

For purposes of the offer letter agreements anéirozatory employment letter agreement with Mr. Fedi) “cause” means dishonesty,
fraud, serious misconduct, unauthorized use otatince of confidential information or trade secretsconduct prohibited by criminal law
(except minor violations), in each case as detezthby our board of directors, whose determinatiail e conclusive and binding.

For purposes of the offer letter agreements of keggygarwal, Levine, and Darling and the confiramgtemployment letter agreement
with Mr. Farnedi, “good reason” means:

. A reduction in base compensation of greater th& @6e to a change in contn

. The executive is subjected to discrimination, haraent or abuse as a result of race, color, reljgimed, sex, age, national origin,
sexual orientation, or disability; |

. Upon our or our succes¢s request, the executive refuses to relocate agibty or location outside the San Francisco Bagad

Sami Inkinen Transition Agreement

We entered into a transition agreement and rele@beSami Inkinen, our former President, dated Ma28, 2012. The agreement
provides that Mr. Inkinen’s employment terminatedMarch 31, 2012 and in consideration for executinglease, Mr. Inkinen received:
(1) continuing payments of his then-current basagrgdor six months; (2) continued eligibility teceive the rollover bonus described above o
a pro-rated basis, subject to achievement of ti@ P@rformance measures; (3) reimbursement forlmphione, voice, and data service
expenses, up to $200 per month, for six months(4n@OBRA reimbursements for a period of six manthr until Mr. Inkinen has secured
other employment and has become eligible for hdmdtiefits from such new employer, whichever océiust Mr. Inkinen was paid $114,583
in severance pursuant to his Transition Agreemedtadso a payment of $25,801 in accrued vacation.

As a part of the transition agreement, Mr. Inkiagmeed to continue to serve as a member of oudhlwiatirectors until at least
December 31, 2013. We will reimburse Mr. Inkinentf@asonable travel and other incidental expengeoaed by us related to director
service, so long as Mr. Inkinen provides us witprapriate receipts or other relevant documentation.

The transition agreement also provides that Mrineak will continue to vest in his outstanding stagkion through September 30, 2012.
Mr. Inkinen will be entitled to exercise his outstiing stock option until the later of one year aft&. Inkinen ceases to provide any services t
us or December 31, 2013 (but in no event later tharoriginal 10-year expiration date set forthha grant notice related to such stock option)
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Cotrol

The following table provides information concerniihg estimated payments and benefits that woulardéded in the circumstances
described above for each of our named executiveenf. For purposes of the table, a qualifying teation of employment is considered “in
connection with a change in control” if such inuadary termination without cause or voluntary teration for good reason occurs within the
period 12 months, unless otherwise described ifidbimotes below, following the “change in contr¢&s defined in each agreement).
Payments and benefits are estimated assuminghihatiggering event took place on December 31, 20h2re can be no assurance that an
actual triggering event would produce the sameroiia results as those estimated below if sucmewecurs on any other date or at any othel
price, or if any other assumption used to estirpatential payments and benefits is not correct. dube number of factors that affect the
nature and amount of any potential payments orflienany actual payments and benefits may be rdiffe

Accelerated

Vesting of Options ($
Named Executive Officer g (Sp ®

Peter Flint $ 734,50°@
Sami Inkiner —@d)
Sean Aggarwe 942,28(*
Paul Levine 1,733,96'0)
Daniele Farnec 176,34(®)
Scott Darling 366,14

@ The amounts represent the intrinsic value of theksbptions that would vest on an accelerated basisnnection with such termination.

Such intrinsic value is determined by multiplyirg) the amount by which the fair market value parstof our common stock on
December 31, 2012 of $16.24 exceeded the exerdtseer share in effect under each option byl{p)rtumber of unvested shares that
vest on an accelerated basis under such of

We have entered into an agreement with Mr. Fliat irovides for 25% acceleration of unvested shfalksving a change in control and
100% acceleration of unvested shares if, withimtihths following a change in control, Mr. Flintiisoluntarily terminated without
cause (as defined in the notice of grant) or valtilyt terminates for good reason (as defined innbkéce of grant). As of December 31,
2012, 61,465 shares of common stock subject td=lfhit’s option would have accelerated if his empl@nt had been terminated in
connection with a change in contr

We have entered into an agreement with Mr. Inkithex provides for 100% acceleration of unvestedeshtollowing a change in contr
As of December 31, 2012, 8,167 shares of commark stiobject to Mr. Inkinen’s option would have aecated in connection with a
change in contro

We have entered into an agreement with Mr. Aggathet provides for 50% acceleration of unvestedeshd, within 12 months
following a change in control, Mr. Aggarwal is irfluatarily terminated without cause (as definednia hotice of grant) or voluntarily
terminates for good reason (as defined in the eafgrant). As of December 31, 2012, 88,147 shafresmmon stock subject to

Mr. Aggarwa’s option would have accelerated if his employmet been terminated in connection with a changetrol.

We have entered into an agreement with Mr. LeMira¢ provides for 50% acceleration of unvested shifravithin 12 months following
change in control, Mr. Levine is involuntarily temated without cause (as defined in the noticerahty or voluntarily terminates for
good reason (as defined in the notice of grant)ofABecember 31, 2012, 145,102 shares of commak stabject to Mr. Levine’s option
would have accelerated if his employment had beenibated in connection with a change in con

We have entered into an agreement with Mr. Fartiediprovides for 50% acceleration of unvestedeshaubject to his February 2011
and July 2012 stock option grants if, within 12 ri@nfollowing a change in control, Mr. Farnediriséluntarily terminated without cau
(as defined in the notice of grant) or voluntatdyminates for good reason (as defined in the aatiggrant). As of December 31, 2012,
22,396 shares of common stock subject to Mr. Fasiedtion would have accelerated if his employmiesmd been terminated in
connection with a change in contr

@

®

@)

®)

(6)
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) We have entered into an agreement with Mr. Dalirag provides for 50% acceleration of unvestedeshir within 12 months following

a change in control, Mr. Darling is involuntarigriinated without cause (as defined in the notfagant) or voluntarily terminates for
good reason (as defined in the notice of grant)ofABecember 31, 2012, 34,251 shares of commolk stagject to Mr. Darling’s option
would have accelerated if his employment had beenibated in connection with a change in con

Employee Benefit and Stock Plans
2012 Equity Incentive Plan

Our board of directors has adopted, and our stddeh®have approved, a 2012 Equity Incentive Rlathe 2012 Plan. The 2012 Plan
became effective on the business day immediatédy fir the effective date of the registration staat in connection with our IPO. The 2012
Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock opsi, within the meaning of Section 422 of the InéiRevenue Code, to our employees and
any parent and subsidiary corporations’ employaed,for the grant of nonstatutory stock optionstrieted stock, restricted stock units, stock
appreciation rights, performance units, and peréoroe shares to our employees, directors, and d¢ansubnd our parent and subsidiary
corporations’ employees and consultants.

Authorized SharesAs of December 31, 2012, a total of 2,370,000eshaf our common stock have been reserved foamsupursuant
to the 2012 Plan, which number excludes the 1,1@2shares that were added to the 2012 Plan aslaoéthe automatic annual increase on
January 1, 2013. In addition, the shares reserwedguance under the 2012 Plan also include shetneied to the 2005 Plan as the result of
expiration or termination of awards (provided ttreg maximum number of shares that may be adddwetdd12 Plan pursuant to this provision
is 1,000,000 shares). The number of shares avaifabissuance under the 2012 Plan will also inelad annual increase on the first day of
each fiscal year, equal to the least of:

. 2,100,000 share
. 4% of the outstanding shares of our common stoak #ee last day of our immediately preceding yea
. such other amount as our board of directors magrohéhe.

Plan Administration Our board of directors or the Committee will adisier the 2012 Plan. Subject to the provisionthef2012 Plan,
the administrator has the power to determine ttragef the awards, including the exercise price itmber of shares subject to each such
award, the exercisability of the awards, and thimmfof consideration, if any, payable upon exercides administrator also has the authority to
amend existing awards to reduce their exercise pracallow participants the opportunity to tramsfatstanding awards to a financial institur
or other person or entity selected by the admigiisty and to institute an exchange program by whidistanding awards may be surrendered i
exchange for awards with a higher or lower exerpisee.

Stock Options The exercise price of options granted under 6&22lan must at least be equal to the fair markdete of our common
stock on the date of grant. The term of an incengtock option may not exceed 10 years, exceptiitiatrespect to any employee who owns
more than 10% of the voting power of all classeswfoutstanding stock, the term must not exceeslyfears and the exercise price must equ
at least 110% of the fair market value of our comratock on the grant date. Subject to the provssifrthe 2012 Plan, the administrator
determines the term of all other options. After tfsenination of service of an employee, directocamnsultant, he or she may exercise his o
option for the period of time stated in his or bption agreement. Generally, if termination is tluéeath or disability, the option will remain
exercisable for 12 months. In all other casesptiten will generally remain exercisable for threenths following the termination of service.
However, in no event may an option be exercisest tian the expiration of its term.

-12C-



Table of Contents

Stock Appreciation RightsStock appreciation rights may be granted unde2@12 Plan. Stock appreciation rights allow tleépient to
receive the appreciation in the fair market valfishares of our common stock between the exerciteeahd the date of grant. Subject to the
provisions of the 2012 Plan, the administrator ieibees the terms of stock appreciation rights,udilg when such rights become exercisable
and whether to pay any increased appreciationsh oawith shares of our common stock, or a contlmnahereof, except that the per share
exercise price for the shares to be issued pursadhe exercise of a stock appreciation right tino less than 100% of the fair market value
per share on the date of grant.

Restricted StockRestricted stock may be granted under the 2042. Restricted stock awards are grants of sharesrafommon stock
that vest in accordance with terms and conditi@taldished by the administrator. The administratiirdetermine the number of shares of
restricted stock granted to any employee, directoconsultant. The administrator may impose whateenditions to vesting it determines to
be appropriate (for example, the administrator setyrestrictions based on the achievement of spgafformance goals or continued service
to us); provided, however, that the administratoits sole discretion, may accelerate the timatath any restrictions will lapse or be
removed. Shares of restricted stock that do ndtaressubject to our right of repurchase or fouiesit

Restricted Stock UnitsRestricted stock units may be granted under 2 Zlan. Restricted stock units are bookkeepirigesn
representing an amount equal to the fair marketevaf one share of our common stock. The admindgstdetermines the terms and conditions
of restricted stock units, including the vestingesia (which may include accomplishing specifiegfpormance criteria or continued service to
us) and the form and timing of payment. Notwithsliag the foregoing, the administrator, in its sdigcretion, may accelerate the time at w
any restrictions will lapse or be removed.

Performance Units and Performance Sharerformance units and performance shares mayangegl under the 2012 Plan.
Performance units and performance shares are attadwill result in a payment to a participantyoiflperformance goals established by the
administrator are achieved or the awards otherwgsé The administrator will establish organizagibor individual performance goals in its
discretion, which, depending on the extent to whiady are met, will determine the number and/onélee of performance units and
performance shares to be paid out to particip@iter the grant of a performance unit or performaabare, the administrator, in its sole
discretion, may reduce or waive any performandergai or other vesting provisions for such perfonoeunits or performance shares.
Performance units shall have an initial dollar eaéistablished by the administrator prior to thengdate. Performance shares shall have an
initial value equal to the fair market value of @@mmon stock on the grant date. The administratats sole discretion, may pay earned
performance units or performance shares in the fifroash, in shares or in some combination thereof.

Outside Directors The 2012 Plan provides that all non-employeectiirs will be eligible to receive all types of awar(except for
incentive stock options) under the 2012 Plan.

Non-Transferability of AwardsUnless the administrator provides otherwise 202 Plan generally does not allow for the transfer
awards and only the recipient of an award may ései@n award during his or her lifetime.

Certain Adjustmentsin the event of certain changes in our capitéibra to prevent diminution or enlargement of tleméfits or potentic
benefits available under the 2012 Plan, the adtnétés will adjust the number and class of shahes tnay be delivered under the Plan and/or
the number, class, and price of shares covereadly eutstanding award, and the numerical sharé¢sliset forth in the 2012 Plan. In the event
of our proposed liquidation or dissolution, the auistrator will notify participants as soon as gieeble and all awards will terminate
immediately prior to the consummation of such psggbtransaction.

Merger or Change in ControlThe 2012 Plan provides that in the event of agereor change in control, as defined under the Rlag,
each outstanding award will be treated as the adtrator determines, except that
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if a successor corporation or its parent or subsydioes not assume or substitute an equivalentdai@aany outstanding award, then such
award will fully vest, all restrictions on such adavill lapse, all performance goals or other wggitriteria applicable to such award will be
deemed achieved at 100% of target levels and suahdawill become fully exercisable, if applicabler a specified period prior to the
transaction. The award will then terminate uponekjgiration of the specified period of time. If thervice of an outside director is terminated
on or following a change in control, other thanguant to a voluntary resignation, his or her omjaestricted stock units and stock
appreciation rights, if any, will vest fully anddmne immediately exercisable, all restrictions andn her restricted stock will lapse, all
performance goals or other vesting requirementsifoor her performance shares and units will lmv achieved at 100% of target levels,
and all other terms and conditions will be deemed m

Amendment, TerminatiarOur board of directors has the authority to amendpend, or terminate the 2012 Plan provided aatibn
does not impair the existing rights of any particip The 2012 Plan automatically terminates in 20R&ss we terminate it sooner.

2005 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended

Our board of directors adopted our 2005 Plan ire 2005, and our stockholders approved it in Ju®®20ur 2005 Plan was most
recently amended in February 2012. The 2005 Planteraninated in connection with our initial pubdifering, but will continue to govern
awards previously granted thereunder.

Authorized SharesThe 2005 Plan has terminated and no shares ailatale for the grant of future equity awards theger. Our 2005
Plan provided for the grant of incentive stock op$, nonqualified stock options, restricted statiick appreciation rights, stock awards,
restricted stock, and restricted stock units. ABe€ember 31, 2012, options to purchase 3,361 B&&s of our common stock remained
outstanding under our 2005 Plan.

Plan Administration The Committee currently administers our 2005 PRarbject to the provisions of our 2005 Plan, ttheiaistrator
has the power to interpret and administer our Z8@5 and any agreement thereunder and to detetherterms of awards (including the
recipients), the number of shares subject to eaelnd the exercise price (if any), the fair mankatue of a share of our common stock, the
vesting schedule applicable to the awards togetitarany vesting acceleration, and the terms ofativard agreement for use under our 2005
Plan. The administrator may, at any time, authdtizeissue of new awards for the surrender andetiation of any outstanding award with the
consent of a participant. The administrator mag alsy out an award previously granted for cashreshar other consideration as the
administrator and the participant may agree.

Options. Stock options may be granted under our 2005 Rlae.exercise price per share of all options mgaakat least 85% of the fair
market value per share of our common stock on #te of grant, and the exercise price per shanecefitive stock options must equal at least
100% of the fair market value per share of our camistock on the date of grant. The term of an itigerstock option may not exceed 10
years. An incentive stock option held by a paricipwho owns more than 10% of the total combinethggower of all classes of our stock
any parent or subsidiary corporations, may not fzai@m in excess of five years and must have arcise price of at least 110% of the fair
market value per share of our common stock on #ite of grant. The administrator will determine thethods of payment of the exercise price
of an option, which may include cash, shares, dateother property, or other consideration acaklgtto the administrator. After the
termination of service of an employee, directorcansultant, the participant may generally exerhiseor her options, to the extent vested as c
such date of termination, for three months aftemieation. If termination is due to death, disapilbr retirement, the option will generally
remain exercisable, to the extent vested as of dathof termination, until the one-year anniversirsuch termination. However, in no event
may an option be exercised later than the expimaifats term. If termination is for cause, thenggtion automatically expires upon first
notification to the participant of such termination
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Stock Appreciation RightsStock appreciation rights may be granted unde2®05 Plan. Stock appreciation rights allow tleépient to
receive the appreciation in the fair market valfishares of our common stock between the exerciteeahd the date of grant. Subject to the
provisions of the 2005 Plan, the administrator ieiees the terms of stock appreciation rights,udilg when such rights become exercisable
and whether to pay any increased appreciationsh oawith shares of our common stock, or a contlmnahereof, except that the per share
exercise price for the shares to be issued pursadhe exercise of a stock appreciation right ggain tandem with an option will be equal to
the exercise price of the related option.

Stock Awards Stock awards may be granted under our 2005 Black awards are grants of shares of our commah stioe rights of
ownership of which are not subject to restrictipnsscribed by the administrator.

Restricted StockRestricted stock may be granted under our 2086.Restricted stock awards are grants of sharegsrafommon stock
that are subject to various restrictions, includiestrictions on transferability and forfeiture pigions. Shares of restricted stock will vest, and
the restrictions on such shares will lapse, in etaoce with terms and conditions established byatiministrator.

Stock Units Stock units may be granted under the 2005 PlaxctkSuinits are bookkeeping entries representingraount equal to the fair
market value of one share of our common stock.administrator determines the terms and conditidmesiricted stock units, including the
vesting criteria (which may include accomplishipgeified performance criteria or continued sert@eas) and the form and timing of
payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the adntiatsr, in its sole discretion may accelerate iimetat which any restrictions will lapse or
be removed.

Transferability of Awards Our 2005 Plan generally does not allow for tlaasfer of awards, and only the recipient of an dwaay
exercise such an award during his or her lifetime.

Certain AdjustmentIn the event of certain changes in our capitéiiza the number of shares reserved under our P0&¥s, the exercise
prices of and the number of shares subject toand#tg options, and the purchase price of and tingbers of shares subject to outstanding
awards will be proportionately adjusted, subjeciny required action by our board of directors.

Merger or Change in ControlOur 2005 Plan provides that, in the event of agee change in control, or other company traneacts
defined under our 2005 Plan, each outstanding amardbe assumed or substituted for an equivaleatdavin the event that awards are not
assumed or substituted for, then the vesting aftanting awards will be accelerated, and stoclooptwill become exercisable in full prior to
such corporate transaction. Stock options will thenerally terminate immediately prior to the cogie transaction.

Amendment, TerminatiarOur board of directors may amend our 2005 Plangttime, provided that such amendment does ngaiim
the rights under outstanding awards without therdvaalder’s written consent. Upon completion of tR®, our 2005 Plan was terminated and
no further awards will be granted thereunder. Alistanding awards will continue to be governedhgjrtexisting terms.

SMT Bonus Plan

Our SMT Bonus Plan, or the Bonus Plan, was addpyetie Committee in March 2012. The Bonus Plannadlthe Committee to provide
cash incentive awards to selected executives,enffjor key employees, including our named exeeufficers, based upon performance goals
established by the Committee.

Under the Bonus Plan, the Committee determinepéhf®rmance goals applicable to any award, whicigymay include, without
limitation: attainment of research and developnmiiestones; bookings; business divestitures andisitigns; cash flow; cash position;
contract awards or backlog; customer renewalspouwst retention rates from an acquired company nlegsiunit, or division; earnings (which
may include earnings
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before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortinagarnings before taxes, and net earnings);regger share; expenses; gross margin; gi
in stockholder value relative to the moving averafjthe S&P 500 Index or another index; internd raf return; inventory turns; inventory
levels; market share; net income; net profit; é¢s new product development; new product inventioinnovation; number of customers;
operating cash flow; operating expenses; operatiogme; operating margin; overhead or other expesshection; product defect measures;
product release timelines; productivity; profittinn on assets; return on capital; return on egquityirn on investment; return on sales; reve
revenue growth; sales results; sales growth; gpoick; time to market; total stockholder return;rieing capital; and individual objectives such
as peer reviews or other subjective or objectivteria. Performance goals that include our finalheaults may be determined in accordance
with GAAP or such financial results may consishofi-GAAP financial measures and any actual resudtg be adjusted by the Committee for
one-time items or unbudgeted or unexpected itenenvdetermining whether the performance goals haea met. The goals may be on the
basis of any factors the Committee determines agig\and may be adjusted on an individual, divigiphusiness unit, or company-wide basis.
The performance goals may differ from participanpérticipant and from award to award.

The Committee may, in its sole discretion and gttame, increase, reduce or eliminate a particigaaxttual award and/or increase,
reduce or eliminate the amount allocated to theibgool for a particular performance period. Thealcaward may be below, at or above a
participant’s target award, in the Committediscretion. The Committee may determine the amofuany reduction on the basis of such fac
as it deems relevant, and it is not required tat#isth any allocation or weighting with respecthe factors it considers.

Actual awards are paid in cash only after theyeammed, which usually requires continued employrtiaotugh the date a bonus is paid.
Payment of bonuses occurs as soon as administyapirecticable after they are earned, but no Idtten the dates set forth in the Bonus Plan.

The Committee has the authority to amend, altespend or terminate the Bonus Plan provided sudbradbes not impair the existing
rights of any participant with respect to any edrhenus.

401(k) Plan

We maintain a tax-qualified retirement plan thadvides eligible employees with an opportunity teestor retirement on a tax-
advantaged basis. All participants’ interests girtdeferrals are 100% vested when contributefistal 2012, we made matching contributions
into the 401(K) plan. Our contributions to the 4QJlan are discretionary and fully vested whentdbated. Pre-tax contributions are allocatec
to each participant’s individual account and aentmvested in selected investment alternativesrdoty to the participants’ directions. The
401(k) plan is intended to qualify under Sectio8%(4) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. tax-gualified retirement plan,
contributions to the 401(k) plan and earnings as¢hcontributions are not taxable to the employedisdistributed from the 401(k) plan, and
all contributions are deductible by us when made.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement

The following table sets forth certain informatioith respect to the beneficial ownership of our aoon stock as of February 26, 2013
for:

. each of our executive officer

. each of our director:

. all of our directors and executive officers as augr, anc

. each person known by us to be the beneficial owharore than five percent of any class of our vptecurities
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We have determined beneficial ownership in accardavith the rules of the SEC, and thus it represssole or shared voting or
investment power with respect to our securitiedesimotherwise indicated below, to our knowledge,gersons and entities named in the tabl
have sole voting and sole investment power witpeesto all shares that they beneficially ownedject to community property laws where
applicable. We have deemed shares of our commak stdbject to options that are currently exercisailexercisable within 60 days of
February 26, 2013 to be outstanding and to be @alf owned by the person holding the optiontioe purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of that person but have not treated thgmwutstanding for the purpose of computing thegrgage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of eacéfioéad owner listed in the table below is c/o Taylinc., 116 New Montgomery Street,
Suite 300, San Francisco, California 94105.

Shares Beneficially

Owned

Percentage

of Shares
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Outstanding
Executive Officers and Directors:
Peter Flinl® 2,750,46 9.84%
Sean Aggarwe® 241,77 *
Paul Levine® 242,00: *
Daniele Farnec® 166,90: *
Scott Darling® 25,54¢ *
Erik Bardmar®) 24,50( *
Sami Inkiner® 1,912,57 6.91
Robert Mole<®) 109,68 *
Theresia Gouv® 3,688,27! 13.3¢
Gregory Waldor®0) 177,53. *
All executive officers and directors as a group

(10 persons1) 9,339,24 32.4¢4

5% Stockholders:
Accel IX L.P.(2 3,681,271 13.31
Fayez Sarofim Investment Partnership No. 5, @3 3,558,23. 12.8i
Caledonia (Private) Investments Pty Limi (14 3,398,35! 12.2¢
Sequoia Capital XII, L.F5) 2,313,80 8.37

* Represents beneficial ownership of less than oneepe(1%) of the outstanding shares of our comstook.

@ Consists of (i) 1,790,207 shares held of recortbyFlint, (ii) 666,603 shares held of record b tReter Flint 2 Year Grantor Retained
Annuity Trust for which Mr. Flint serves as trustaed (iii) 293,657 shares subject to an outstandption which is exercisable as of
April 27, 2013. Mr. Flint has sole voting and intregnt power with respect to the shares held irPter Flint 2 Year Grantor Retained

@ égzlsj:;%sTgl;SZtéll,??Z shares subject to an outstgrogition which is exercisable as of April 27, 2088,627 of which will be vested as of

@ égrrilsgts %(1‘)123(’)'7,531 shares subject to an outstgragition which is exercisable as of April 27, 20aB,0f which will be vested as of

@ égrrilsgts %(1‘)11%6,904 shares subject to outstangitigres which are exercisable as of April 27, 2CIBof which will be vested as of Ap

© (ZZZ)nzs?sltg of 25,549 shares subject to outstanditigrepwhich are exercisable as of April 27, 201Bpfwhich will be vested as of April

© %Z)’nlzs(i;s?%fgﬁoo shares subject to an outstarogfitign which is exercisable as of April 27, 2028,416 of which will be vested as of
pril 27, .

™ Consists of () 1,912,571 shares held of recortbyinkinen and (ii) 7,000 shares of which will ested as of April 27, 201
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®)

©)

(10

(11)

(12

13

(14)

(15)

Consists of 109,680 shares subject to outstanditigres which are exercisable as of April 27, 2(IBpf which will be vested as of Ap
27,2013

Consists of the shares listed in footnote (12) Wweldnich are held by entities affiliated with Acdeartners. Ms. Gouw, one of our
directors, is one of the managing members of AtXdssociates L.L.C., the general partner of AdeeL.P., Accel IX Strategic Partne
L.P. and Accel Investors 2005 L.L.C. and, therefameleemed to share voting and investment power ine shares held by the entities
associated with Accel Partners. Also consists @97 shares of which will be vested as of April 2013.

Consists of (i) 24,495 shares held of record byWaldorf; (ii) 12,268 shares held of record by Wafd?009 Trust dated June 15, 2009
for which Mr. Waldorf serves as trustee (the “Wafd2D09 Trust"); (iii) 122,358 shares held of red¢dry GLW 2004 Revocable Trust
dated 11/15/2004 for which Mr. Waldorf serves astee (the “Waldorf 2004 Trust,” and together viite Waldorf 2009 Trust, the
“Waldorf Trusts”); and (iv) 49,000 shares subjecbutstanding options which are exercisable aspil 7, 2013, 42,875 of which will
be vested as of April 27, 2013. Mr. Waldorf hasesaiting and investment power over the Waldorf ®&ushares. In addition,

Mr. Waldorf is a limited partner in Fayez Sarofinvéstment Partnership No. 5, L.P. Mr. Waldorf doeshave voting or investment
power with respect to the shares held by Fayezfi@atovestment Partnership No. 5, L.

Consists of (i) 8,206,654 shares beneficially owhgaur current directors and executive officerd @i 1,132,593 shares subject to
outstanding options which are exercisable as ofl 3t 2013, 966,239 of which will be vested as\pfil 27, 2013.

Consists of (i) 3,137,523 shares held of recordbgel 1X, L.P.; (ii) 405,017 shares held of recmgdAccel IX Strategic Partners L.P.;
and (iii) 349,306 shares held of record by Acce&klstors 2005 L.L.C. (collectively, “Accel PartnersJames W. Breyer, Kevin J. Efrusy,
Ping Li, Arthur C. Patterson, and Theresia Gouwnasaging members of Accel IX Associates L.L.Ce, gleneral partner of Accel IX
L.P. and Accel IX Strategic Partners L.P., shartingoand investment power with respect to the shhedd by Accel IX L.P. and Accel
IX Strategic Partners L.P. James W. Breyer, Kevigftusy, Ping Li, Arthur C. Patterson, and ThaxeSbuw, as managing members of
Accel Investors 2005 L.L.C., share voting and itwent power with respect to the shares held by Wosestors 2005 L.L.C. The
principal address of Accel Partners is 428 Uniwgr&venue, Palo Alto, California 9430

Consists of 3,558,233 shares held of record by #8geofim Investment Partnership No. 5, L.P. F&yamfim and Raye G. White, as
officers of FSI No. 2 Corporation, the managinge&rahpartner of Fayez Sarofim Investment Partnprila. 5, L.P., share voting and
investment power with respect to the shares heldayez Sarofim Investment Partnership No. 5, L principal address of Fayez
Sarofim Investment Partnership No. 5, L.P. is Twaubton Center, Suite 2907, Houston, Texas 7°

According to a Schedule 13G filed February 26, 2@aedonia (Private) Investments Pty Limited o8r898,358 shares of our comn
stock. The principal address of Caledonia (Privlate@stments Pty Limited is Level 18, Gateway, Mequarie Place, Sydney NSW
2000, Australia

Consists of (i) 2,022,036 shares held of recor@éguoia Capital XII, L.P.; (ii) 216,109 shares hafdecord by Sequoia Capital XII
Principals Fund, LLC; and (iii) 75,662 shares hefldecord by Sequoia Technology Partners XlI, I(d®llectively, “Sequoia Capital”).
Michael Goguen, Douglas Leone, Michael Moritz, JaheGoetz, and Roelof F. Botha, as managing mendf&C Xl Management,
LLC, the general partner of Sequoia Capital XIPLand Sequoia Technology Partners XlI, L.P., shatieg and investment power with
respect to the shares held by Sequoia Capital>d®, and Sequoia Technology Partners Xll, L.P. M&ahGoguen, Douglas Leone,
Michael Moritz, James J. Goetz, and Roelof F. Bodisamanaging members of SC XIl Management, LLE planaging member of
Sequoia Capital XIlI Principals Fund, LLC, shareingtand investment power with respect to the shlaeés by Sequoia Capital Xl
Principals Fund, LLC. The principal address of SgguCapital is 3000 Sand Hill Roac-250, Menlo Park, California 9402
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Iltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independenct
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactios

In addition to the compensation arrangements, distmemployment, termination of employment and dgaim control arrangements and
indemnification arrangements, discussed, when reduin the sections titled “Management” and “Exe@iCompensation” and the
registration rights described in the section titiBéscription of Capital Stock—Registration Rightthe following is a description of each
transaction since January 1, 2012 and each currerposed transaction in which:

* we have been or are to be a particip
« the amount involved exceeded or exceeds $120,0@(

» any of our directors, executive officers, or hoklef more than 5% of our capital stock, or any irdiate family member of, or
person sharing the household with, any of thesiwithaals, had or will have a direct or indirect midal interest

Transition Agreement

We entered into a transitional agreement and releés Sami Inkinen, our former President, dateddi®8, 2012. For a more detailed
description of this agreement see the Sectiordtifixecutive Compensation—Sami Inkinen Transitiagrédement.”

Letter Agreements

In January 2012, we entered into a letter agreemightGregory Waldorf, a non-employee member of looard of directors. See the
section titled “Management—Non-Employee Directon@p@nsation—Gregory Waldorf Letter Agreement” fanare detailed description of
this agreement.

In May 2012, we entered into a letter agreemertt Witk Bardman, a non-employee member of our boédirectors. See the section
titted “Management—Non-Employee Director Comperwsati-Erik Bardman Letter Agreement” for a more detgitlescription of this
agreement.

Investor Rights Agreement

On May 8, 2008, we entered into a Third AmendedRestated Investor Rights Agreement with the hsldéour outstanding
convertible preferred stock, including entitiesleffed with Accel Partners, Fayez Sarofim Investtri@artnership, and Sequoia Capital, which
each hold more than 5% of our outstanding capitaks and Peter Flint and Sami Inkinen, our co-firns. As of December 31, 2012, the
holders of 15,694,006 shares of our common stoeleatitled to rights with respect to the registmatdf their shares.

Executive Confirmatory Employment Letter and Offer Letter Agreements

We have entered into confirmatory employment ledted offer letter agreements with certain of owgative officers. See the section
titted “Executive Compensation—Executive Confirmgt&mployment Letter and Offer Letter Agreements” fore information regarding
these agreements.

Other Transactions

We have granted stock options to our executiveeffi and certain of our directors. See the sectitied “Executive Compensation—
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table” and “Managemewdn-Employee Director Compensation” for a desooiptof these options.
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We have entered into change in control arrangenveithiscertain of our executive officers that, amager things, provide for certain
severance and change in control benefits. Seestitimg titled “Executive Compensation—Potential fayts upon Termination or Change in
Control” for more information regarding these agneats.

Other than as described above under this sectled tiCertain Relationships and Related Person Saetions,” since January 1, 2012, we
have not entered into any transactions, nor are ey currently proposed transactions, betweemds related party where the amount
involved exceeds, or would exceed, $120,000, amchich any related person had or will have a dicedhdirect material interest. We believe
the terms of the transactions described above emrgarable to terms we could have obtained in atemgth dealings with unrelated third
parties.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification of Offi cers and Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamatbntains provisions that limit the liability ofir directors for monetary damages to
the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. Copmmtly, our directors will not be personally liakib us or our stockholders for monetary
damages for any breach of fiduciary duties as thrscexcept liability for the following:

» any breach of their duty of loyalty to our compamyour stockholders
e any act or omission not in good faith or that imed intentional misconduct or a knowing violatidraw;

« unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stockuechases or redemptions as provided in Sectiorofl e Delaware General
Corporation Law; o

e any transaction from which they derived an imprgpensonal benefi

Any amendment to, or repeal of, these provisiorisnet eliminate or reduce the effect of these [Bmns in respect of any act, omission
or claim that occurred or arose prior to that anmeexk or repeal. If the Delaware General Corpordtiaw is amended to provide for further
limitations on the personal liability of directas§ corporations, then the personal liability of alinectors will be further limited to the greatest
extent permitted by the Delaware General Corpandtiw.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that wendiémnify, to the fullest extent permitted by laany person who is or was a party
or is threatened to be made a party to any adigihpr proceeding by reason of the fact that heheris or was one of our directors or officers
or is or was serving at our request as a direatoffer of another corporation, partnership, joienture, trust, or other enterprise. Our
amended and restated bylaws provide that we maynindy to the fullest extent permitted by law argrgon who is or was a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any action,@uitroceeding by reason of the fact that he olisle was one of our employees or agents or |
or was serving at our request as an employee oit aj@nother corporation, partnership, joint veatdrust, or other enterprise. Our amended
and restated bylaws also provide that we must axvarpenses incurred by or on behalf of a diremtafficer in advance of the final
disposition of any action or proceeding, subjecteny limited exceptions.

Further, we have entered into indemnification agreets with each of our directors and executiveceff that may be broader than the
specific indemnification provisions contained i thelaware General Corporation Law. These indegatifin agreements require us, among
other things, to indemnify our directors and exeeubfficers against liabilities that may arisereason of their status or service. These
indemnification agreements also require us to ackvaf expenses incurred by the directors and éxecafficers in investigating or defending
any such action, suit, or proceeding. We belieat tihese agreements are necessary to attracttairdgealified individuals to serve as
directors and executive officers.

The limitation of liability and indemnification pvisions that are included in our amended and restegrtificate of incorporation,
amended restated bylaws, and in indemnificatioeegents that we have entered into with our
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directors and executive officers may discouragekstolders from bringing a lawsuit against our dioes and executive officers for breach of
their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce tkellhood of derivative litigation against our diters and executive officers, even though an
action, if successful, might benefit us and othecleholders. Further, a stockholdeimvestment may be adversely affected to the extanwe
pay the costs of settlement and damage awardssagiectors and executive officers as requirethiege indemnification provisions. At
present, we are not aware of any pending litigabioproceeding involving any person who is or was of our directors, officers, employee:
other agents or is or was serving at our requeatdaector, officer, employee or agent of anottmporation, partnership, joint venture, trus
other enterprise, for which indemnification is sbtjygand we are not aware of any threatened libgattat may result in claims for
indemnification.

We have obtained insurance policies under whidbjestito the limitations of the policies, coverag@rovided to our directors and
executive officers against loss arising from clamede by reason of breach of fiduciary duty or othngful acts as a director or executive
officer, including claims relating to public sedigs matters, and to us with respect to paymeantsntiay be made by us to these directors and
executive officers pursuant to our indemnificatabiigations or otherwise as a matter of law.

Certain of our non-employee directors may, throtigdir relationships with their employers, be insuamd/or indemnified against certain
liabilities incurred in their capacity as membef®or board of directors.

The underwriting agreement in connection with &®®Iprovides for indemnification by the underwritefsis and our officers, directors
and employees for certain liabilities arising unther Securities Act of 1933, or the Securities Actotherwise.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisimmpder the Securities Act may be permitted to dinestofficers or persons controlling our
company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, weetzeen informed that, in the opinion of the SE@hsindemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act anddsefore unenforceable.

Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transaains

The audit committee has the primary responsibitityreviewing and approving or disapproving “rethfgarty transactions,” which are
transactions between us and related persons irhwiécaggregate amount involved exceeds or mayjected to exceed $120,000 and in
which a related person has or will have a direéhdirect material interest. We have adopted acgategarding transactions between us and
related persons. For purposes of this policy, @tedlperson is defined as a director, executivieasffnominee for director, or greater than 5%
beneficial owner of our common stock, in each cigee the beginning of the most recently complgtst, and their immediate family
members. Our audit committee charter providesttretudit committee shall review and approve caghsove any related party transactions.

Director Independence
See Item 10, “Directors, Executive Officers, andtoate Governance” for information regarding dioeindependence.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information called for by this item is incorpted by reference to our Proxy Statement for auafi2012 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders anticipated to be filed with the SE@in 120 days after the end of the fiscal yeareshduly 31, 2012, pursuant to Regulation
14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nasraled.
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Part IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:
1. Financial Statements
See Index to Financial Statements at Item 8 herein.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Year Ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Beginning balanc $ 80 $ 104 $ 85
Charged to costs and expen 95 17¢€ 82
Reductions and wri-offs (33 (200) (63)
Ending balanci $142 $ 8C $104
All other schedules have been omitted becauseategot required, not applicable, or the requirddrmation is otherwise
included.
3. Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index immediately following thersagure page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
-13C-



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant hgscdused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Trulia, Inc.

Date: March 4, 2013 /s/ PETER FLINT
Peter Flint
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 4, 2013 /sl PRASHANT‘SEAN’ AGGARWAL
Prashan“Sear” Aggarwal
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Office

Date: March 4, 2013 /s/ ERIK BARDMAN
Erik Bardmar
Director

Date: March 4, 2013 /s/  SAMI INKINEN
Sami Inkiner
Director

Date: March 4, 2013 /s/ ROBERT MOLES
Robert Moles
Director

Date: March 4, 2013 /s/ THERESIA GOUW
Theresia Gouv
Director

Date: March 4, 2013 /Is/ GREGORY WALDORF
Gregory Waldor!
Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Incorporated by Reference
Number Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe S-1 333-18336: 3.4 August 17, 2012
Registrant
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registi S-1 33:-18336: 3.7 August 17, 201:
4.1 Form of common stock certificate of the Registr. S-1/A 33:-18336: 4.1 September 19, 201
4.2 Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agre¢naiated S-1 333-18336: 4.4 August 17, 2012
May 8, 2008, by and among the Registrant and ceofaits
stockholders
10.1* Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registaat each ¢ S-1 333-18336: 10.1 August 17, 2012
its directors and executive office
10.2* Trulia, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended,form of S-1 333-18336: 10.2 August 17, 2012
Stock Option Agreement and form of Stock Optionr&fsdotice
thereunder
10.3* Trulia, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, and forfmSdock Option S-1/A 333-18336: 10.3 September 19, 2012
Agreement and form of Stock Option Grant Notica¢o@der
10.4*t Trulia, Inc. SMT Bonus Plar S-1 33:-18336:¢ 104 August 17, 201!
10.5* Outside Director Compensation Poli 1C-Q 001-3565( 10.2 November 13, 201
10.6* Confirmatory Employment Letter, dated August 3, 2Metween S-1 333-18336: 10.5 August 17, 2012
the Registrant and Peter Fli
10.7* Employment Offer Letter, dated October 17, 2011wken the S-1 333-18336: 10.6 August 17, 2012
Registrant and Prashe“ Seal” Aggarwal.
10.8* Employment Offer Letter, dated January 13, 201fwéen the S-1 333-18336: 10.7 August 17, 2012
Registrant and Paul Levin
10.9* Employment Offer Letter, dated October 17, 2011wken the S-1 333-18336: 10.8 August 17, 2012
Registrant and Scott Darlin
10.10* Confirmatory Employment Letter, dated August 3, 2Metween S-1 333-18336: 10.9 August 17, 2012
the Registrant and Daniele Farne
10.11* Letter Agreement, dated January 5, 2012, betwezRé#yistrant S-1 333-18336: 10.10 August 17, 2012
and Gregory Waldor!
10.12* Letter Agreement, dated May 23, 2012, between #gdrant S-1 333-18336: 10.11 August 17, 2012
and Erik Bardmar
10.13*  Transition Agreement and Release, dated March @&,2 S-1 333-18336: 10.12 August 17, 2012

between the Registrant and Sami Inkir
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Exhibit
Number
10.14%t
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

Incorporated by Reference

Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
Platform Services Agreement, dated June 19, 2Ct#den the S-1/A 333-18336: 10.13  September 19, 2012
Registrant and Move Sales, I
Master Service Agreement, dated June 2, 2008, leatte S-1 333-18336: 10.14 August 17, 2012
Registrant and Equinix Operating Co., |
Lease, dated May 20, 2010, between the RegistrahCavVR S-1 333-18336: 10.15 August 17, 2012
Holdings LLC and Broad Street San Francisco L
Multi-Tenant Office Lease, dated January 24, 2@ktween the S-1 333-18336: 10.16 August 17, 2012
Registrant and LBA Realty Func—WBP I, LLC.
First Amendment to Multi-Tenant Office Lease, datedjust 31, S-1/A 333-18336: 10.17  September 19, 2012
2012, between the Registrant and LBA Realty FureViBP I,
LLC.
Lease, dated October 1, 2012, between the CompahPauglas 10-Q 001-3565( 10.1 September 30, 2012
G. Moore and Maclean Properties, LLC, as amel
Loan and Security Agreement, dated September 13,20 S-1 333-18336: 10.17 August 17, 2012

between the Registrant and Hercules Technology Gr&apital,
Inc., as amende:

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementedat
February 20, 2013, between the Registrant and esrcu
Technology Growth Capital, In

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent resgied public
accounting firm

Certification of Peter Flint, Chief Executive Offic pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuantddde302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal, Chiefi&ncial
Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), deped
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Peter Flint, Chief Executive O#ic and Prashant
“Sean” Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer, pursuantl8 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9fedbarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference

Number Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntn

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docum

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangie

t Portions of this exhibit have been omitted punstia a determination by the Securities and Exchagmmission that these portions
should be granted confidential treatme

**  XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagdpmation is furnished and not filed or a part okgistration statement or prospectus
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securfigtsof 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed wppses of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, andtistherwise subject to liability under theset®es.
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Exhibit 10.21

THIRD AMENDMENT
TO
LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

T HIS T HIRD A MENDMENT TO L OAN AND SECURITY A GREEMENT (this “ Amendment’) is dated as of February 20, 2013 and is entered
into by and among TRULIA, INC., a Delaware corp@af and each of its subsidiaries (hereinafterextively referred to as theBorrower”),
and HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC., a Mdand corporation (Lender”). Capitalized terms used herein without
definition shall have the same meanings given threthe Loan Agreement (as defined below).

R ECITALS

A. Borrower and Lender have entered into that cettaam and Security Agreement dated as of Septenfe2Qil1 (as may be amended,
restated, or otherwise modified, * Loan Agreement), pursuant to which Lender has made to Borrower iceadvances of mone

B. Borrower and Lender have agreed to amend the Lgmeefnent upon the terms and conditions more felifarth herein

A GREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoingcRals and intending to be legally bound, theipartiereto agree as follow
1. A MENDMENTS .

1.1 SecTioNn 7.1(A). Section 7.1(a) is hereby deleted and replaced“[INTENTIONALLY DELETED]".

1.2 SecTion 7.1(E). The reference t“montl” in Section 7.1(e) is hereby deleted and replacéd“quarte”.

1.3 SecTion 7.1(G). Section 7.1(g) is hereby deleted and replaced“[INTENTIONALLY DELETED]".

1.4 E xHBIT F (C ompLIANCE C ERTIFICATE ). The first reference to “Interim Financial StatengeMtonthly within 30 days” in the
Compliance Certificate in Exhibit F is hereby detéaind replaced wit'[INTENTIONALLY DELETED]".

2. B ORROWER' SR EPRESENTATIONS A ND W ARRANTIES . Borrower represents and warrants tl

(a) immediately upon giving effect to this Amendmerd,Event of Default has occurred and is continuirittp wespect to which Borrower
has not been notified in writing by Lend

(b) Borrower has the corporate power and authorityerete and deliver this Amendment and to perfosolitligations under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendm

(c) the execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amerent and the performance by Borrower of its obiages under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, havedgdgrauthorized by all necessary corporate actiothe part of Borrowe!

(d) this Amendment has been duly executed and deliv@rédgbrrower and is the binding obligation of Bomer, enforceable against it in
accordance with its terms, except as such enfoildtgabay be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, rganization, liquidation, moratoriu
or other similar laws of general application anditable principles relating to or affecting credg’ rights; anc

(e) as of the date hereof, it has no defenses agamsttiligations to pay any amounts under the Seddkdigations. Borrower acknowledg
that Lender has acted in good faith and has cordunta commercially reasonable manner its relakigns with Borrower in connection
with this Amendment and in connection with the L&ocuments

(H Borrower understands and acknowledges that Lesdartering into this Amendment in reliance upom imnpartial consideration for, tl
above representations and warranties, and agraesuth reliance is reasonable and approp!

3. L imTaTion . The amendments set forth in this Amendment slealimited precisely as written and shall notdeemed (a) to be a
waiver or modification of any other term or condlitiof the Loan Agreement or of any other instrunweragreement referred to thereir
to prejudice any right or remedy which Lender mawrhave or may have in the future under or in cotioe with the Loan Agreement
or any instrument or agreement referred to thewiifh) to be a consent to any future amendmentattification or waiver to any
instrument or agreement the execution and deligéwhich is consented to hereby, or to any waiary of the provisions thereof.
Except as expressly amended hereby, the Loan Agmteshall continue in full force and effe

4. EFFeECTIVENESS. This Amendment shall become effective uporstitesfaction of all the following conditions preesd:



4.1 Amendment. Borrower and Lender shall have duly executetidelivered this Amendment to Lend

5.  COuNTERPARTS. This Amendment may be signed in any numbeoahterparts, and by different parties hereto iraszte
counterparts, with the same effect as if the sigestto each such counterpart were upon a singfieiment. All counterparts shall be
deemed an original of this Amendme

6. I NCORPORATION B YR EFERENCE. The provisions of Section 11 of the Agreement shaldeemed incorporated herein by reference,
mutatis mutandi.

I NW ITNESS W HEREOF , the parties have duly authorized and causedMmisndment to be executed as of the date firstewribove
BORROWER:
TRULIA, INC.

/s/ PETER FLINT
Iits: CEO

LENDER:

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL,
INC.

/sl BEN BANG

Its:  Senior Counsel




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement No. 333-184003 on Forr@ &-our report dated March 3, 2013, relai

to the financial statements and financial statersehedule of Trulia, Inc. (the “Company”) appearinghis Annual Report on Form 10-K of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2012.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Jose, California
March 3, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
I, Peter Flint, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16#Krulia, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15a}15g¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2013

/sl Peter Flint

Peter Flint

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
I, Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16#Krulia, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15a}15g¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit’s internal control over financial reportithgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2013

/sl Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal
Prashan“Sear” Aggarwal

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting and Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated, (the “Exchange Act”) and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. §1350), Peter Flint, (xefcutive Officer of Trulia, Inc. (the
“Company”), and Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal, Chiefdfiaial Officer of the Company, each hereby ceriftt, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for peeiod ended December 31, 2012, to which thisif@ztion is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the “Periodic Report”), fully compfevith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectidfd) of the Exchange Act;
and

2. The information contained in the Periodic Refaily presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition and results of
operations of the Compar

Date: March 4, 2013

/sl Peter Flint

Peter Flint

Chief Executive Officer and Directt
(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Prashant “Sean” Aggarwal
Prashan“Sear” Aggarwal

Chief Financial Office

(Principal Accounting and Financial Office




